
REGULAR MEETING  
AGENDA 

 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY APRIL 20, 2015, AT 5:30 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL:     Rankin __, Walter__, Woolridge__, Hawkins__, Montaño __, 

Guilin__, Anderson__. 
 
3. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  

An Executive Session will be held during the Council Meeting for legal matters 
pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4) for the purpose of 
discussion and consultation with the Town’s attorneys for legal advice and to 
consider the Town’s position and instruct its attorneys in regard to a claim 
involving Johnson Utilities. 

 
4. ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
5. MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
7. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION 
a. Public hearing on an application received from Jeffrey P. Erickson, The 

River Bottom Grill, located at 2501 N. Highway 79, Florence, Arizona, for a 
personal transfer of  a new Type 6 Liquor License, and for Council 
recommendation for approval or disapproval of said license.  
 

b. Presentation by the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing 
Big Quick’s BBQ as the Business of the Month. 

 

mariah
Highlight



9. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the 
public objects at the time the agenda item is called.  
 
a. Approval of Task Order No. 3 with EPS Group, Inc., for construction phase 

services for the Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main Project, in an amount 
not to exceed $43,240. 

 
b. Approval of Task Order No. 4 with EPS Group, Inc., for construction phase 

services for the Diversion Dam Road improvements, in an amount not to 
exceed $99,250.   
 

c. Acceptance of public infrastructure for maintenance within the dedicated 
rights-of-way for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Units 9, 22A and 22B. 
 

d. Acceptance of Katherine Kaiser’s resignation for retirement as Town 
Magistrate, effective June 30, 2015.   

 
e. Favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor License 

and Control for the Florence Lions Club’s application for a Special Event 
Liquor License for a fundraiser to be held on April 26, 2015, at the 
McFarland State Park.  
 

f. Favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor License 
and Control for the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s application 
for a Special Event Liquor License for their First Thursday event to be held 
on May 7, 2015, at the Chamber of Commerce facility.  
 

g. Ratification of emergency repair work on Well #1, completed by Coolidge 
Engine and Pump, LLC, in the amount of $54,500.59. 
 

h. Resolution No. 1507-15:  Approval of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR 
MERRILL RANCH UNIT 53; REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF 
RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, 
INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; 
ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE 
COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER 
OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   
 

i. Resolution No. 1508-15:  Approval of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR 
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 36; REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF 
AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING 
OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; 
ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE 
COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER 
OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   
 

j. Resolution  No. 1509-15:  Approval of A RESOLUTION OF THE THE TOWN 
OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE MAP OF 
DEDICATION FOR CONSTITUTION WAY PHASE 2 AND NATIONAL WAY, 
REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT 
ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE 
SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF 
REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR 
REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 
 

k. Resolution No. 1510-15:  Approval of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE MAP OF 
DEDICATION FOR SPIRIT LOOP PHASE 4, REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF 
AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING 
OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, 
INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; 
ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE 
COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER 
OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 
 

l. Resolution  No. 1511-15:  Approval of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE RE-
SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 36-42 INCLUSIVE AND TRACT A, ANTHEM AT 
MERRILL RANCH PHASE 1A, UNIT 15; REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF 
RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, 
INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; 
ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE 
COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER 
OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   
 

m. Resolution No. 1512-15: Approval of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED OPERATING AGREEMENT WITH 
JOHNSON UTILITIES, LLC, FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER UTILITY 
SERVICES. 
 

n. Resolution No. 1513-15: Approval of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE AN AMENDED OPERATING AGREEMENT WITH 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



SOUTHWEST ENVIRONMENTAL UTILITIES, LLC, FOR WATER AND 
WASTEWATER UTILITY SERVICES. 

 
o. Resolution No. 1517-15:  Approval of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 

FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ACCEPTING NON-EXCLUSIVE 
PUBLIC ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY FROM THE FLORENCE UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT FOR THE WIDENING OF ADAMSVILLE ROAD AND RATIFYING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.  
 

p. Resolution No. 1518-15:  Approval of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING A REORGANIZATION 
OF THE PUBLIC WORKS AND UTILITIES DEPARTMENTS, CREATING A 
NEW TOWN ENGINEER DEPARTMENT, AND ADOPTING REVISIONS TO 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE POSITION CLASSIFICATION PLAN. 
 

q. Resolution No. 1519-15: Approval of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 
RATIFY THE STATE FORESTER’S COOPERATIVE FIRE RATE AGREEMENT 
AND AMENDMENTS. 

 
r. Appointment of Linda Fenstermaker to the Parks and Recreation Advisory 

Board with a term to expire December 31, 2017. 
 

s. Approval of the March 2, March 16, and March 26, 2015 Town Council 
minutes. 

 
t. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. March 12, 2015 Arts and Culture Commission minutes. 
ii. January 28, 2015 Historic District Advisory Commission minutes. 
iii. February 18, 2015 Joint-Use Library Advisory Board minutes. 
iv. January 15 and February 5, 2015 Planning and Zoning Commission 

minutes. 
 

10.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Resolution No. 1514-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR 
MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION 
REVENUE BONDS (ACADEMY OF MATH & SCIENCE – CAMELBACK 
CAMPUS PROJECT), SERIES 2015B, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $6,700,000 TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, 
CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF 
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR ACADEMY OF MATHEMATICS AND 
SCIENCE, INC. 

 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



b. Resolution No. 1515-15: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A 
RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR 
MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION 
REVENUE BONDS (ACADEMY OF MATH & SCIENCE – FLOWER CAMPUS 
PROJECT), SERIES 2015A, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
NOT TO EXCEED $6,700,000 TO FINANCE AND REFINANCE THE 
ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, IMPROVEMENT AND 
EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR ACADEMY OF 
MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE SOUTH, INC. 

c. Ratification of work performed by Arizona Beeman Drilling, for drilling of 
Well #2, in an amount not to exceed $434,745. 
 

d. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to award a contract to Visus Inc., for the 
construction of the Main Street Extension Project, in an amount not to 
exceed $239,000. 
 

e. Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to award a contract to McCain 
Construction, for construction of the Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project, in an amount not to exceed $683,549. 
 

11. MANAGER’S REPORT 

12. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
13. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 

 
14. ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  

An Executive Session will be held during the Council Meeting for legal matters 
pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(1) for the purpose of reviewing Town 
Attorney applications.  

 
15. ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED ON APRIL 16, 2015, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH 
MAIN STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT 
WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
8a. 

MEETING DATE:   April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:   Public Hearing and action on Jeffrey P.  
                     Erickson’s Liquor License application.    

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
 1st Reading  
 2nd Reading 

 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
Subject: River Bottom Grill Liquor License               Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Public hearing on an application received from Jeffrey P. Erickson, The River Bottom 
Grill, located at 2501 N. Hwy 79, Florence, Arizona, for a personal transfer of  a new 
Type 6 Liquor License, and for Council recommendation for approval or disapproval of 
said license.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Jeffrey P. Erickson, River Bottom Grill, filed an application for a new personal transfer of 
Series 6 Liquor License, with the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control, on 
March 12, 2015. 
 
The Series 6 liquor license is transferable from person to person and/or location to 
location within the same county only and allows the holder both on and off-sale retail 
privileges.  This license allows a bar retailer to sell and serve spirituous liquors to be 
consumed on the premises, in the original container for consumption on the premises. 
This retail licensee also has limited off-sale ("to go") privileges.  Liquor may be delivered 
off of the licensed premises in connection with a retail sale.  Payment must be made no 
later than the time of delivery.  The bar (series 6) liquor license may fill and sell 
"growlers". 
 
The Town Clerk’s Office posted the Notice of Public Hearing on March 31, 2015, at the 
The River Bottom Grill, located at 2501 N. Hwy 79, Florence, Arizona, according to 
statutory requirements.  Management has been notified of the April 20, 2015 public 
hearing.  
 
No written communication has been received by the Town regarding this application. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 



Subject: River Bottom Grill Liquor License               Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Town Council forward a favorable recommendation to the 
Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
  
Application 



























 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9a. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 

SUBJECT: Approval of Task Order No. 3 with EPS Group 
                   Inc., for construction phase services for Well #4 to   
                   Well #5 Transmission Main Project 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Approval of Task Order No. 3 with EPS Group                                        Meeting date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Task Order No. 3 with EPS Group Inc., for construction phase 
services for the Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main Project in an amount not to 
exceed $43,240. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This task order will allow for engineering services and construction administration 
services for the transmission main project.  The services are to include: interpretation 
and evaluation for deviations from approved design or specifications; response to 
requests for information and evaluation/approval of pay applications and construction 
observation. 
 
EPS Group, Inc. will complete this Task Order No. 3, pursuant to the Professional 
Services Agreement, between the Town of Florence and EPS Group Inc., dated March 
3, 2014.  The fee for this task order is $ 43,240. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is $43,250 available in the current Fiscal Year 2014/2015 budget for completion 
of this work. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Task Order No. 3 with EPS Group, Inc., in an amount not 
to exceed $43,240. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Task Order No. 3. 









 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9b. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 

SUBJECT: Approval of Task Order No. 4 with EPS, Group 
                   Inc. for construction phase services for Diversion     
                   Dam Road improvements 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject: Approval of Task Order No. 4 with EPS Group                                        Meeting date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve Task Order No. 4 with EPS Group Inc. for construction phase 
services for the Diversion Dam Road improvements, in an amount not to exceed 
$99,250. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This task order will allow for engineering services and construction administration 
services for the transmission main project. The services are to include: interpretation 
and evaluation for deviations from approved design or specifications; response to 
requests for information and evaluation/approval of pay applications; and construction 
observation. 
 
EPS Group, Inc. will complete this Task Order No. 4, pursuant to the Professional 
Services Agreement, between the Town of Florence and EPS Group Inc., dated March 
3, 2014. The fee for this task order is $ 99,250. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There is $99,250 available in the current Fiscal Year 2014/2015 budget for completion 
of this work (CIP T-17). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Task Order No. 4 with EPS Group, Inc., in an amount not 
to exceed $99,250. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Task Order No. 4. 





EPS Group Inc. 
April 13, 2015 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
Diversion Dam Road Improvements 

 
 

PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

 
PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS:   
 
The scope of construction work associated with this project is based on the construction 
plans and specifications prepared by Wildan for the Town of Florence dated 9-17-14.  
Construction will include the widening approximately 2640’ of Diversion Dam Road 
between SR 79 and Bowling Road.  The project will include both concrete and asphalt 
paving along with vertical curb and gutter.  No sidewalks are proposed.  In addition, 
approximately 500’ of new storm drain will be installed with associated manholes, catch 
basins, etc.  Signing, pavement marking, and street lighting are also to be installed.  In 
addition, minor irrigation pipe improvements will be constructed as part of the San Carlos 
Irrigation and Drainage District plans 
 
This project will be constructed using the Design, Bid, Build project delivery method.   
 
TASK 1 – CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION 

A. Project Control:  Complete bi-weekly weekly site visits in connection with and 
attendance to the bi-weekly construction meetings with the contractor at a 
location approved by the Town.  EPS will coordinate the meeting agenda and 
lead the meeting discussion.   

B. Construction Inspection/Observation:  Provide construction inspection 
/observation services to the Town for the duration of the roadway 
construction.   

i. EPS will provide one part-time inspector (25 hours/week) for a 210 
calendar day contract period.  The EPS inspector will support 
Town inspection staff but will be primarily responsible for the 
inspection services.   

ii. EPS will provide the Town with appropriate documentation of the 
construction progress in keeping with approved Town policies. 

iii. EPS will assist the Town in final walk through and construction 
closeout activities.  

C. Prepare/Clean up As-built plans submitted by contractor and its surveyor and 
prepare CAD drawings indicating as-built data.  This data will be drafted on 
the existing plans sheets.  Not new plan sheets will be developed. 
 

Exclusions: 
• Material Testing 
• Geotechnical Investigations 
• No public involvement coordination is anticipated 
• Evaluate and respond to any RFI’s, change order requests, and evaluate and 

recommend approval of all pay applications (to be completed by others). 

1 of 1 





 

TOWN OF FLORENCE
COUNCIL ACTION 

FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9c. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Wayne Costa, P.E.,  
                                     Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Acceptance of the Public Improvements for  
                     the Anthem @ Merrill Ranch Units 9, 22A  
                     and 22B. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Acceptance of the Public Improvements for Anthem @ Merrill Ranch Units 9, 22A and 22B 
Meeting Date:  April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to approve the acceptance of public infrastructure for maintenance into 
the Town of Florence within dedicated rights of way.  Pulte Home Corporation 
has completed the public improvements necessary for the acceptance of Units 9, 
22A and 22B (attached). 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The property is located in the Anthem at Merrill Ranch subdivision owned by 
Pulte Home Corporation with Baxter Design Group and Jack Johnson Company 
as the Engineers of Record. 
 
All improvements in the public right-of-way or easements have been constructed 
under inspection and approval of the Town Engineer/Public Works Department 
and/or utility company having jurisdiction.  The following improvements with 
regards Units 9, 22A and 22B have been completed and are subject to a one 
year warranty period prior to acceptance for maintenance; grading, paving, 
concrete, water, sewer, signing, pavement markings, and storm drain.  Street 
lighting has been completed and is subject to a two year warranty period prior to 
maintenance acceptance.  Acceptance of maintenance of these improvements 
will be by separate document at the end of the warranty period. 
 
The developer shall maintain the subdivision improvements, free from defects, 
for the warranty period and shall promptly correct any defect of which they have 
noticed or which the Town discovers, which occurs prior to the terminus of the 
warranty period from the date of the acceptance of all improvements. 
 
 
 



Subject:  Acceptance of the Public Improvements for Anthem @ Merrill Ranch Units 9, 22A and 22B 
Meeting Date:  April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Acquisition of infrastructure assets will be based upon acceptance of assets by 
the Town Council recorded as specified in the Capital Asset Policy and 
Procedure prior to acceptance for maintenance/replacement by the Town.  A 
summary of quantities for each asset will be accepted into the Town’s 
maintenance system, (excepting water/sewer utilities). 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the acceptance of the improvements prior to the start of the warranty 
period, which shall be the date of this approval. 
 
The Town Engineer has found that all of the pavement, utilities, storm sewer, 
grading/drainage improvements and all other required improvements within the 
right-of-way/easements have been constructed in accordance with the 
requirements of the Town Code and specified engineering standards. 
  
The following documentation represents the perquisite for approval including the 
delivery of required certification together with test results and as-built drawings.  
      
    Documentation 

• Town Engineer’s Certificate  
• Final Grading and Drainage As-Builts 
• Final Paving and Profile Plans 
• Final Water and Sewer Plans As-Builts 
• Water Pressure, Leak, Chlorine and Bacteria Testing 
• Sewer Pressure, Mandrel, Camera, Vacuum, Insecticide Testing 
• Material Testing Package 
• Engineers Certificates of Construction for Water and Sewer 
• ADEQ Approval of Construction for Water and Sewer 
• Fire Department Acceptance Document 
• Johnson Utilities Acceptance Document 
• Dry Utility Drawings 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Town Engineer’s Certificate 
• Unit 9 Legal Exhibit 
• Unit 22A Legal Exhibit 
• Unit 22B Legal Exhibit 

 





EXHIBIT "A"

SHEET 2 OF 3

POB



EXHIBIT "A"

SHEET 2 OF 2



EXHIBIT "A"

SHEET 2 OF 2





 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9e. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia,  
                                  Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Special Event Liquor License Application 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject: Special Event Liquor License   Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

 
Authorization to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of 
Liquor License and Control for the Florence Lions Club’s application for a Special Event 
Liquor License for a fundraiser to be held on April 26, 2015, from 6:30 pm to 8:00 pm, at 
the McFarland State Park.      
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The application has been submitted after the required time frame.  Staff has informed 
the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control that the application will be hand 
carried by the applicant. 
 
The purpose of a Special Event License is to allow charitable, civic, fraternal, political, 
or religious organizations to sell and serve spirituous liquor for consumption as a 
fundraiser.  Special event licenses may be issued for no more than a cumulative total of 
ten (10) days in a calendar year.  The fee for a Special Event License is $25 per day, 
payable to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control.  The Town Clerk’s 
Office is in possession of a $25.00 check, which will be forwarded to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses upon Council’s approval. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Application 











 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
9f. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia,  
                                  Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Special Event Liquor License Application 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 

Subject: Special Event Liquor License   Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

Authorization to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of 
Liquor License and Control for the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s 
application for a Special Event Liquor License for their First Thursday event  to be held 
on May 7, 2015, from 4:30 pm to 6:30 pm, at the Florence Chamber of Commerce 
facility.      
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The purpose of a Special Event License is to allow charitable, civic, fraternal, political, 
or religious organizations to sell and serve spirituous liquor for consumption as a 
fundraiser.  Special event licenses may be issued for no more than a cumulative total of 
ten (10) days in a calendar year.  The fee for a Special Event License is $25 per day, 
payable to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control.  The Town Clerk’s 
Office is in possession of a $25.00 check, which will be forwarded to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses upon Council’s approval. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Application 











 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9g. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Ratification of emergency repair of Well #1. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 

Subject: Ratification of Emergency Purchase for Well 1   Meeting date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2  
 

Motion to ratify emergency repair of Well #1 for work completed by Coolidge Engine and 
Pump LLC, in the amount of $54,500.59 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
  
Well #1 began to fail on March 20, 2015 when it was observed that flow was 
approximately one-half of normal.  The well failed completely on the morning of March 
28, 2015.  Well #1 is critical as it is the only well to provide service to north Florence. 
 
Staff was prepared to implement an emergency response plan should this well fail.  The 
emergency response plan included a pump around system and dismantling and 
rebuilding of the well; and contacting the Fire Department should emergency action be 
necessary. 
 
Once the well failed completely, the provisions of the emergency response plan were 
implemented.  Water Movers set up the bypass pump that afternoon.  Coolidge Engine 
and Pump, upon notification of the failure, arrived onsite Monday morning, March  30, 
2015 to pull the pump. 
 
Once the well was dismantled and could be inspected it was determined that there were 
two causes of failure.  The first cause was that the pump bowls had numerous holes; 
more than likely caused by excessive corrosion.  These “holes” caused a reduction in 
flow to half normal flow.  The second cause of failure was the shearing of the pump 
shaft.  This second failure resulted in total failure of the well. 
 
The well has been completed and returned to service. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The emergency justification form is attached, $54,500.59 will be paid from the Water 
Utility Fund. 
 



Subject: Award contract to Arizona Beeman Drilling  Meeting date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends ratification of emergency repair of Well 1. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Emergency Purchase Justification Form 
Bid Tabulation Sheet 
Quote 
 











 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9h. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1507-15: Final Plat of Merrill  
                    Ranch Unit 53 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1507-15: Merrill Ranch Unit 53 Final Plat                 Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1507-15:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR 
MERRILL RANCH UNIT 53; REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF 
RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, 
INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; 
ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE 
COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Pulte Homes requests approval of this proposed subdivision located within the Merrill 
Ranch Planned Unit Development (PUD).  This portion of the Merrill Ranch PUD is 
located directly south of the Anthem at Merrill Ranch PUD.  The Merrill Ranch PUD was 
amended in 2013 from commercial/employment to residential in order for Pulte Homes 
to expand future phases of the Parkside community into this area. 
 
This subdivision includes 172 single-family residential lots and three access points into 
the subdivision.  The north access point will connect with American Way.  The east 
access point will connect with Constitutional Way.  The south access point will connect 
to a future roadway.  The typical lot varies between 45’x115’ (5,175 square feet (SF)) 
and 65’x115’ (7,475 SF).  Lot sizes will range between 5,151 SF to 16,954 SF due to 
unit configuration.  
 
The proposed density of this subdivision is 4.1 dwelling units per acre.  This subdivision 
expands the current and planned network of green belts and walking trails for Anthem at 
Merrill Ranch with 8.4 acres dedicated to open space within the community.  



 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1507-15: Merrill Ranch Unit 53 Final Plat                 Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 

The Preliminary Plat for Unit 53 was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
on January 15, 2015.  All planned subdivision improvements have been approved by 
the Town Engineer and Fire Marshall and will be constructed to Town specifications. 
Street names and addresses have been approved by the Town’s GIS Coordinator. 
Water and sewer infrastructure will be provided by Johnson Utilities. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Pulte Homes will construct the roadways within this subdivision to Town standards.                      
The Town will maintain the roadways after the end of the construction warranty period. 
 
Development of this subdivision allows for continued rooftop development and 
population growth within the Town of Florence, which subsequently will facilitate new 
employment and commercial opportunities. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1507-15 for the Final Plat of Merrill Ranch Unit 53. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 1507-15 
Final Plat for Merrill Ranch Unit 53 



RESOLUTION NO. 1507-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR MERRILL RANCH 
UNIT 53; REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION 
TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION 
AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING 
A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; 
AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 

1.  Approve the Final Plat for Merrill Ranch Unit 53 subject to Developer/Owner's 
compliance with all applicable laws and ordinances.  
 
 2.  Require that the Developer/Owner secures its provision of the installation or 
construction of the required improvements with one of the following alternatives prior to 
execution of the plat by Town officials and employees and recordation of the Final Plat 
with the Office of the Pinal County Recorder: 
 

a. Provide an infrastructure improvement assurance in an amount of the 
full cost, as determined by the Town Engineer, of the materials and the 
installation or construction necessary to complete the subdivision 
improvements.  Said guarantee shall be in the form of a performance 
bond, an irrevocable letter of credit, or cash funds in escrow or on 
deposit with the Town prior to recording of the Final Plat.  The required 
improvements for which the guarantee is provided must be completed 
within 12 months of recordation of the Final Plat or the Town may, 
without further Council action, declare the financial guarantee to be in 
default, call on the guarantee, and require that all the improvements be 
installed; or 

 
b. At the request of the Developer/Owner, the Developer/Owner shall 

enter into an agreement which shall require completion of the required 
improvements no later than twelve months from the date this Final Plat 
is approved herein and the Town Community Development Director 
shall withhold recordation of the Final Plat in the Office of the Pinal 
County Recorder until the Town Engineer has verified such 
completion. If Developer/Owner does not complete the improvements 
within 12 months of this approval, the approval shall expire and be 
deemed withdrawn; or 

 
c. The Town of Florence may allow the Final Plat to be recorded prior to 

the completion of required subdivision improvements and without the 
provision of a financial subdivision assurance if the Town and 
subdivision homebuilder mutually agree to withhold the Certificate of 



Occupancy for all homes within the subdivision until all subdivision 
improvements are completed and accepted by the Town of Florence. 

 
 3.  Authorize execution by the Town Manager of any documentation necessary to 
provide the above-referenced infrastructure improvement assurance and/or agreement 
requiring completion of the public improvements. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 20th day of April 2015. 
 
 

 
  ______________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BASIS OF BEARING

PCR No.                            AREA (AC)       USAGE

LOCATION MAP
1" = 500'

SHEET INDEX

TRACT AREA TABLE....UNIT 53

H
U

NT

H
IG

H
W

AY

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

287 79

79

T4S
T5S

R
9E

R
8E

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

109

14151617181314

23
24 19 20 21 22 23

28302526

CENTRAL

29 27 26

GRANDE
CANAL

CASA

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

SUBJECT PROPERTY

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

PARKSIDE
COMMUNITY PARK

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 55

(PROPOSED)

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 59

(PROPOSED)

FINAL PLAT
MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 53 (TOWN OF FLORENCE, AZ)

TRACT         AREA (AC)    USAGE

30

AMERICAN  WAY

C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
T

IO
N

   
W

A
Y

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 17
(2010-016385 &

2011-082535, PCR)
SCHOOL

(FLORENCE UNIFIED
SCHOOL DISTRICT #1

(2006-007166, PCR)

CONSTITUTION   WAY (PROPOSED)

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 53

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                     Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

UTILITIES AND SERVICES

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION

OWNER/DEVELOPER
PULTE HOME CORP.

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST HALF  OF SECTION 30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZO NA

WATER AND SEWER SERVICE CERTIFICATION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

APPROVALS

GENERAL NOTES

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

SURVEYOR
BAXTER DESIGN GROUP

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 23
(2006-082256 &

2007-046686, PCR)



POB

707172737475

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90 91 92 93 94 95 96 9897

99100101102103104105

106

107

108

109

110

111 112 113 114 115 116 117 118 119 32
31

30

29

28

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

165166167168169

157158159160161162 164163

150

151152153

149148147146145

154

144143142

129 130 131 132 133 134 135

136

137

139

141

128 127 126 125 124 123 122 121 120

37

36

35

38

34

33

43
4241

40

4445464748

5051

5958575655545352

606162636465666768

AMERICAN    WAY
(CAB G SLD 147 PCR)

C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
T

IO
N

   
 W

A
Y

(P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

)

TRACT A

T
R

A
C

T
 B

T
R

A
C

T
 A TRACT C

TRACT C

TRACT D

TRACT D

TRACT D

TRACT E

T
R

A
C

T
 F

T
R

A
C

T
 G

T
R

A
C

T
 H

T
R

A
C

T
 I

T
R

A
C

T
 J

T
R

A
C

T
 K

T
R

A
C

T
 L

TRACT M

TRACT M

39

49

76

138

140

155156

170171172

TRACT M

69

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST HALF  OF SECTION 30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

  

  

M
E

R
R

IL
L 

R
A

N
C

H
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

IE
S

, L
LC

20
0-

24
-0

09
C

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 23
(2006-082256 &

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 59

(PROPOSED)

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 55

(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 17

(2010-016385 &

A
P

N
'S

  
21

1-
10

-5
62

0 
~ 

58
80

PLEASANT OAK COURT

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

 D
R

IV
E

CANDLEWOOD WAY

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
D

R
IV

E

MILLERTON WAY

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

 D
R

IV
E

SPRINGFIELD WAY

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
D

R
IV

E

SHEET 3
SHEET 5

SHEET 6

S
H

E
E

T
 5

S
H

E
E

T
 6

SHEET 4

S
H

E
E

T
 4

S
H

E
E

T
 3

G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
D

R
IV

E

SONOMA WAY

PLEASANT OAK COURT

H
ID

D
E

N
 C

A
N

Y
O

N
 D

R
IV

E
H

ID
D

E
N

 C
A

N
Y

O
N

 D
R

IV
E

MILLERTON CT.

2011-082535, PCR)

CANDLEWOOD WAY

2007-046686, PCR)

APN  211-11-089A

APN  211-12-3700

LC

21

3

SETBACKS (MIN.) 

KEY LOT DETAIL

LOT LAYOUT DETAIL

ROW

LCR
O

W

0

SCALE: 1"=
50 100 200 300

100'

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

  

  

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                     Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

"TRACT C"



A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
   

 W
A

Y
(C

A
B

 G
 S

LD
 1

47
, P

C
R

)

TRACT A

TRACT A

TRACT FTRACT H

TRACT M
TRACT B

172

171

170156

155

76

154

153

152

151

163

164

162

161

160

159

158

157

169

168

167

166

165

85 84 83 82 81 80 79 78
77

75

74

73

72

71

70

69

 MATCH SHEET 4 

 MATCH SHEET 4 

 M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

 5

 
  

 

ANTHEM AT

UNIT 23

P
LE

A
S

A
N

T
  

O
A

K
  C

O
U

R
T

S
O

N
O

M
A

  W
A

Y

GENERAL  DRIVE

PETERSBURG  DRIVE

MERRILL RANCH

(2006-082256 &

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST HALF  OF SECTION 30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 17

(2010-016385 &
2011-082535, PCR)

(2007-046686, PCR)

TRACT "C"

0

SCALE: 1"=
20 40 80 120

40'

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

  

  

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                     Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER



A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
   

 W
A

Y
(C

A
B

 G
 S

LD
 1

47
, P

C
R

)

CONSTITUTION    WAY
(PROPOSED) CONSTITUTION    WAY

(CAB G SLD 146, PCR)

TRACT C

TRACT GTRACT M

T
R

A
C

T
 B

49

68

67

66

65

64

63

62

61

60

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

51

50

48

47

46

45

44

18 17 16 15 14 13 12 11

10

9

8

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

MATCH SHEET 3
MATCH SHEET 3

M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

 6

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 55

(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 17
(2010-016385 &

P
LE

A
S

A
N

T
  

O
A

K
  C

O
U

R
T

S
O

N
O

M
A

  W
A

Y

HIDDEN  CANYON  DRIVE

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST HALF  OF SECTION 30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA

2011-082535, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 17

(2010-016385 &
2011-082535, PCR)

TRACT "C"

MATCH SHEET 5

0

SCALE: 1"=
20 40 80 120

40'

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

  

  

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                     Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER



TRACT E

TRACT K

TRACT I
TRACT H

TRACT M

TRACT M

TRACT J

T
R

A
C

T
 D

140138

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128

141139137
136

135

134

133

132

131

130

129

142

143

144

145

146

147

148

149

150

119

118

117

116

115

114

113

112

111

110
109 108 107

106

105

104

103

102

101

100

99

97

98

96

95

94

93

92

91

90

89
88

87 86

M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

 3

MATCH SHEET 6

MATCH SHEET 4

MATCH SHEET 6

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 23
(2006-082256 &

M
E

R
R

IL
L 

R
A

N
C

H
U

N
IT

 5
9

(P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

)

MERRILL RANCH PROPERTIES, LLC
200-24-009C

PETERSBURG  DRIVE

PETERSBURG  DRIVE

GENERAL  DRIVE

GENERAL  DRIVE

S
P

R
IN

G
F

I E
LD

  W
A

Y

M
IL

LE
R

T
O

N
  W

A
Y

C
A

N
D

LE
W

O
O

D
  W

A
Y

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST HALF  OF SECTION 30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA

(2007-046686, PCR)

HIDDEN  CANYON
DRIVE

0

SCALE: 1"=
20 40 80 120

40'

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

  

  

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                     Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

 3



CONSTITUTION    WAY
(PROPOSED)

TRACT M

TRACT L TRACT M

T
R

A
C

T
 D

T
R

A
C

T
 C

TRACT D

TRACT D

39
40

41

42

43

33

34

38

35

36 37

27

26
25 24 23 22 21 20 19

28

29

30

31

32

MATCH   SHEET   5

MATCH   SHEET   5

M
A

T
C

H
   

S
H

E
E

T
   

4

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 59

(PROPOSED)

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 59

(PROPOSED)

MERRILL RANCH
UNIT 55

(PROPOSED)

G
E

N
E

R
A

L  
 D

R
IV

E

M
IL

LE
R

T
O

N
  C

O
U

R
T

HIDDEN  CANYON  DRIVE

S
P

R
IN

G
F

I E
LD

  W
A

Y

SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST HALF  OF SECTION 30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA

0

SCALE: 1"=
20 40 80 120

40'

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

  

  

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                     Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER



SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST HALF  OF SECTION 30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

  

  

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                     Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

DETAIL "A" DETAIL "B" DETAIL "C"

69T
R

A
C

T
 A

70 T
R

A
C

T
 B

1 2

157 158

T
R

A
C

T
 F

DETAIL "D" DETAIL "E" DETAIL "F"

151 152

T
R

A
C

T
 H

58 59

T
R

A
C

T
 G

45 44

T
R

A
C

T
 M

17

18

TRACT C 19

20

TRACT D 42

43

T
R

A
C

T
 M

DETAIL "G" DETAIL "H" DETAIL "I"

159

153

T
R

A
C

T
 B



SITUATED WITHIN THE WEST HALF  OF SECTION 30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

  

  

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                     Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

DETAIL "J" DETAIL "K" DETAIL "L"

38

37

T
R

A
C

T
 L

115 116

T
R

A
C

T
 D

113 114

T
R

A
C

T
 E



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9i. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1508-15:  Final Plat of Anthem at  
                    Merrill Ranch Unit 36 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1508-15 Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 36 Final Plat    
Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1508-15:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR 
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 36; REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF 
RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, 
INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; 
ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE 
COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Pulte Homes requests approval of this proposed subdivision located within the Sun City 
portion of Anthem at Merrill Ranch.  This Final Plat includes 69 single-family residential 
lots with two points of ingress/egress into the subdivision.  Both access points are off of 
the main collector roadway, Spirt Loop.  The subdivision will also be connected to a 
future subdivision to the north, Unit 32, thus increasing connectivity.  The typical lot 
varies between 53’x125’ (6,625 square feet (SF)) and 65’x115’ (7,475 SF).  Overall, the 
lot sizes will range between 6,095 SF to 12,074 SF due to unit configuration. 
 
The proposed density of this subdivision is 2.95 dwelling units per acre.  This 
subdivision expands the current and planned network of green belts and walking trails 
for Anthem at Merrill Ranch with 7.33 acres dedicated to open space within the 
community.  The subdivision conforms to the project’s Planned Unit Development 
zoning.  
 
The Preliminary Plat for Unit 36 was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
on December 18, 2014.  All planned subdivision improvements have been approved by 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1508-15 Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 36 Final Plat    
Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 

the Town Engineer and Fire Marshall and will be constructed to Town specifications. 
Street names and addresses have been approved by the Town’s GIS Coordinator. 
Water and sewer infrastructure will be provided by Johnson Utilities. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Pulte Homes will construct the roadways within this subdivision to Town standards.  The 
Town will maintain the roadways after the end of the construction warranty period. 
 
Development of this subdivision allows for continued rooftop development and 
population growth within the Town of Florence, which subsequently will facilitate new 
employment and commercial opportunities. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1508-15 for the Final Plat of Anthem at Merrill Ranch 
Unit 36. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 1508-15 
Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 36 



RESOLUTION NO. 1508-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL 
RANCH UNIT 36; REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING 
OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY 
CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS.   

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 

1.  Approve the Final Plat for Anthem at Merrill Ranch Unit 36 subject to 
Developer/Owner's compliance with all applicable laws and ordinances.  
 
 2.  Require that the Developer/Owner secures its provision of the installation or 
construction of the required improvements with one of the following alternatives prior to 
execution of the plat by Town officials and employees and recordation of the Final Plat 
with the Office of the Pinal County Recorder: 
 

a. Provide an infrastructure improvement assurance in an amount of the 
full cost, as determined by the Town Engineer, of the materials and the 
installation or construction necessary to complete the subdivision 
improvements.  Said guarantee shall be in the form of a performance 
bond, an irrevocable letter of credit, or cash funds in escrow or on 
deposit with the Town prior to recording of the Final Plat.  The required 
improvements for which the guarantee is provided must be completed 
within 12 months of recordation of the Final Plat or the Town may, 
without further Council action, declare the financial guarantee to be in 
default, call on the guarantee, and require that all the improvements be 
installed; or 

 
b. At the request of the Developer/Owner, the Developer/Owner shall 

enter into an agreement which shall require completion of the required 
improvements no later than twelve months from the date this Final Plat 
is approved herein and the Town Community Development Director 
shall withhold recordation of the Final Plat in the Office of the Pinal 
County Recorder until the Town Engineer has verified such 
completion. If Developer/Owner does not complete the improvements 
within 12 months of this approval, the approval shall expire and be 
deemed withdrawn; or 

 
c. Other means of providing infrastructure improvement assurance as 

permitted by Town Resolution No. 917-05 shall be allowed. Town and 
Developer/Owner shall agree on the exact mechanisms and timing 



necessary to guarantee completion of all required infrastructure 
requirements prior to the recording of the Final Plat. The Final Plat 
approval shall expire in 12 months from this approval if the Final Plat is 
not recorded prior to said date. 

 
 3.  Authorize execution by the Town Manager of any documentation necessary to 
provide the above-referenced infrastructure improvement assurance and/or agreement 
requiring completion of the public improvements. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 20th day of April 2015. 
 

 
  ______________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                   )   ss.
COUNTY OF PINAL      )

STATE OF ARIZONA     )

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

PULTE HOME CORPORATION, A MICHIGAN CORPORATION, (HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO IN THIS PLAT AS THE
"MASTER DEVELOPER"), AS OWNER HAS SUBDIVIDED UNDER THE NAME ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH - UNIT 36,
LOCATED WITHIN SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AND HEREBY DECLARES THIS PLAT SETS FORTH THE
LOCATION AND GIVES THE DIMENSIONS OF THE LOTS, TRACTS, STREETS, AND EASEMENTS CONSTITUTING
SAME AND THAT SAID LOTS, TRACTS AND STREETS SHALL BE KNOWN BY THE NUMBER, LETTER OR NAME
GIVEN EACH RESPECTIVELY.

THE "MASTER DEVELOPER" IS THE OWNER OF FEE TITLE IN: (A) THE PROPERTY BEING DEDICATED ON THIS
PLAT TO THE PUBLIC FOR PURPOSES AND ALL INCIDENTS THERTO: AND (B) THE PROPERTY UPON OR ACROSS
WHICH EASEMENTS ARE BEING DEDICATED ON THIS PLAT TO THE PUBLIC. THE "MASTER DEVELOPER"
HEREBY WARRANTS TO TOWN OF FLORENCE, A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA, THE
TITLE TO SUCH PROPERTY AGAINST ALL PERSONS.

STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC FOR ROADWAY PURPOSES
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ACCESS, DRAINAGE, TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC UTILITIES.

THE MAINTENANCE OF LANDSCAPING WITHIN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY TO BACK OF CURB SHALL BE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION OR THE ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNER.

EASEMENTS ARE DEDICATED AS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.

AS DESIGNATED ON THIS PLAT, ONE FOOT WIDE VEHICULAR NON-ACCESS EASEMENTS PROHIBITING
VEHICULAR INGRESS AND EGRESS ARE HEREBY DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC UPON LOTS ADJACENT TO
DRAINAGE EASEMENTS, TRACTS, OR FACILITIES AND/OR ADJACENT TO ARTERIAL OR COLLECTOR STREETS.

PULTE HOME CORPORATION, A MICHIGAN CORPORATION (GRANTOR) DOES HEREBY CONVEY TO SUN CITY
ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC., AN ARIZONA NON-PROFIT CORPORATION
(GRANTEE) THE FOLLOWING REAL PROPERTY TOGETHER WITH ALL RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES APPURTENANT
THERETO, TO WIT: TRACTS A, B, C, D, E, F, & G AS DEDICATED HEREON.

NON-EXCLUSIVE DRAINAGE EASEMENTS ARE HEREBY DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC UPON, OVER, ACROSS, AND
THROUGH TRACTS A & B AND/OR THOSE AREAS DESIGNATED AS SUCH HEREON. NO USE SHALL BE
PERMITTED WITHIN THE DRAINAGE EASEMENTS WHICH WOULD PROHIBIT OR INTERFERE WITH THE DRAINAGE
USE. MAINTENANCE OF THE DRAINAGE EASEMENTS SHALL BE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE SUN CITY ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC. SHOULD THE ASSOCIATION NOT ADEQUATELY MAINTAIN THE
DRAINAGE EASEMENTS, THE GOVERNING ENTITY HAVING JURISDICTION OVER THE AREA IN WHICH THE
DRAINAGE EASEMENTS ARE LOCATED, AT ITS DISCRETION, MAY ENTER UPON AND MAINTAIN THE DRAINAGE
EASEMENTS, AND CHARGE THE HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION THE COST OF THE MAINTENANCE. ALL OTHER
EASEMENTS ARE SUBORDINATE TO THE DRAINAGE EASEMENTS.

PUBLIC UTILITY FACILITY EASEMENTS ARE HEREBY DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC UPON, OVER, UNDER, ACROSS
AND THROUGHOUT THOSE AREAS DESIGNATED AS SUCH HEREON FOR THE INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE,
REPAIR AND REMOVAL OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WATER, SEWER, GAS
ELECTRIC AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS. MAINTENANCE OF THE AREAS SUBJECT TO SUCH PUBLIC UTILITY
FACILITY EASEMENTS SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LOT OR TRACT OWNER.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

THIS _____ DAY OF ____________, 2015.

PULTE HOME CORPORATION, A MICHIGAN CORPORATION

BY ___________________________ITS__________________________

               NAME                                             TITLE

PULTE HOME CORPORATION, AS OWNER, HAS HERETO CAUSED ITS NAME TO BE AFFIXED AND THE SAME TO BE
ATTESTED BY THE SIGNATURE OF THE UNDERSIGNED OFFICER(S).

PULTE HOME CORPORATION
c/o DAN BONOW
16767 PERIMETER DRIVE, SUITE 100
SCOTTSDALE, ARIZONA 85260
PHONE: (480) 391-6003








WOOD, PATEL & ASSOCIATES, INC.
2220 S. COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE, SUITE 101
MESA, ARIZONA 85210
PHONE: (480) 834-3300
FAX: (480) 834-3320
CONTACT: SHANE D. McCLARA, P.E.


THE BASIS OF BEARING IS THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 24,
(SOUTHEAST CORNER BEING A 2" ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED RLS 21065 AND THE SOUTH
QUARTER CORNER A 2" ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED RLS 21065) TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8
EAST, OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, BEARING BEING
SOUTH 88 DEGREES 48 MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST. THE HORIZONTAL DISTANCE BETWEEN
MONUMENTS BEING 2610.56'.

1        COVER SHEET
2 INDEX MAP
3-6 PLAT SHEETS
7 S.D.T. DETAILS

ON THIS, THE _____ DAY OF _______________, 2015, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED NOTARY PUBLIC,

PERSONALLY APPEARED _________________________________________, WHO ACKNOWLEDGED HIMSELF/HERSELF TO BE THE

__________________________________ OF PULTE HOME CORPORATION, BEING DULY AUTHORIZED TO DO SO, EXECUTED THE FOREGOING

INSTRUMENT FOR THE PURPOSES THEREIN CONTAINED BY SIGNING THEIR NAMES AS OFFICER.

                    )    ss.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL.

COUNTY OF MARICOPA     )

STATE OF ARIZONA            )

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES ___________________________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC _________________________________________________________






ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 36 IS WITHIN THE SERVICE AREA OF JOHNSON UTILITIES, L.L.C., AN
ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, WHICH HAS BEEN DESIGNATED AS HAVING AN ASSURED WATER
SUPPLY PURSUANT TO A.R.S. 45-576. A COMMITMENT TO SUPPLY WATER SERVICE TO THIS PLATTED
SUBDIVISION HAS BEEN RECEIVED FROM SAID COMPANY AS EVIDENCE BY JOHNSON UTILITIES DRINKING
WATER SERVICE AGREEMENT, A COPY OF WHICH IS SUBMITTED WITH THIS PLAT. ON-SITE SANITARY
SEWER DISTRIBUTION LINES WILL BE CONSTRUCTED BY THE DEVELOPER OF THIS SUBDIVISION AND
OWNED AND MAINTAINED BY JOHNSON UTILITIES, L.L.C.

JOHNSON UTILITIES L.L.C, AN ARIZONA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

BY _________________________ITS_______________________

               NAME                            TITLE



ON THIS, THE _____ DAY OF _________________, 2015, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, PERSONALLY APPEARED

_________________________________________, WHO ACKNOWLEDGED HIMSELF/HERSELF TO BE THE PERSON

WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE INSTRUMENT WITHIN, AND WHO EXECUTED THE FORGOING INSTRUMENT

FOR THE PURPOSES THEREIN CONTAINED.

                    )    ss.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL.

COUNTY OF MARICOPA     )

STATE OF ARIZONA            )

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES___________________________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC___________________________________ DATE_____________________

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

THIS ___ DAY OF ____________, 2015.

SUN CITY ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC., AN ARIZONA NON-PROFIT CORPORATION

SUN CITY ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC., AS GRANTEE HAS HEREIN CAUSED ITS NAME TO BE AFFIXED AND
HAS EXECUTED THE CONVEYANCE OF TRACTS A, B, C, D, E, F, & G BY THE SIGNATURE OF THE UNDERSIGNED, DULY AUTHORIZED,


NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, PULTE HOME CORPORATION, A MICHIGAN CORPORATION, (COLLECTIVELY WITH SUCCESSORS AND
ASSIGNS PURSUANT TO THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, THE "OWNERS"), HEREBY RESERVE AN INTEREST IN
ANY OF THE FOREGOING REAL PROPERTY UPON WHICH WHAT WOULD BE "PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE" AS SUCH TERM IS DEFINED IN
SECTION 48-701, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES, AS AMENDED, HAS BEEN OR IS TO BE CONSTRUCTED. EXCEPT IF RELEASED PRIOR
THERETO AS HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED, SUCH INTEREST IS TO BE ACQUIRED PURSUANT TO A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, TO BE
ENTERED INTO AMONG THE OWNERS, THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA ("THE MUNICIPALITY") AND A COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT
TO BE FORMED HEREAFTER BY THE MUNICIPALITY. SUCH DISTRICT WILL ACQUIRE SUCH PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE PURSUANT TO SUCH
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. (SUCH INTEREST IS LIMITED TO ONE NECESSARY TO ACCOMMODATE THE FINANCING OF THE ACQUISITION
OF SUCH PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE (INCLUDING OF SUCH INTEREST IN SUCH REAL PROPERTY) PURSUANT TO SUCH DEVELOPMENT
AGREEMENT). SUCH INTEREST IS TO BE RELEASED UPON THE EARLIER OF THE ACQUISITION OF SUCH PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE ONLY
BY SUCH DISTRICT PURSUANT TO SUCH DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND DECEMBER 31, 2038.

ON THIS, THE _____ DAY OF _________________, 2015, BEFORE ME, THE UNDERSIGNED, PERSONALLY APPEARED

_________________________________________, WHO ACKNOWLEDGED HIMSELF/HERSELF TO BE THE PERSON

WHOSE NAME IS SUBSCRIBED TO THE INSTRUMENT WITHIN, AND WHO EXECUTED THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT

FOR THE PURPOSES THEREIN CONTAINED.

                    )    ss.
COUNTY OF MARICOPA       )

STATE OF ARIZONA              )

FOR
CONSTRUCTION


PRELIMINARY

OR RECORDING

JOB NUMBER

SHEET

DATE

CAD TECHNICIAN

CHECKED BY

SCALE
















































































COUNTY SEAL










144229

03/25/15

N.T.S.

N:
\A

MR
\20

14
\14

42
29

\S
ur

ve
y\P

lat
\42

29
F0

1.D
W

G L.E.

G.S.R.

R
OY

EV
RUS

DNALDERETSI
G E R RIOS

GABRIEL S.
48932

RTIF

EC

ETACI NO.

A..SU.AN ,OZIRA

.............edg nS i
e

a t

D

EXPIRES 12-31-17


APPROVED BY THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR AND THE TOWN ENGINEER OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE,

ARIZONA, THIS ______, DAY OF ______________, 2015.

APPROVED BY: ______________________________________________, DATE ______________

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA

APPROVED BY: ______________________________________________, DATE ______________

TOWN ENGINEER
TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA

APPROVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, THIS _____ DAY

OF _____________, 2015.

APPROVED BY: ______________________________________________, DATE ______________

MAYOR
APPROVED BY: ______________________________________________, DATE ______________

TOWN CLERK

I, GABRIEL S. RIOS, OF WOOD, PATEL & ASSOCIATES, INC. HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM A REGISTERED
LAND SURVEYOR IN THE STATE OF ARIZONA; THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT CONSISTING OF SEVEN (7) SHEETS
REPRESENTS A SURVEY OF THE PREMISES DESCRIBED AND PLATTED HEREON WAS PERFORMED BY
WOOD, PATEL & ASSOCIATES, INC., DURING THE MONTH OF JULY OF 2014; THAT THE SURVEY IS TRUE
AND COMPLETE AS SHOWN; THAT THE MONUMENTS SHOWN ACTUALLY EXIST AS SHOWN OR WILL BE SET
AS SHOWN; THAT THE POSITIONS ARE CORRECTLY SHOWN AND THE SAID MONUMENTS ARE SUFFICIENT
TO ENABLE THE SURVEY TO BE RETRACED.

GABRIEL S. RIOS
REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR  #48932
WOOD, PATEL & ASSOCIATES, INC.
2220 S. COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE, SUITE 101
MESA, ARIZONA 85210




SEE SHEET 2


SEE SHEET 3


SEE SHEET 4

BY ___________________________ITS__________________________

               NAME                                             TITLE

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I HAVE HEREUNTO SET MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL.

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES___________________________________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC___________________________________ DATE_____________________
































































A PARCEL OF LAND LYING WITHIN SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST, OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN, PINAL
COUNTY, ARIZONA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 24, A 2-INCH ALUMINUM CAP STAMPED S24 S19
S25 S30 2010 RLS 21065, FROM WHICH THE SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION, A 2-INCH ALUMINUM CAP
STAMPED S24 S25 RLS 21065, BEARS SOUTH 88°48'17" WEST (BASIS OF BEARING), A DISTANCE OF 2610.56 FEET;
THENCE ALONG THE SOUTH SECTION LINE OF SAID SECTION 24, SOUTH 88°48'17" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 1813.85 FEET;
THENCE LEAVING SAID SOUTH SECTION LINE, NORTH 01°11'43" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 2381.13 FEET, TO THE
NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SPIRIT WAY AS SHOWN ON THE MAP OF DEDICATION FOR SPIRIT WAY PHASE 3,
RECORDED IN DOC. 2009-106010, PINAL COUNTY RECORDS, (P.C.R.), THE MOST SOUTHERLY CORNER OF UNIT 22A AS
SHOWN ON THE FINAL PLAT FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH UNIT 22A, RECORDED IN DOC. 2013-029851, P.C.R, A
POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT CURVE AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, WESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 780.01 FEET, CONCAVE
SOUTHERLY, WHOSE RADIUS BEARS SOUTH 10°23'38" EAST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 08°58'43", A DISTANCE OF
122.23 FEET, TO THE CURVE'S END;
THENCE SOUTH 70°37'40" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 338.70 FEET, TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE;
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 470.00 FEET, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, THROUGH
A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 124°56'39", A DISTANCE OF 1024.92 FEET, TO THE CURVE'S END;
THENCE NORTH 15°34'19" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 321.27 FEET, TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE;
THENCE LEAVING SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, NORTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 880.00 FEET,
CONCAVE WESTERLY, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13°57'46", A DISTANCE OF 214.45 FEET, TO A POINT OF CUSP WITH A
REVERSE DIRECTION CURVE;
THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 30.00 FEET, CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY, WHOSE
RADIUS BEARS SOUTH 88°23'27" EAST, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 86°51'01", A DISTANCE OF 45.47 FEET, TO THE
CURVE'S END;
THENCE SOUTH 85°14'28" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 81.37 FEET, TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE;
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 25.00 FEET, CONCAVE NORTHWESTERLY, THROUGH A
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 90°00'00", A DISTANCE OF 39.27 FEET, TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT LINE;
THENCE SOUTH 85°14'28" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 40.00 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 04°45'32" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 31.87 FEET, TO THE BEGINNING OF A CURVE;
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 200.00 FEET, CONCAVE EASTERLY, THROUGH A CENTRAL
ANGLE OF 07°33'13", A DISTANCE OF 26.37 FEET, TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A NON-TANGENT LINE;
THENCE SOUTH 81°40'53" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 401.09 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 30°15'30" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 208.90 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 74°23'57" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 389.27 FEET, TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID UNIT 22A;
THENCE ALONG SAID WEST LINE, SOUTH 15°36'03" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 638.24 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 10°23'39" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 278.34 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 23.3573 ACRES, OR 1,017,443 SQUARE FEET OF LAND, MORE OR LESS.


















































































FOR
CONSTRUCTION


PRELIMINARY

OR RECORDING

JOB NUMBER

SHEET

DATE

CAD TECHNICIAN

CHECKED BY

SCALE
















































































COUNTY SEAL










144229

03/25/15

1"=100'

N:
\A

MR
\20

14
\14

42
29

\S
ur

ve
y\P

lat

L.E.

G.S.R.

R
OY

EV
RUS

DNALDERETSI
G E R RIOS

GABRIEL S.
48932

RTIF

EC

ETACI NO.

A..SU.AN ,OZIRA

.............edg nS i
e

a t

D

EXPIRES 12-31-17



Horz. 1 in. =         ft.

0 100 200

100

STREET

B.S.L.15
' B

.S
.L.

***
 

B.S.L.

LC

PU
FE10

'

5' MIN.*

5' MIN.*

20
' R

/W

*SIDE YARD SETBACKS: 5' MIN.

SETBACKS SHOWN ON LOTS ARE MINIMUM DISTANCES FROM THE PROPERTY LINES
FOR BUILDING  ENVELOPE BOUNDARIES & HOME CONSTRUCTION INCLUDING PATIOS
& ACCESSORY STRUCTURE UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN ON PLAT.

**FRONT YARD SETBACKS FROM PROPERTY LINE:
1. 18' MIN. SETBACK TO FACE OF GARAGE
2. 15' MIN. SETBACK TO LIVABLE, FRONT PORCH OR SIDE ENTRY GARAGE.

***REAR YARD SETBACKS: 15' MIN.

BAY WINDOWS MAY ENCROACH UP TO 3' INTO REAR YARD SETBACK

ALL LOTS ARE  SINGLE FAMILY DETACHED.

B.
S.

L. 

18
'**

15
'**

NOTES:



15
' B

.S
.L.

***
 

B.S.L.
5' MIN.*

B.
S.

L. 

18
'**

15
'**

ST
RE

ET

CL

PUFE
VARIES 20' R/W

R/W

NTS

R/
W

BUILDING
ENVELOPE

BUILDING
ENVELOPE

PU
FE10

'

11
5' 

(T
YP

.)

B.S.L.
5' MIN.*

VARIES
LS

TRACT

1) ALL-WEATHER ACCESS WILL BE PROVIDED TO ALL LOTS WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION.

2) ALL PROPOSED DWELLING UNITS SHALL BE SINGLE FAMILY, DETACHED.

3) THIS SUBDIVISION IS SUBJECT TO THE DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH.

4) PUBLIC UTILITY FACILITY EASEMENT WOULD BE LAND DEDICATED FOR INSTALLATION OF FACILITIES OVERHEAD AND UNDERGROUND, FURNISHED FOR USE BY
THE REPUBLIC. THIS TYPE OF EASEMENT MAY BE USED TO DEDICATE INGRESS TO PROPERTY, AS IN PRIVATE STREET SUBDIVISIONS. ALSO INCLUDED ARE
IMPROVEMENTS SUCH AS STREETLIGHTS, TRAFFIC SIGNALS DEVICES, SIDEWALKS, AND FLOOD CONTROL. THESE FACILITIES MAY BE OWNED AND OPERATED BY
THE MUNICIPALITY OR DULY AUTHORIZED BY STATE AND MUNICIPAL.

5) CONSTRUCTION WITHIN UTILITY EASEMENTS SHALL BE LIMITED TO UTILITIES, FENCES, AND DRIVEWAYS.

6) NO STRUCTURES OR VEGETATION OF ANY KIND THAT WOULD IMPEDE THE FLOW OF WATER THROUGH THE EASEMENTS MAY BE CONSTRUCTED, PLANTED OR
ALLOWED TO GROW WITHIN DRAINAGE EASEMENTS.

7) ONLY GROUND COVER AND BUSHES ARE ALLOWED TO BE PLANTED WITHIN EASEMENTS DEDICATED FOR THE EXCLUSIVE USE OF WATER, SANITARY SEWER,
RECLAIMED WATER OR ANY COMBINATION THEREOF. NO TREES ARE ALLOWED.

8) VISIBILITY EASEMENT RESTRICTIONS: ANY OBJECT, WALL, STRUCTURE, MOUND, OR LANDSCAPING (MATURE) OVER 24" IN HEIGHT IS NOT ALLOWED WITHIN THE
VISIBILITY EASEMENT. (SEE UPPER RIGHT FOR DETAIL).

9) ALL TRACTS THAT WILL NOT BE DEDICATED TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE AND ALL COMMON PROPERTY SHALL BE IMPROVED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PLANS
APPROVED BY THE TOWN OF FLORENCE AND ARE CONVEYED HEREON TO THE SUN CITY ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC. THE SUN
CITY ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC. SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF THE COMMON PROPERTY.

10) ALL PROPERTY LINES SHOWN INTERSECTING AN ARC ARE TO BE ASSUMED RADIAL, UNLESS NOTED AS NON-RADIAL (NR).

11) POSITIONAL TOLERANCE FOR WALLS COMMON TO TWO LOTS IS +/-1.00 FOOT FROM COMMON LOT LINE, WALLS COMMON TO A LOT AND A TRACT OR
RIGHT-OF-WAY ARE TO BE WITHIN THE WALL MAINTENANCE EASEMENT.



WATER                                  JOHNSON UTILITIES COMPANY, LLC
SEWER                                  JOHNSON UTILITIES COMPANY, LLC
ELECTRIC                                  ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE (APS)
TELEPHONE                            CENTURYLINK COMMUNICATIONS
SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL                             TOWN OF FLORENCE
CABLE TV                                                  COX COMMUNICATIONS
NATURAL GAS                                                     SOUTHWEST GAS
POLICE                                                           TOWN OF FLORENCE
FIRE & AMBULANCE                                      TOWN OF FLORENCE
SCHOOLS                        FLORENCE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT



21'X21' UNOBSTRUCTED VIEW
TRIANGLE TOWN OF FLORENCE
ZONING ORD. SECT.4-551(2)
33'X33' AT THE INTERSECTION OF
COLLECTOR/ARTERIAL AND/OR
COLLECTOR/COLLECTOR STREETS.





























































SURVEY MONUMENT FOUND AS NOTED
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
SET MONUMENT W/RLS TAG OR CAP
CORNER OF THIS SUBDIVISION

FOR
CONSTRUCTION


PRELIMINARY

OR RECORDING

JOB NUMBER

SHEET

DATE

CAD TECHNICIAN

CHECKED BY

SCALE
















































































COUNTY SEAL










144229

03/25/15

1"=40'

N:
\A

MR
\20

14
\14

42
29

\S
ur

ve
y\P

lat

L.E.

G.S.R.

R
OY

EV
RUS

DNALDERETSI
G E R RIOS

GABRIEL S.
48932

RTIF

EC

ETACI NO.

A..SU.AN ,OZIRA

.............edg nS i
e

a t

D

EXPIRES 12-31-17



Horz. 1 in. =         ft.

0 40 80

40

FOUNDFD.

R/W RIGHT-OF-WAY
EXISTINGEX.

P.U.F.E. PUBLIC UTILITY AND FACILITIES EASEMENT

VNAE VEHICULAR NON-ACCESS EASEMENT

EASEMENT LINE AS NOTED
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
SECTION LINE
CENTER LINE

BOUNDARY LINE
LOT LINE

SEWER EASEMENTS.E.
VISIBILITY TRIANGLE EASEMENTV.T.E.

EASEMENTESMT.

P.C.R. PINAL COUNTY RECORDS

BRASS CAP TO BE SET BY CONTRACTOR
AT TIME OF CONSTRUCTION

DOCUMENTDOC.

SIGHT DISTANCE TRIANGLES.D.T.


TRACT NO. SQ. FT. ACRES USE

A 80,871 1.85

B 227,640 5.23

C 2,080 0.05

D 2,129 0.05

EXISTING ZONING



PROPOSED ZONING

TOTAL NUMBER OF LOTS

TOTAL GROSS AREA

DENSITY

OPEN SPACE

PERCENTAGE OF OPEN SPACE

SQ.FT. AC23.36

SQ.FT. AC319,243

1,017,428

2.95 DU/NET AC

7.33

PUD R-1

PUD R-1 (100% OF LOTS)

69

E 2,926 0.07

F 2,131 0.05

G 1,466 0.03

OPEN SPACE, RETENTION, L.S.E., D.E., P.A.E.

OPEN SPACE, RETENTION, L.S.E., D.E., P.A.E.

OPEN SPACE, L.S.E.

OPEN SPACE, L.S.E.

OPEN SPACE, L.S.E.

OPEN SPACE, L.S.E.

TOTAL NET AREA SQ.FT. AC23.361,017,428

LOT SETBACKS FRONT - 18' GARAGE, 15' LIVABLE

TOTAL 319,243 7.33

GENERAL PLAN CLASSIFICATION MPC

REAR - 15'
SIDE - 5'

31.38%

OPEN SPACE, L.S.E.

LANDSCAPE EASEMENTL.S.E.

DRAINAGE EASEMENTD.E.

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENTP.A.E.






















SEE SHEET 3

FOR
CONSTRUCTION


PRELIMINARY

OR RECORDING

JOB NUMBER

SHEET

DATE

CAD TECHNICIAN

CHECKED BY

SCALE
















































































COUNTY SEAL










144229

03/25/15

1"=40'

N:
\A

MR
\20

14
\14

42
29

\S
ur

ve
y\P

lat

L.E.

G.S.R.

R
OY

EV
RUS

DNALDERETSI
G E R RIOS

GABRIEL S.
48932

RTIF

EC

ETACI NO.

A..SU.AN ,OZIRA

.............edg nS i
e

a t

D

EXPIRES 12-31-17



Horz. 1 in. =         ft.

0 40 80

40


LOT NO. SQ. FT. ACRES

1 7,086 0.16

2 6,882 0.16

3 6,351 0.15

4 6,095 0.14

5 6,095 0.14

6 6,095 0.14

7 7,475 0.17

8

9

10 7,475 0.17

11

12

13

14

15

16 10,054 0.23

17 10,540 0.24

18 7,756 0.18

19 7,475 0.17

20 7,475 0.17

21 9,817 0.23

22 11,094 0.26

23 12,030 0.28

24 9,877 0.23

25 7,814 0.18

26 7,655 0.18

27 8,650 0.20

28 8,637 0.20

29 8,170 0.19

30 7,650 0.18

31 8,078 0.19

32 8,222 0.19

33 7,596 0.17

34 7,482 0.17

7,475 0.17

7,475 0.17

7,475 0.17

8,466 0.19

11,889 0.27

12,074 0.28

10,799 0.25

LOT NO. SQ. FT. ACRES

36 7,914 0.18

37

38 8,261 0.19

39 8,050 0.18

40

41

42 8,073 0.19

43 8,773 0.20

44 8,026 0.19

9,124 0.21

8,050 0.18

8,050 0.18

45 7,770 0.18

46 6,729 0.15

47 6,755 0.16

48 6,796 0.16

49

50

51 6,670 0.15

52 6,742 0.15

53 6,618 0.15

54 6,988 0.16

55 8,272 0.19

56 8,387 0.19

57 7,758 0.18

58

59

60

61

62 6,625 0.15

63 6,537 0.15

64 8,977 0.21

65 10,258 0.24

66 7,381 0.17

67 6,625 0.15

6,670 0.15

6,670 0.15

6,625 0.15

6,625 0.15

6,625 0.15

6,625 0.15

68 6,625 0.15

69 6,625 0.15

TOTAL 546,060 12.53

ALL LOTS ARE PUD R-1

35 7,482 0.17

AVERAGE 7,914 0.18

SURVEY MONUMENT FOUND AS NOTED
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
SET MONUMENT W/RLS TAG OR CAP
CORNER OF THIS SUBDIVISION

FOUNDFD.

R/W RIGHT-OF-WAY
EXISTINGEX.

P.U.F.E. PUBLIC UTILITY AND FACILITIES EASEMENT

VNAE VEHICULAR NON-ACCESS EASEMENT

SEWER EASEMENTS.E.
VISIBILITY TRIANGLE EASEMENTV.T.E.

EASEMENTESMT.

P.C.R. PINAL COUNTY RECORDS

BRASS CAP TO BE SET BY CONTRACTOR
AT TIME OF CONSTRUCTION

DOCUMENTDOC.

SIGHT DISTANCE TRIANGLES.D.T.

EASEMENT LINE AS NOTED
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
SECTION LINE
CENTER LINE

BOUNDARY LINE
LOT LINE

LANDSCAPE EASEMENTL.S.E.

DRAINAGE EASEMENTD.E.

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENTP.A.E.






















SEE SHEET 3

FOR
CONSTRUCTION


PRELIMINARY

OR RECORDING

JOB NUMBER

SHEET

DATE

CAD TECHNICIAN

CHECKED BY

SCALE
















































































COUNTY SEAL










144229

03/25/15

1"=40'

N:
\A

MR
\20

14
\14

42
29

\S
ur

ve
y\P

lat

L.E.

G.S.R.

R
OY

EV
RUS

DNALDERETSI
G E R RIOS

GABRIEL S.
48932

RTIF

EC

ETACI NO.

A..SU.AN ,OZIRA

.............edg nS i
e

a t

D

EXPIRES 12-31-17



Horz. 1 in. =         ft.

0 40 80

40

SURVEY MONUMENT FOUND AS NOTED
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
SET MONUMENT W/RLS TAG OR CAP
CORNER OF THIS SUBDIVISION

FOUNDFD.

R/W RIGHT-OF-WAY
EXISTINGEX.

P.U.F.E. PUBLIC UTILITY AND FACILITIES EASEMENT

VNAE VEHICULAR NON-ACCESS EASEMENT

SEWER EASEMENTS.E.
VISIBILITY TRIANGLE EASEMENTV.T.E.

EASEMENTESMT.

P.C.R. PINAL COUNTY RECORDS

BRASS CAP TO BE SET BY CONTRACTOR
AT TIME OF CONSTRUCTION

DOCUMENTDOC.

SIGHT DISTANCE TRIANGLES.D.T.

EASEMENT LINE AS NOTED
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
SECTION LINE
CENTER LINE

BOUNDARY LINE
LOT LINE

LANDSCAPE EASEMENTL.S.E.

DRAINAGE EASEMENTD.E.

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENTP.A.E.





















SEE SHEET 3

FOR
CONSTRUCTION


PRELIMINARY

OR RECORDING

JOB NUMBER

SHEET

DATE

CAD TECHNICIAN

CHECKED BY

SCALE
















































































COUNTY SEAL










144229

03/25/15

1"=40'

N:
\A

MR
\20

14
\14

42
29

\S
ur

ve
y\P

lat

L.E.

G.S.R.

R
OY

EV
RUS

DNALDERETSI
G E R RIOS

GABRIEL S.
48932

RTIF

EC

ETACI NO.

A..SU.AN ,OZIRA

.............edg nS i
e

a t

D

EXPIRES 12-31-17



Horz. 1 in. =         ft.

0 40 80

40

SURVEY MONUMENT FOUND AS NOTED
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
SET MONUMENT W/RLS TAG OR CAP
CORNER OF THIS SUBDIVISION

FOUNDFD.

R/W RIGHT-OF-WAY
EXISTINGEX.

P.U.F.E. PUBLIC UTILITY AND FACILITIES EASEMENT

VNAE VEHICULAR NON-ACCESS EASEMENT

SEWER EASEMENTS.E.
VISIBILITY TRIANGLE EASEMENTV.T.E.

EASEMENTESMT.

P.C.R. PINAL COUNTY RECORDS

BRASS CAP TO BE SET BY CONTRACTOR
AT TIME OF CONSTRUCTION

DOCUMENTDOC.

SIGHT DISTANCE TRIANGLES.D.T.

EASEMENT LINE AS NOTED
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
SECTION LINE
CENTER LINE

BOUNDARY LINE
LOT LINE

LANDSCAPE EASEMENTL.S.E.

DRAINAGE EASEMENTD.E.

PEDESTRIAN ACCESS EASEMENTP.A.E.



FOR
CONSTRUCTION


PRELIMINARY

OR RECORDING

JOB NUMBER

SHEET

DATE

CAD TECHNICIAN

CHECKED BY

SCALE
















































































COUNTY SEAL










144229

03/25/15

1"=20'

N:
\A

MR
\20

14
\14

42
29

\S
ur

ve
y\P

lat

L.E.

G.S.R.

R
OY

EV
RUS

DNALDERETSI
G E R RIOS

GABRIEL S.
48932

RTIF

EC

ETACI NO.

A..SU.AN ,OZIRA

.............edg nS i
e

a t

D

EXPIRES 12-31-17


SCALE 1"=20'


SCALE 1"=20'


SCALE 1"=20'


SCALE 1"=20'


SCALE 1"=20'






















 







































































































































  




















 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9j. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP,  

Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1509-15:  Merrill Ranch  
                    Constitution Way Phase 2 and National Way Map 
                    of Dedication 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 
Subject:  Resolution No. 1509-15: Constitution Way Phase 2 and National Way Map of Dedication 
Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1509-15:   A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE MAP OF DEDICATION 
FOR CONSTITUTION WAY PHASE 2 AND NATIONAL WAY, REQUIRING THE 
PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR 
WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY 
CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS 
TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER 
OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Pulte Homes is requesting approval of this Map of Dedication. Constitution Way and 
National Way are both defined as a major collector roadways, each having an 80-foot 
right-of-way.  These roadways will provide connectivity from the Anthem at Merrill 
Ranch Parkside community to the first phases of Merrill Ranch.  National Way provides 
convenient connectively to Felix Road and Constitution Way connects to Merrill Ranch 
Parkway, which in turn connects to both Hunt Highway and Felix Road.  Constitution 
Way improvements are expected to be completed by 2016 and National Way 
improvements will extend eastward to Felix Road in two phases by 2019 (sooner based 
on the rate of development).  
 
It is noted that these planned roadway dedications and improvements are directly 
correlated with Pulte’s plans to develop Merrill Ranch Unit 53, which is within the Merrill 
Ranch PUD, but was recently incorporated into the Anthem at Merrill Ranch master 
planned community.  
 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1509-15: Constitution Way Phase 2 and National Way Map of Dedication 
Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Pulte Homes will construct the roadways to Town standards. The Town will maintain the 
roadways after the end of the construction warranty periods. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1509-15 for the Merrill Ranch Constitution Way Phase 2 
and National Way Map of Dedication located within the Merrill Ranch development. 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1509-15 
Constitution Way Phase 2 and National Way Map of Dedication 



RESOLUTION NO. 1509-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE MAP OF DEDICATION FOR 
CONSTITUTION WAY PHASE 2 AND NATIONAL WAY, REQUIRING 
THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT 
ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE 
THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND 
DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A 
DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; 
AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 

1. Approve the Map of Dedication for Constitution Way Phase 2 and National 
Way subject to Developer/Owner's compliance with all applicable laws and 
ordinances.  

 
2. Require that the Developer/Owner secures its provision of the installation 

or construction of the required improvements with one of the following 
alternatives prior to execution of the plat by Town officials and employees 
and recordation of the Map of Dedication with the Office of the Pinal 
County Recorder: 

 
a. Provide an infrastructure assurance in an amount of the full cost, as 

determined by the Town Engineer, of the materials and the 
installation or construction necessary to complete the roadway 
improvements.  Said guarantee shall be in the form of a performance 
bond, an irrevocable letter of credit, or cash funds in escrow or on 
deposit with the Town prior to recording of the Map of Dedication.  
The required improvements for which the guarantee is provided must 
be completed in accordance with the construction schedule approved 
by the Town Engineer or the Town may, without further Council 
action, declare the financial guarantee to be in default, call on the 
guarantee, and require that all the improvements be installed; or 

 
b. At the request of the Developer/Owner, the Developer/Owner shall 

enter into an agreement which shall require completion of the 
required improvements no later than twelve months from the date this 
Map of Dedication is approved herein and the Town Community 
Development Director shall withhold recordation of the map of 
dedication in the Office of the Pinal County Recorder until the Town 
Engineer has verified such completion. If Developer/Owner does not 
complete the improvements within 12 months of this approval, the 
approval shall expire and be deemed withdrawn. 

 



 
3. Authorize execution by the Town Manager of any documentation necessary 

to provide the above-referenced financial guarantee and/or agreement 
requiring completion of the public improvements. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 20th day of April 2015. 
 

 
  ______________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 
 
 
 
 
 



LOCATION MAP
1" = 2000'

MAP OF DEDICATION
CONSTITUTION WAY-PHASE 2
AND NATIONAL WAY

SHEET INDEX

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

PULTE HOME CORP.
OWNER / DEVELOPER

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION

BASIS OF BEARING

DEDICATION

SUBJECT
ROADWAY

SITUATED WITHIN SECTION  30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST,

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE , PINAL COUNTY,  ARIZONA

SITUATED WITHIN SECTION 30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST OF
THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA

18 17

24

25 29

20

30

19

R
9E

R
8E

SUBJECT
ROADWAY

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

DEDICATION

SURVEYOR
BAXTER DESIGN GROUP

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

DEDICATION

H
U

NT

H
IG

H
W

AY

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

287 79

79

T4S
T5S

R
9E

R
8E

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

109

14151617181314

23 24
19 20 21 22 23

28302526

CENTRAL

29 27 26

GRANDE
CANAL

CASA

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

SWVP-GTIS MR, LLC
OWNER / DEVELOPER

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

APPROVALS

CONSTITUTION WAY, PHS. 2
AND NATIONAL WAY
 MAP OF DEDICATION



LINE LEGEND

  

  

SYMBOL LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

0

SCALE: 1"=300'
900'600'300'150'

SITUATED WITHIN SECTION 30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST,

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE , PINAL COUNTY,  ARIZONA

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

S
H

E
E

T
 3

S
H

E
E

T
 3

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

(U
P

P
E

R
)

(L
O

W
E

R
)

SHEET 4
(UPPER)

SHEET 4
(LOWER)

SHEET 5
(UPPER)

CONSTITUTION WAY, PHS. 2
AND NATIONAL WAY
 MAP OF DEDICATION



LINE LEGEND

  

  

SYMBOL LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

M
A

T
C

H
 L

O
W

E
R

 L
E

F
T

0

SCALE: 1"= 40'
120'80'40'20'

SITUATED WITHIN SECTION 30,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST,

OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,
TOWN OF FLORENCE , PINAL COUNTY,  ARIZONA

MATCH SHEET 4

M
A

T
C

H
 U

P
P

E
R

 R
IG

H
T

0

SCALE: 1"= 40'
120'80'40'20'

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

CONSTITUTION WAY, PHS. 2
AND NATIONAL WAY
 MAP OF DEDICATION



LINE LEGEND

  

  

SYMBOL LEGEND

M
A

T
C

H
 L

O
W

E
R

 L
E

F
T

ABBREVIATIONS
SITUATED WITHIN SECTION 30,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST,
OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,

TOWN OF FLORENCE , PINAL COUNTY,  ARIZONA

M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

 5

M
A

T
C

H
 U

P
P

E
R

 R
IG

H
T

M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

 3
0

SCALE: 1"= 40'
120'80'40'20'

0

SCALE: 1"= 40'
120'80'40'20'

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

CONSTITUTION WAY, PHS. 2
AND NATIONAL WAY
 MAP OF DEDICATION



LINE LEGEND

  

  

SYMBOL LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS
SITUATED WITHIN SECTION 30,

TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST,
OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN,

TOWN OF FLORENCE , PINAL COUNTY,  ARIZONA

M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

 4

0

SCALE: 1"= 40'
120'80'40'20'

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

CONSTITUTION WAY, PHS. 2
AND NATIONAL WAY
 MAP OF DEDICATION



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9k. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP,  
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1510-15:  Anthem at Merrill  
                    Ranch Spirit Loop Phase 4 Map of Dedication  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Spirit Loop Phase 4 Map of Dedication                                              Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1510-15: A RESOLUTION OF THE THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE MAP OF DEDICATION 
FOR SPIRIT LOOP PHASE 4, REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF 
RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, 
INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; 
ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE 
COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Pulte Homes is requesting approval of this Map of Dedication. Spirt Loop is defined as a 
major collector roadway within the Anthem at Merrill Ranch master planned community. 
Consistent with existing portions of this loop roadway, this planned roadway will have a 
right-of-way width of 80 feet.  This portion of the loop roadway will connect to previous 
phases of Spirit Loop, which will in turn finish the loop that connects to Sun City 
Boulevard.  Sun City Boulevard in turn connects to Merrill Ranch Parkway, which 
provides connectivity to Hunt Highway and Felix Road. 
 
Pulte Homes plans on completing the entire length of Spirt Loop by 2017 in order to 
support new development and increasing traffic demands within the Sun City 
community.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Pulte Homes will construct the roadway to Town standards. The Town will maintain the 
roadway after the end of the construction warranty period. 
 
 



Subject:  Spirit Loop Phase 4 Map of Dedication                                              Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1510-15 for the Spirt Loop Phase 4 Map of Dedication 
located within the Anthem at Merrill Ranch development. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1510-15 
Sprit Loop Phase 4 Map of Dedication  



RESOLUTION NO. 1510-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE MAP OF DEDICATION FOR SPIRIT 
LOOP PHASE 4, REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING 
OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY 
CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS. 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 

1. Approve the Map of Dedication for Spirt Loop Phase 4 subject to 
Developer/Owner's compliance with all applicable laws and ordinances.  

 
2. Require that the Developer/Owner secures its provision of the installation 

or construction of the required improvements with one of the following 
alternatives prior to execution of the plat by Town officials and employees 
and recordation of the Map of Dedication with the Office of the Pinal 
County Recorder: 

 
a. Provide an infrastructure assurance in an amount of the full cost, as 

determined by the Town Engineer, of the materials and the 
installation or construction necessary to complete the roadway 
improvements.  Said guarantee shall be in the form of a performance 
bond, an irrevocable letter of credit, or cash funds in escrow or on 
deposit with the Town prior to recording of the Map of Dedication.  
The required improvements for which the guarantee is provided must 
be completed in accordance with the construction schedule approved 
by the Town Engineer or the Town may, without further Council 
action, declare the financial guarantee to be in default, call on the 
guarantee, and require that all the improvements be installed; or 

 
b. At the request of the Developer/Owner, the Developer/Owner shall 

enter into an agreement which shall require completion of the 
required improvements no later than 12 months from the date this 
Map of Dedication is approved herein and the Town Community 
Development Director shall withhold recordation of the Map of 
Dedication in the Office of the Pinal County Recorder until the Town 
Engineer has verified such completion.  If Developer/Owner does not 
complete the improvements within 12 months of this approval, the 
approval shall expire and be deemed withdrawn. 



3. Authorize execution by the Town Manager of any documentation necessary 
to provide the above-referenced financial guarantee and/or agreement 
requiring completion of the public improvements. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 20th day of April 2015. 
 
 

 
  ______________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 
 
 
 
 
 



MAP OF DEDICATION
SPIRIT LOOP PHASE 4

SHEET INDEX

PCR No.                                  AREA (AC)                         USAGE

BASIS OF BEARING

DEDICATION

SUBJECT
ROADWAY

SITUATED WITHIN NORTH HALF OF SECTION 24,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST AND THE

NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 4
SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST  OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER

MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, TOWN OF FLORENCE ,
ARIZONA

SITUATED WITHIN THE NORTH HALF OF SECTION 24,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST AND THE NORTHWEST
QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST
OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY,
TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA

R
9E

R
8E

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION

LOCATION MAP
1" = 600'

H
U

N
T

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 P
H

S
 1  &

 3

(C
A

B
 G

,  S
LD

 1
41

,  P
C

R
)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 20
(2009-117882 PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 40
(2009-025125 PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 36
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 38
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 34
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 30
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 24
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 18
(2010-016384 PCR)
(2010-087672 PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 16
(PROPOSED)

SPIRIT LOOP

SPIRIT LOOP

SUBJECT
ROADWAY

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

SURVEYOR
BAXTER DESIGN GROUP

PULTE HOME CORP.
DEVELOPER / OWNER

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

24

HOSPITAL SITE
(BOOK 23, PAGE 015, PCR)

H
U

NT

H
IG

H
W

AY

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

287 79

79

T4S
T5S

R
9E

R
8E

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

109

14151617181314

23 24
19 20 21 22 23

2830
2526

CENTRAL

29 27 26

GRANDE
CANAL

CASA

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 22B
(2013-050759 PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 22A
(2013-029851 PCR)

APPROVALS

SPIRIT WAY, PHASE 2
(2008-118707 PCR)

KNOWN AS

SPIRIT LOOP
(2015-011080 PCR)

SPIRIT WAY, PHASE 3
(2009-106010 PCR)

KNOWN AS

SPIRIT LOOP
(2015-011080 PCR)

SPIRIT WAY, PHASE 1
(2008-054211 PCR)

KNOWN AS

SPIRIT LOOP
(2015-011080 PCR)



LINE LEGEND

  

  

SYMBOL LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

0

SCALE: 1"=300'
900'600'300'150'

SITUATED WITHIN NORTH HALF OF SECTION 24,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST AND THE

NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 4
SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST  OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER

MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, TOWN OF FLORENCE ,
ARIZONA

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 10
(2006-129237 PCR)

ANTHEM AT
 MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 8
(2006-113859 PCR)

ANTHEM AT
 MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 6
(2006-005781,

2007-046685 PCR)

SU
N

 C
IT

Y 
BO

U
LE

V
AR

D

(2
00

6-
17

18
05

 P
C

R
)

MERRILL RANCH PARKWAY
(2006-166149 PCR)

H
U

N
T

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 P
H

S
 1 &

 3

(C
A

B
 G

, S
LD

 141, P
C

R
)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 20
(2009-117882 PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 40
(2009-025125 PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 36
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 38
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 34
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 30
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 24
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 18
(2010-016384 PCR)
(2010-087672 PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 16
(PROPOSED)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 12
(2006-129238 PCR)

HOSPITAL SITE (BOOK 23,
PAGE 015, PCR)

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 22B
(2013-050759 PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 22A
(2013-029851 PCR)

SPIRIT WAY, PHASE 2
(2008-118707 PCR)

KNOWN AS

SPIRIT LOOP
(2015-011080 PCR)

SPIRIT WAY, PHASE 3
(2009-106010 PCR)

KNOWN AS

SPIRIT LOOP
(2015-011080 PCR)

SPIRIT WAY, PHASE 1
(2008-054211 PCR)

KNOWN AS

SPIRIT LOOP
(2015-011080 PCR)



LINE LEGEND

  

  

SYMBOL LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

M
A

T
C

H
 LO

W
E

R
 LE

F
T

0

SCALE: 1"= 40'
120'80'40'20'

M
ATCH UPPER RIG

HT

M
A

TC
H

 S
H

E
E

T 4

0

SCALE: 1"= 40'
120'80'40'20'

SITUATED WITHIN NORTH HALF OF SECTION 24,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST AND THE

NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 4
SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST  OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER

MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, TOWN OF FLORENCE ,
ARIZONA

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER



LINE LEGEND

  

  

SYMBOL LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

0

SCALE: 1"= 40'
120'80'40'20'

0

SCALE: 1"= 40'
120'80'40'20'

M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

 3

SITUATED WITHIN NORTH HALF OF SECTION 24,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST AND THE

NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 4
SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST  OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER

MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, TOWN OF FLORENCE ,
ARIZONA

M
A

T
C

H
 LO

W
E

R
 LE

F
T

M
A

TC
H

 U
P

P
E

R
 R

IG
H

T

M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

 5

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER



LINE LEGEND

  

  

SYMBOL LEGEND

ABBREVIATIONS

0

SCALE: 1"= 40'
120'80'40'20'

M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

 4

SITUATED WITHIN NORTH HALF OF SECTION 24,
TOWNSHIP 4 SOUTH, RANGE 8 EAST AND THE

NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 19, TOWNSHIP 4
SOUTH, RANGE 9 EAST  OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER

MERIDIAN, PINAL COUNTY, TOWN OF FLORENCE ,
ARIZONA

DETAIL "A"

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                      Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9l. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1511-15:  Re-Subdivision of Lots  
                    36-42 Inclusive and Tract A, Anthem at Merrill  
                    Ranch Phase 1A, Unit 15 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1511-15 Anthem at Merrill Ranch, Unit 15 Re-Subdivision 
Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1511-15: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING THE RE-SUBDIVISION OF 
LOTS 36-42 INCLUSIVE AND TRACT A, ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH PHASE 1A, 
UNIT 15; REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT 
ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION TO SECURE THE 
SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION AND DEDICATION OF 
REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED 
IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE 
TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Pulte Homes requests approval of this re-subdivision located within the Parkside portion 
of the Anthem at Merrill Ranch development. The subject site is located south of Merrill 
Ranch Parkway and east of Constitution Way.  
 
At the inception of the Anthem at Merrill Ranch project, Unit 15 was used as a sales 
center and model home park for the homes being built in the Parkside portion of the 
master planned community. The original sales center was relocated and the initial 
model homes were sold. Pulte Homes later developed a new model home complex that 
exists within this subdivision today. The original Final Plat for Unit 15 was approved in 
2007 and later re-subdivided in 2011. The current re-subdivision only impacts a small 
area of Unit 15 in order to adjust lots lines to meet existing infrastructure and utility 
configurations. This change does result in a loss or increase of lots with Unit 15. 
 
The re-subdivision conforms to the project’s Planned Unit Development zoning. All 
planned subdivision improvements have been approved by the Town Engineer and Fire 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1511-15 Anthem at Merrill Ranch, Unit 15 Re-Subdivision 
Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Marshall and will be constructed to Town specifications. Street names and addresses 
have been approved by the Town’s GIS Coordinator. Water and sewer infrastructure will 
be provided by Johnson Utilities. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Pulte Homes has constructed the roadways within this subdivision to Town standards. 
The subject area has yet to be turned over to the Town because of the existing model 
home complex. The Town will maintain the roadways after the end of the construction 
warranty period. 
 
Development of this subdivision allows for continued rooftop development and 
population growth within the Town of Florence, which subsequently will facilitate new 
employment and commercial opportunities. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1511-15 for the Re-Subdivision of Lots 36-42 Inclusive 
and Tract A, Anthem at Merrill Ranch Phase 1A, Unit 15. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 1511-15 
Re-Subdivision Plat 



RESOLUTION NO. 1511-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING THE RE-SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 36-42 
INCLUSIVE AND TRACT A, ANTHEM AT MERRILL RANCH PHASE 
1A, UNIT 15; REQUIRING THE PROVISION OF AN INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENT ASSURANCE OR WITHHOLDING OF RECORDATION 
TO SECURE THE SATISFACTORY CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION 
AND DEDICATION OF REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS; ESTABLISHING 
A DEADLINE FOR REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS TO BE COMPLETED; 
AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN MANAGER OF 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.   

 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 

1.  Approve the Re-Subdivision of Lots 36-42 Inclusive and Tract A, Anthem at 
Merrill Ranch Phase 1A, Unit 15 subject to Developer/Owner's compliance with all 
applicable laws and ordinances.  
 
 2.  Require that the Developer/Owner secures its provision of the installation or 
construction of the required improvements with one of the following alternatives prior to 
execution of the plat by Town officials and employees and recordation of the re-
subdivision with the Office of the Pinal County Recorder: 
 

a. Provide an infrastructure improvement assurance in an amount of the 
full cost, as determined by the Town Engineer, of the materials and the 
installation or construction necessary to complete the re-subdivision 
improvements.  Said guarantee shall be in the form of a performance 
bond, an irrevocable letter of credit, or cash funds in escrow or on 
deposit with the Town prior to recording of the re-subdivision.  The 
required improvements for which the guarantee is provided must be 
completed within 12 months of recordation of the re-subdivision or the 
Town may, without further Council action, declare the financial 
guarantee to be in default, call on the guarantee, and require that all 
the improvements be installed; or 

 
b. At the request of the Developer/Owner, the Developer/Owner shall 

enter into an agreement which shall require completion of the required 
improvements no later than twelve months from the date this re-
subdivision is approved herein and the Town Community Development 
Director shall withhold recordation of the re-subdivision in the Office of 
the Pinal County Recorder until the Town Engineer has verified such 
completion. If Developer/Owner does not complete the improvements 
within 12 months of this approval, the approval shall expire and be 
deemed withdrawn; or 

 
c. Other means of providing infrastructure improvement assurance as 

permitted by Town Resolution No. 917-05 shall be allowed. Town and 



Developer/Owner shall agree on the exact mechanisms and timing 
necessary to guarantee completion of all required infrastructure 
requirements prior to the recording of the re-subdivision. The re-
subdivision approval shall expire in 12 months from this approval if the 
re-subdivision is not recorded prior to said date. 

 
 3.  Authorize execution by the Town Manager of any documentation necessary to 
provide the above-referenced infrastructure improvement assurance and/or agreement 
requiring completion of the public improvements. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 20th day of April 2015. 
 

 
  ______________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SHEET INDEX

GENERAL NOTES

WATER AND SEWER SERVICE CERTIFICATION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

APPROVALS

MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

PULTE HOME CORP.
DEVELOPER / OWNER

SURVEYOR
BAXTER DESIGN GROUP

UTILITIES AND SERVICES

BASIS OF BEARING

AT MERRILL RANCH

OWNER

COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC.

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION

HOA-ANTHEM PARKSIDE

TRACT AREA TABLE....UNIT 15
TRACT         AREA (AC)    USAGE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

LOCATION MAP
1" = 500'

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

SUBJECT PROPERTY

H
U

NT

H
IG

HW
AY

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

287 79

79

T4S
T5S

R
9E

R
8E

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

109

14151617181314

23
24 19

20 21 22 23

28302526

CENTRAL

29 27 26

GRANDE
CANAL

CASA

TOWN OF
FLORENCE

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

PARKSIDE COMMUNITY

19

25

R
8E

R
9E

30
24

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 8
(2006-113859, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 6
(2006-005781, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 4
(2005-174446, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 13
(2006-082255, PCR)

ANTHEM AT
MERRILL RANCH

UNIT 17
(2010-016385 &

2011-082535, PCR)

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                     Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y



WEST  CENTENNIAL   WAY

N
O

R
T

H
        LA

F
A

Y
E

T
T

E
       D

R
IV

E

WEST  VICTORY  WAY

C
O

N
S

T
IT

U
T

IO
N

   
 W

A
Y

MERRILL   RANCH   PARKWAY

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8

9
10 11 12

131415151718
1920

2122

23

24

25

26

27 28 29 30
31

TRACT B

33

34
35

36
37

383940
4142

43

44

45

TRACT A

TRACT A
TRACT A

TRACT E

TRACT D

TRACT C

LOT LAYOUT DETAIL

KEY LOT DETAIL

SETBACKS (MIN.)

3

1 2

LEGAL DESCRIPTION.....UNIT 15

ABBREVIATIONS

SYMBOL LEGEND

LINE LEGEND

  

  

I   hereby  certify   that   the   within   instrument   is
filed   in   the  official   records   of   this   County  as
Fee No.
Date:
Request of:
Witness my hand and official seal.
    Virginia Ross                     Pinal County Recorder
By:  Deputy

����������	
����
����������
��� � ��

RECORDER

0

SCALE: 1"=
20 40 80 120

40'

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y



 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9m. 

MEETING DATE:   April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 1512-15:  Amending the  
                     Johnson Utilities, LLC, Operating Agreement. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
 1st Reading  
 2nd Reading 

 Other 
Subject: JU Operating Agreement               Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

 
Adoption of Resolution No. 1512-15 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 
EXECUTE AN AMENDED OPERATING AGREEMENT WITH JOHNSON UTILITIES, 
LLC, FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER UTILITY SERVICES. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This amendment is being brought to Council to solidify that the Town and Johnson 
Utilities, LLC, mutually agree that the Town no longer holds nor has any right of first 
refusal with regard to the sale and purchase of any or all of Johnson Utilities LLC’s 
operations or facilities which were the subject of the Johnson Utilities LLC Operating 
Agreement. The Town of Florence and Johnson Utilities LLC, also agree, that each 
party mutually release and discharge each other (and respective affiliates) for any and 
all claims, of any nature or variety, that arise out of or are related to any such right or 
claimed right, including, but not limited claims related to or referenced or purportedly 
asserted in Johnson Utilities, LLC’s Notice of Claim letter dated February 13, 2015, on 
file with the Town Clerk.  

The Town reserves the right and power to purchase and condemn the plant and 
distribution facilities of Johnson Utilities, LLC, within the corporate limits of the Town or 
any additions thereto, as provided by law. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1512-15. 



Subject: JU Operating Agreement               Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1512-15 
Amendment to Johnson Utilities, LLC Operating Agreement 
Johnson Utilities, LLC Operating Agreement.  



 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. 1512-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 
AN AMENDED OPERATING AGREEMENT WITH JOHNSON UTILITIES, 
LLC, FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER UTILITY SERVICES. 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence and Johnson Utilities, LLC, have previously 
entered into an Operating Agreement dated April 22, 2005, and recorded at 2005-
051154; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence and Johnson Utilities, LLC, desire to amend the 
Operating Agreement dated April 22, 2005, and recorded at 2005-051154, as set forth 
in the Amended Operating Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE DO HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. That the Amended Operating Agreement between the Town of 

Florence and Johnson Utilities, LLC, for water and wastewater services is hereby 
approved in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit "A" attached hereto. 

Section 2. That the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute the 
Amended Operating Agreement for water and wastewater utility services, in 
substantially the form set forth in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof by 
this reference as though set forth in full at this point. 

Section 3. That the Town Manager be and is hereby authorized to take such 
other and further measures and actions as are necessary or appropriate to carrying out 
the terms, provisions and intent of said Amended Operating Agreement and this 
Resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 20th day of April 2015. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Tom J Rankin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

_________________________________ ________________________________  
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk/Deputy Manager Dickinson Wright PLLC, Town Attorneys 
  



1 

 

WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:  

Town Clerk 
Town of Florence 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85232 

 

AMENDMENT TO OPERATING AGREEMENT 

DATE:   As of April 1, 2015 (“Effective Date”) 

PARTIES:  JOHNSON UTILITIES, L.L.C. 
  an Arizona limited liability company  
  5230 East Shea Boulevard 
  Suite 200 
  Scottsdale, AZ 85254 
 
  TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA  
  an Arizona municipal corporation  
  PO Box 2670 
  Florence, AZ 85232 
 
DEFINITIONS: 

Terms used in this Amended Operating Agreement (this “Agreement”) shall have the meanings 
as defined in the Operating Agreement approved in Town of Florence Resolution No. 930-05, 
entered into by the Parties on April 22, 2005, and recorded at 2005-051154, records of Pinal 
County Arizona (hereafter “Operating Agreement).   

RECITALS: 

1. Pursuant to this Agreement, only the terms of the Operating Agreement 
specifically amended are altered or amended. 

2. As more fully stated hereinbelow, and in consideration of the amendment of 
Section 11 of the Operating Agreement, contemplated hereby, the Town and Utility mutually 
agree that the Town no longer holds nor has any right of first refusal with regard to the sale and 
purchase of any or all of Utility’s operations or facilities which were the subject of the Operating 
Agreement, and hereby mutually release and discharge each other (and respective affiliates) for 
any and all claims, of any nature or variety, that arise out of or are related to any such right or 
claimed right, including, but not limited to, those claims related to or referenced or purportedly 
asserted in Utility’s A.R.S. §12-821.01 Notice of Claim letter from Thomas K. Irvine, Esq., 
Utility’s counsel, dated February 13, 2015 (the “Claims Notice”), addressed to the Town Clerk.  

3. Accordingly, the parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement. 



2 

 

AGREEMENTS: 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

Section 1.  Section 11 of the Operating Agreement is null and void and is hereby 
replaced as follows: 

Section. 11.  Condemnation Right Reserved by Town. Town 
reserves the right and power to purchase and condemn the plant 
and distribution facilities of Utility within the corporate limits of 
the Town or any additions thereto, as provided by law. 

Section 2. Section 19 shall be added to the Operating Agreement as follows: 

Section 19. Waiver and Release of Claims.   With the exception of 
the obligations of the parties under this Amendment to Operating 
Agreement, Utility, on its own behalf and on behalf of all persons 
or entities owning, in whole or in part, controlled by, controlling 
or under common control with Utility or any affiliate 
(collectively, the “Utility Releasing Parties”), on the one hand, 
and Town, on the other hand, hereby irrevocably and 
unconditionally forever release, remise and discharge each other 
and their respective present and former successors, predecessors, 
assigns, affiliates, partners, members, shareholders, Council 
members, officers, directors, agents, privies, employees, 
managers, attorneys, accountants, title insurers and insurers from 
of and against any claim, cause or right of action, liability, or 
obligation of any kind, type, or nature, whether presently known 
or unknown, accrued or not accrued (and respective affiliates) for 
any and all claims, of any nature or variety, that arise out of or are 
related to any such right or claimed right related to or referenced 
or purportedly asserted in Utility’s A.R.S. §12-821.01 Notice of 
Claim letter from Thomas K. Irvine, Esq., Utility’s counsel, dated 
February 13, 2015 (the “Claims Notice”), addressed to the Town 
Clerk, which either of them may have against the other or any of 
them, which arise out of or which in any manner relate to the 
Claims Notice and all claims and counterclaims asserted or which 
could have been asserted arising out of the allegations in the 
Claims Notice. 

Utility represents that Utility has authority to, and does hereby, 
bind any and all Utility Releasing Parties to the releases set forth 
immediately hereinabove. Town and Utility, on its own behalf 
and on behalf of all of the other Utility Releasing Parties, 
represent and warrant to one another that no party has assigned 
any of the claims released hereby to any other party or parties.  



3 

 

Town and Utility will, respectively, indemnify and hold harmless 
the other from the falsity of any of the foregoing. 

The parties acknowledge that this Agreement constitutes a 
compromise and settlement of disputed claims and does not 
constitute an admission of any fact or an acknowledgment of 
liability with respect to any claim, asserted or unasserted.  In 
executing this Agreement, the parties expressly assume the risk 
that the facts or law may be otherwise than they presently believe.  
The parties further expressly waive and assume the risk of any 
and all claims which exist as of this date but of which they do not 
know or which they do not suspect exist, whether through 
ignorance, oversight, error, negligence or otherwise and which, if 
known, would materially affect their decision to enter into this 
Agreement. 

 

[Signature Page to follow]



4 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
Effective Date first above written. 

 

Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation  

 
____________________________________  ______________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor     Date 
 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk     Charles Montoya, Town Manager 
 
 
 
Johnson Utilities, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________ 
George H. Johnson, Managing Member   Date  



5 

 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss. 
County of Pinal  ) 
 

On this ____ day of _________, 2015, before me, the undersigned officer, personally 
appeared ________________, who acknowledged him/herself to be the mayor of the TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation, and that he/she, in such capacity, being 
authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public  
 

My Commission Expires:  

____________________________ 

 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss. 
County of Maricopa  ) 
 

On this ____ day of _________, 2015, before me, the undersigned officer, personally 
appeared ________________, who acknowledged him/herself to be the Managing Member of 
Johnson Utilities, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, and that he/she, in such capacity, 
being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public  
 

My Commission Expires:  

____________________________ 

 
 
 

























 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Adoption of Resolution No. 1512-15 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9n. 

MEETING DATE:   April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                     Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 1513-15:  Amending the  
                      Southwest Environmental Utilities, LLC. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
 1st Reading  
 2nd Reading 

 Other 
Subject: Resolution No. 1513-15 SW Environmental Utilities Agreement     Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 
EXECUTE AN AMENDED OPERATING AGREEMENT WITH SOUTHWEST 
ENVIRONMENTAL UTILITIES, LLC, FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER UTILITY 
SERVICES. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
This amendment is being brought to Council to solidify that the Town and Southwest 
Environmental Utilities, LLC, mutually agree that the Town no longer holds nor has any 
right of first refusal with regard to the sale and purchase of any or all of Southwest 
Environmental Utilities, LLC’s operations or facilities which were the subject of the 
Southwest Environmental Utilities, LLC, Operating Agreement.  The Town of Florence 
and Southwest Environmental Utilities, LLC, also agree, that each party mutually 
release and discharge each other (and respective affiliates) for any and all claims, of 
any nature or variety, that arise out of or are related to any such right or claimed right, 
including, but not limited claims related to or referenced or purportedly asserted in 
Southwest Environmental Utilities, LLC’s Notice of Claim letter dated February 13, 
2015, on file with the Town Clerk.  

The Town reserves the right and power to purchase and condemn the plant and 
distribution facilities of Southwest Environmental Utilities, LLC, within the corporate 
limits of the Town or any additions thereto, as provided by law. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 
 



Subject: Resolution No. 1513-15 SW Environmental Utilities Agreement     Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1513-15. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1513-15 
Southwest Environmental Utilities, LLC Amended Operating Agreement 
Southwest Environmental Utilities, LLC Operating Agreement 
  



RESOLUTION No. 1513-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE 
AN AMENDED OPERATING AGREEMENT WITH SOUTHWEST 
ENVIRONMENTAL UTILITIES, LLC, FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER 
UTILITY SERVICES. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Florence and Southwest Environmental Utilities, LLC, 

have previously entered into an Operating Agreement, dated February 25, 2013; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Florence and Southwest Environmental Utilities, LLC, 
desire to amend the Operating Agreement dated February 25, 2013, as set forth in the 
Amended Operating Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Town Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, as follows:   

 
Section 1. That the Amended Operating Agreement between the Town of 

Florence and Southwest Environmental Utilities, LLC, for water and wastewater 
services is hereby approved in substantially the form set forth in Exhibit "A" attached 
hereto. 

Section 2. That the Mayor be and is hereby authorized to execute the 
Amended Operating Agreement for water and wastewater utility services, in 
substantially the form set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof 
by this reference as though set forth in full at this point. 

Section 3. That the Town Manager be and is hereby authorized to take such 
other and further measures and actions as are necessary or appropriate to carrying out 
the terms, provisions and intent of said Amended Operating Agreement and this 
Resolution. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 20th day of April 2015. 
 
 

      
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

              
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk/Deputy Manager Dickinson Wright PLLC, Town Attorneys 
  











































 

1 

WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:  

Town Clerk 
Town of Florence 
P.O. Box 2670 
Florence, AZ 85232 

 

AMENDMENT TO OPERATING AGREEMENT 

DATE:   As of April 1, 2015 (“Effective Date”) 

PARTIES:  SOUTHWEST ENVIRONMENTAL UTILITIES, L.L.C. 
  an Arizona limited liability company  
  5230 East Shea Boulevard 
  Suite 200 
  Scottsdale, AZ 85254 
 
  TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA  
  an Arizona municipal corporation  
  PO Box 2670 
  Florence, AZ 85232 
 
DEFINITIONS: 

Terms used in this Amended Operating Agreement (this “Agreement”) shall have the meanings 

as defined in the Operating Agreement approved in Town of Florence, entered into by the Parties 
on February 25, 2013, and recorded at 2013-015706, records of Pinal County Arizona (hereafter 

“Operating Agreement).   

RECITALS: 

1. Pursuant to this Agreement, only the terms of the Operating Agreement 
specifically amended are altered or amended. 

2. As more fully stated hereinbelow, and in consideration of the amendment of 
Section 11 of the Operating Agreement, contemplated hereby, the Town and Utility 
mutually agree that the Town no longer holds nor has any right of first refusal with regard 

to the sale and purchase of any or all of Utility’s operations or facilities which were the 

subject of the Operating Agreement, and hereby mutually release and discharge each 
other (and respective affiliates) for any and all claims, of any nature or variety, that arise 
out of or are related to any such right or claimed right, including, but not limited to, those 

claims related to or referenced or purportedly asserted in Utility’s A.R.S. §12-821.01 

Notice of Claim letter from Thomas K. Irvine, Esq., Utility’s counsel, dated February 13, 



 

2 

2015 (the “Claims Notice”), addressed to the Town Clerk.  

3. Accordingly, the parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement. 

AGREEMENTS: 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

Section 1.  Section 11 of the Operating Agreement is null and void and is hereby 
replaced as follows: 

Section. 11.  Condemnation Right Reserved by Town. Town 
reserves the right and power to purchase and condemn the plant 
and distribution facilities of Utility within the corporate limits of 
the Town or any additions thereto, as provided by law. 

Section 2. Section 17 shall be added to the Operating Agreement as follows: 

Section 17. Waiver and Release of Claims.   With the exception of 
the obligations of the parties under this Amendment to Operating 
Agreement, Utility, on its own behalf and on behalf of all persons 
or entities owning, in whole or in part, controlled by, controlling 
or under common control with Utility or any affiliate 

(collectively, the “Utility Releasing Parties”), on the one hand, and 

Town, on the other hand, hereby irrevocably and unconditionally 
forever release, remise and discharge each other and their 
respective present and former successors, predecessors, assigns, 
affiliates, partners, members, shareholders, Council members, 
officers, directors, agents, privies, employees, managers, 
attorneys, accountants, title insurers and insurers from of and 
against any claim, cause or right of action, liability, or obligation 
of any kind, type, or nature, whether presently known or 
unknown, accrued or not accrued (and respective affiliates) for 
any and all claims, of any nature or variety, that arise out of or are 
related to any such right or claimed right related to or referenced 

or purportedly asserted in Utility’s A.R.S. §12-821.01 Notice of 

Claim letter from Thomas K. Irvine, Esq., Utility’s counsel, dated 

February 13, 2015 (the “Claims Notice”), addressed to the Town 

Clerk, which either of them may have against the other or any of 
them, which arise out of or which in any manner relate to the 
Claims Notice and all claims and counterclaims asserted or which 
could have been asserted arising out of the allegations in the 
Claims Notice. 



 

3 

Utility represents that Utility has authority to, and does hereby, 
bind any and all Utility Releasing Parties to the releases set forth 
immediately hereinabove. Town and Utility, on its own behalf 
and on behalf of all of the other Utility Releasing Parties, 
represent and warrant to one another that no party has assigned 
any of the claims released hereby to any other party or parties.  
Town and Utility will, respectively, indemnify and hold harmless 
the other from the falsity of any of the foregoing. 

The parties acknowledge that this Agreement constitutes a 
compromise and settlement of disputed claims and does not 
constitute an admission of any fact or an acknowledgment of 
liability with respect to any claim, asserted or unasserted.  In 
executing this Agreement, the parties expressly assume the risk 
that the facts or law may be otherwise than they presently believe.  
The parties further expressly waive and assume the risk of any 
and all claims which exist as of this date but of which they do not 
know or which they do not suspect exist, whether through 
ignorance, oversight, error, negligence or otherwise and which, if 
known, would materially affect their decision to enter into this 
Agreement. 

 

[Signature Page to follow]  



 

4 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 
Effective Date first above written. 

 

Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation  

 
____________________________________  ______________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor     Date 
 
 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk     Charles Montoya, Town Manager 
 
 
 
Southwest Environmental Utilities, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________ 
George H. Johnson, Manager     Date  
  



 

5 

STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss. 
County of Pinal  ) 
 

On this ____ day of _________, 2015, before me, the undersigned officer, personally 
appeared ________________, who acknowledged him/herself to be the mayor of the TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation, and that he/she, in such capacity, being 
authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public  
 

My Commission Expires:  

____________________________ 

 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss. 
County of Maricopa  ) 
 

On this ____ day of _________, 2015, before me, the undersigned officer, personally 
appeared George Johnson, who acknowledged himself to be the Manager of Southwest 
Environmental Utilities, L.L.C., an Arizona limited liability company, and that he, in such 
capacity, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein 
contained.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public  
 

My Commission Expires:  

___________________________ 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9o. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Wayne J. Costa, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 1517-15:  Acceptance of public  
                    road right-of-way from the Florence Unified  
                    School District. 
 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1517-15: Acceptance of public road ROW from the FUSD    Meeting Date:  April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 3 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1517-15:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ACCEPTING NON-EXCLUSIVE PUBLIC 
ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY FROM THE FLORENCE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR 
THE WIDENING OF ADAMSVILLE ROAD AND RATIFYING EXECUTION BY THE 
TOWN MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Florence Unified School District (FUSD) plans to construct Practice Field 
Improvements for its Florence High School (FHS) as shown in Exhibit “A” including 
future development of the existing retention area for additional facilities.  This utilization 
of the Practice Field Improvements creates drainage issues for current and future 
development of the area. 

At the request of FUSD personnel, Town staff recognized an opportunity to resolve 
right-of-way (ROW) issues with Adamsville Road, west of Central Avenue, as shown on 
Exhibit “B”.  Realignment of Adamsville Road will allow an acceptable width for road 
ROW and negate any issue with the existing County facility currently located within the 
Adamsville ROW. 

As a result, Town staff has analyzed possible solutions to the site that could 
accommodate both the proposed high school practice fields along with the expansion of 
Adamsville Road.  The proposed ROW expansion of Adamsville Road has been 
preliminarily relocated to be separated from the existing county building on the north 
side of Adamsville Road to minimize the impact to the Florence High School parcel 
along the southern ROW.  Approximately 30 feet of the school parcel would need to be 
acquired to accommodate the proposed 80 foot ROW. 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1517-15: Acceptance of public road ROW from the FUSD    Meeting Date:  April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

Per our discussions with FUSD and in reviewing the proposed site improvements for the 
ball fields, it appears that the intent and design of the ball fields could be maintained by 
relocating the proposed improvements southerly 30 feet.  This southerly “shift” appears 
to only impact the existing drainage basin on the southernmost portion of the proposed 
ball field improvements.  We have analyzed the drainage basin and determined it is 
retaining storm flows from the high school and the associated FHS parking lot.  

In summary, the proposed Florence High School – “Practice Fields Improvements” and 
the proposed Adamsville Road expansion can be accomplished by: 

1. Relocating the “Practice Field” to the south while maintaining their current design 
concept of two fields. 

2. Revise the existing parking lot drainage outlet to discharge northerly along the 
west side of Central Street. 

3. Providing the required retention volume in detention basins along Central Street.  

FUSD has made arrangements with the National Guard Units to provide the on-site 
grading operation shown on Exhibit “A” in conjunction with their training efforts during 
the month of April.  Subsequently in support of this effort, Town staff provided guidance 
and coordination of this effort in our April 2, 2015 letter to FUSD, (Exhibit “C”). 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
This specific request does not have a financial impact to the Town.  FUSD property 
owner will pay all application fees, permit fees, construction as shown on Exhibit “A”, 
utility connection fees for water and sewer and provide FUSD School Board formal 
approval and other related fees. 

Town of Florence will provide the Map of Dedication (MOD), leave space within its ROW 
for storm drainage, provide stub outs to property lines in accordance with Town Code, 
and present the MOD for Council approval. 

From a longer term perspective, the property containing these ROWs will be utilized for 
development and the ROWs would then become perpetual Town-owned public roads.  
This would then be a land asset for the Town and the Town would also maintain the 
roadways as is with all public ROW. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1517-15, accepting non-exclusive public road ROWs 
from the Florence Unified School for the widening of Adamsville Road and authorizing 
ratification by the Town Manager of supporting documents. 
 
 
 
 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1517-15: Acceptance of public road ROW from the FUSD    Meeting Date:  April 20, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Resolution No. 1517-15 
• Exhibit “A” – Florence High School Grading and Drainage Plan  
• Exhibit “B” – Adamsville Roadway Paving Plan Sheet 
• Exhibit “C” – FUSD Letter to Chris Knutsen, dated April 2, 2015 



RESOLUTION NO. 1517-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL 
COUNTY, ARIZONA, ACCEPTING NON-EXCLUSIVE PUBLIC 
ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY FROM THE FLORENCE UNIFIED 
SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR THE WIDENING OF ADAMSVILLE 
ROAD AND RATIFYING EXECUTION BY THE TOWN 
MANAGER OF SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.  
 

 BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 

1. Accept the Non-Exclusive Public Road Right-of-Way for the widening of 
Adamsville Road from the Florence Unified School District. 
 

2. Authorize Town staff to prepare the Map of Dedication for the widening of 
Adamsville Road Right-of-Way for future Town Council action. 
 

3. Authorize ratification of supporting documentation necessary to initiate the 
acceptance of the Non-Exclusive Public Road Right-of-Way for the widening 
of Adamsville Road. 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 20th day of April 2015. 

 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 
____________________________  ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 











 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9p. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Scott Barber 
                                     Human Resources Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 1518-15:  Public Works/Utilities  
                     Reorganization 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1518-15 PW/Utilities Reorganization                                      Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1518-15:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING A REORGANIZATION OF 
THE PUBLIC WORKS AND UTILITIES DEPARTMENTS, CREATING A NEW TOWN 
ENGINEER DEPARTMENT, AND ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE POSITION CLASSIFICATION PLAN. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Town Manager Montoya is proposing a reorganization of the Public Works and Utilities 
Departments, which would result in reuniting the two departments and creating a new 
separate Town Engineer Department.  The goal is to implement the proposed 
reorganization as much as possible within the current number of positions and current 
position classifications.  The recommendation is to: 

1. Create the Town Engineer classification, position description and assign 
appropriate pay range (Range 67), and transfer Wayne Costa into the position; 
eliminate Town Engineer responsibilities from the Public Works Director Position 
description and delete the Professional Engineer Certification requirement; 
emphasize project management responsibilities in the revised position 
description; reassign Public Works Director Position to new pay range (Range 
65).  Deactivate Utilities Director classification. 

2. Reclassify (vacant) Engineering Technician Assistant position to Engineering 
Technician with new pay range assigned (Range 34); move position into the new 
Town Engineer Department. 

3. Move current Administrative Assistant position into the new Town Engineer 
Department to provide staff support. 



Subject:  Resolution No. 1518-15 PW/Utilities Reorganization                                      Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

We would begin recruitments immediately for a new Public Works Director and to fill the 
Engineering Technician position.  The Town Engineer Department would be located in 
the Community Development offices on 20th Street.  

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The Town Engineer pay range would be the same as the current Public Works Director 
pay range so there would be no impact.  There would be increased costs in the 
difference between the current Utilities Director pay range (64) and the new Public 
Works Director pay range (65).  The Engineering Technician Assistant reclassification 
would be an increase from pay range 30 to 34.  That position, however, has not been 
filled during the past two fiscal years.  It is anticipated that savings will accrue based on 
the ability of the Town Engineer to do more of our engineering work that is currently 
outsourced, reducing professional services costs.  Because of the time it will take to fill 
the positions, we anticipate full plan implementation with the new budget year on July 1, 
2015, with the Fiscal Year 2015/2016 budget reflecting the reorganization. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1518-15 for approval of the 
reorganization plan and associated amendments to the Town Employee Classification 
Plan, as presented.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1518-15 
Proposed Public Works Department Organizational Chart 
Proposed Town Engineer Department Organizational Chart 



RESOLUTION NO 1518-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, APPROVING A REORGANIZATION OF THE PUBLIC 
WORKS AND UTILITIES DEPARTMENTS, CREATING A NEW TOWN 
ENGINEER DEPARTMENT, AND ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE POSITION CLASSIFICATION PLAN. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager has recommended the reorganization of the 

Public Works and Utilities Departments, and the creation of a new Town Engineer 
Department, and has recommended certain associated amendments to the Town of 
Florence Position Classification Plan in order to implement the recommended 
reorganization; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 14-33 of the Code of the Town of Florence and other 

applicable laws required that the Council take formal action by Resolution to declare the 
relevant document to be public record, and to approve and adopt such amendments; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Town Council of the 
Town of Florence, Arizona, hereby approves the recommended reorganization and 
necessary amendments to Resolution 1444-14, by reference. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of 
Florence, Arizona, this 20th day of April 2015. 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
    
 
____________________________ ____________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



 

Maintenanc
Foreman

Mechanic

Mechanic

Mechanic
Assistant

Public Wo

Public Wor
Superintende

MW II

MW III

MW III

MW I

MW I

MW I

MW I

MW I

ce

orks Depa

ks
ent

MW III

MW II

MW I

MW I

MW I

MW I

MW I

MW I (P/T)

Sanitation 
Worker III

artment Pro

Fo

Water Plant 
Operator

Utility Systems 
Operator

Utility Systems 
Operator

Utility Systems 
Operator

Utility Systems 
Operator

Associat
Enginee

Public Wo
Operatio
Technici

oposed FY

Public Works 
Director 

Utility 
Superintendent

Field
oreman

W/W Tr
Plant O

W/W Tr
Plant O

te 
er

orks 
ons 
an

Y15/16 Org

Sr. Treatment 
Plant Operator

reatment 
Operator

W/W Trea
Plant Op

reatment 
Operator

W/W Trea
Plant Op

Office 
Supervisor

Office
Assistant

ganization

atment 
perator

atment 
perator

Facilitie
Manage

n Chart 

es. 
er

Custodian

Custodian

Custodian



P
Tow

Proposed

Ad
A

wn Engin
d FY15/1

T

ministr
Assista

neer Dep
16 Orga

 
 

Town E

Engine
Techn

rative
nt

partmen
nization

nginee

eering 
nician

nt 
n Chart 

er

 



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9q. 

MEETING DATE:   April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration  
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/       
                                     Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:   Resolution No. 1519-15 to ratify State Forester’s  
                     Cooperative Fire Rate Agreement  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   
 1st Reading  
 2nd Reading 

 Other 
Resolution 1519-15     Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Adoption of Resolution No. 1519-15: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO RATIFY THE STATE 
FORESTER’S COOPERATIVE FIRE RATE AGREEMENT.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Mayor and Town Manager are signatories for the Town of Florence for contract 
purposes.  The Mayor and the Manager are the only members that have the authority to 
bind the Town by signing contracts.  The signatory for contracts that are in excess of 
$24,999, or contracts that are Intergovernmental Agreements fall to the Mayor.  Often 
the Council will award a bid and, as part of the agenda item, will delegate signature 
authority to the Town Manager.  The Town Manager signs off on all contracts under the 
$24,999.    Other authority such as banking authority is designated by resolution. 
 
Signature control is maintained through the Town Clerk’s Office.  Documents are 
verified that they have received the formal approvals before being signed, signatures 
are then gathered, and all parties are issued out copies.  The Town Attorney approves 
all contracts that require signatures as to form prior to signatures.  
 
The Forester’s Cooperative Fire Rate Agreement requires ratification by Council.  A 
signature page with the Town Attorney approving to form, the Mayor signing, and the 
Town Clerk approving to form, will be added to each of the documents.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the adoption of Resolution 1519-15. 
 
 



Resolution 1519-15     Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1519-15 
Agreements 



RESOLUTION NO.  1519-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO RATIFY THE STATE 
FORESTER’S COOPERATIVE FIRE RATE AGREEMENT AND 
AMENDMENTS.  

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to enter into a Cooperative Fire Rate 

Agreement with the State Forester’s Officer; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to ratify the agreements effective on the date 

of Town staff’s signature; and  
 
WHEREAS, this agreement is in the best interest of all parties involved. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Town Council of the 

Town of Florence, Arizona, authorize the ratification of the State Forster’s Cooperative Fire 
Rate Agreement dated March 19, 2014 and the amended Cooperative Fire Rate 
Agreement dated May 26, 2014 and June 22, 2014.   

  
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Florence, 

Arizona, this 20th day of April 2015.  
 
 

 
       __________________________________ 
  Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________  __________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk    Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney  











 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
9r. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Parks and Recreation  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Bryan Hughes 
                                      Parks and Recreation Director  
 
SUBJECT:  Appointment of Ms. Linda Fenstermaker to the  
                    Parks and Recreation Board 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject: Parks and Recreation Board Appointment  Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 1 

 
Appointment of Ms. Linda Fenstermaker to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, 
with a term to expire December 31, 2017. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Parks and Recreation Board has one vacancy.   
 
Advertisements have been placed on the Town website, on Channel 11, and in the 
Florence Reminder noticing the availability of board and commission seats as they 
become available.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends appointment of Ms. Linda Fenstermaker to the Parks and Recreation 
Advisory Board, with a term to expire December 31, 2017. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Application 









Updated:1-5-2015 

Parks & Recreation Board 
(3 Year Term) 

Fourth Thursday of the month at 6:00 p.m. 
5 members 

 
 
Shawn Gibson 
P O Box 2333 
620 W. 12th Street 
Florence  AZ  85132 
Work: (520) 518-5708  
Cell: (520) 790-1361  
sgibson@crownpointpropertyservice.
com 
Appointed:  1/5/2015 
Expires: 12/31/2017 
 
Robert Smidt 
P O Box 1191 
590 N. King Street 
Florence  AZ  85132 
Work: (520) 868-7250  
Cell:(520) 868-9554  
bobnterismidt@msn.com  
Appointed: 1/5/2015   
Expires: 12/31/2017 
 
Don Pinson 
P O Box 1165 
177 S. Bush Street 
Florence  AZ 85132 
Home: (520) 868-4872  
Cell: (520) 518-1625  
dandnpinson@cgmailbox.com 
Appointed:  1/7/2013 
Expires: 12/31/2015 
 
Vacant 
Appointed:   
Expires: 12/31/2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Donald Woolridge 
P O Box 482 
534 W. 14th Street 
Florence  AZ  85132 
Home: (520) 868-3204  
Work: (520) 868-4772  
Appointed:  2/18/2014 
Expires:  12/31/2016 
 
 
Council Liaisons 
Councilmember Tara Walter 
2231 N. Smithsonian Drive 
Florence  AZ  85132 
Home:  (520) 723-0694 
 
Staff Liaison 
Bryan Hughes 
132 N. Bailey 
Florence  AZ 85132 
bryan.hughes@florenceaz.gov  
Office: (520) 868-7582 
Cell: (520) 840-1443 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
MARCH 2, 2015, AT 5:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED AT 
775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Montaño, Guilin, Anderson 
     
WORK SESSION ON THE MAY 19, 2015 SPECIAL ELECTION AND THE 
INFORMATION THAT WILL BE PRESENTED WITH REGARDS TO THE 
PROPOSITION TO EXCEED THE STATE IMPOSED EXPENDITURE LIMITATION BY 
A SPECIFIC AMOUNT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015.2016.  
 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 1 of 12 
 

Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that staff has created a 
presentation regarding the May 19, 2015 Special Election along with a calendar of 
events denoting meeting dates to present this information to the voters.. She stated the 
presentation provides information regarding the following topics; 
 

• Special Election  
• State Imposed Expenditure Limitation 
• Budget Impact  
• Budget Development Process 
• Summery/recap of the Special Election 

 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Special Election will be a mail ballot election with the publicity 
pamphlet mailed after April 23, 2015 but before the ballots are mailed.  The last day to 
turn in a ballot is May 19, 2015.  She stated that the ballots will arrive in the mail with 
instructions, postage will be pre-paid and ballots are to be returned using the U.S. 
postal service. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that on the Election Day, May 19, 2015, there will not be traditional 
polling places.  She stated Town offices will be open from 6:00 am to 7:00 pm to assist 
any voters with questions regarding the proposition being voted on or about the election 
process.  She stated if a voter needs to replace their ballot, make a correction to their 
ballot or would like to drop a ballot off instead of mailing it; they can do so by going to 
the Pinal County Voter Registration office. 
 
Mr. Michael Farina, Finance Director, reviewed the history of the State Imposed 
Expenditure Limitation amendment that was approved by voters in 1980.  He stated that 
the State’s Economic Estimates Commission annually calculates the State-Imposed 
Expenditure Limit based on annual population growth and inflation.  He stated that the 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 2 of 12 
 

State Constitution does allow for Town voters to approve an alternative to the state-
imposed limitation every four years which is used by many municipalities throughout the 
State.  He stated that the Town has held eight Home-Rule elections from 1982 through 
2010 that passed by a wide margin.  He stated the August 26, 2014 Home-Rule Option 
election failed with 51.75% of the voters voting no.  The result of the no vote requires 
the Town to be subject to the state-imposed limitation for at least the next two fiscal 
years.  
 
Mr. Farina stated that the budget impact of the expenditure limitation will not allow the 
Town to authorize expenditures above $17,363,900 (preliminary) which is equivalent to 
the budget level experienced in 2001 and is a significant reduction in the Town’s budget 
that comes with hefty penalties if the budget is exceeded without prior voter approval.  
He stated that the expenditure limitation does not impact the revenue the Town collects.  
He stated that taxes do not increase or decrease and the revenue levels for the Town 
will not increase or decrease. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Town’s Budget Committee has made recommendations to 
Council if the vote fails on how to meet the expenditure limitations with the following: 
 

− No capital expenditures except those funded by Highway User Revenue Fund or 
bonds 
• Public infrastructure – roads, streets, water and sewer improvements, 

equipment 
− Completely outsource sanitation services 

• Town would not renew the current contract with RAD 
− Eliminate bulk trash and land fill transfer station services 
− Reduce Library hours from 55 to 40 hours per week 
− Eliminate the before and after school services at both K-8 schools 
− Eliminate most special events 
− Eliminate the transitional response vehicle (TRV) from the Fire Dept. which 

services the downtown area, Caliente and Florence Gardens. 
− Reduce the number of firefighters on the fire truck from 4 to 3 in Anthem 
− Eliminate Crime Prevention/School Resource Officer position 
− Reduce aquatic center season and hours 
− Eliminate funding for the public arts program 
− Reduce police dispatch, street maintenance and building inspection 
− Reduce approximately ten additional positions 

 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Budget Committee has also made recommendations to 
Council if the election passes with the following: 
 

• Maintain current levels of service 
• Would not have to reduce or eliminate services 
• Complete capital projects (some are two-year projects) 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 3 of 12 
 

o East 1st Street pavement 
o Felix Road and Hunt Highway intersection 
o Franklin Road 
o Merrill Ranch Parkway resurfacing 
o Ruggles Street micro-seal 
o Attaway Road and Hunt Highway intersection improvements 
o Florence Gardens Phase IV curb, concrete and pavement 
o Hunt Highway – American Way to Franklin Road resurfacing 
o High school area pavement, curb and sidewalk 
o Elementary school area road improvements 
o Utility infrastructure improvements 

 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired how many municipalities have previously operated 
under the Home-Rule Expenditure Limitations. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the most recent city to have a Home-Rule fail was Tucson.  She 
stated that Tucson experienced strikes and picketing and were looking at closing fire 
stations, police sub-stations and the city run transit system: however, Tucson held a 
special election that allowed for those services to continue. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired if the Crime Prevention/School Resource Officer position is 
currently filled. 
 
Mr. Daniel Hughes, Police Chief, stated that the position is currently filled and if the 
position was eliminated the officer would be placed back on regular patrol. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to what the differences are between the current budget of 
roughly $66 million vs. the proposed $32 million budget for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
Mr. Farina stated that the $15 million dollars being requested of the voters in the special 
election would allow the Town to continue all services currently being provided and 
accounts for inflation.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that historically, the Town’s realized expenses have been less then 
what has been budgeted. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that the budget process is an estimate of anticipated 
expenses for the upcoming year and that actual incurred expenses are and has been 
less over the years. 
 
Mr. Farina stated the budget for the 2014-2015 Fiscal Year is over $60 million due to 
the one-time capital improvements and carry-over projects that will not be financially 
experienced next year.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 4 of 12 
 

Mayor Rankin inquired what would be the total financial reduction in the operating 
budget based on the recommended reduction in services. 
 
Mr. Farina stated the reduction amount is roughly $2.5 million in the operating budget 
and all capital improvement projects. 
 
Mayor Rankin expressed the importance of the Special Election stating that it is 
important to the progression of the Town to inform the voters that the proposition will not 
cost them more money and is imperative to sustain the current levels of services 
provided by the Town. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that he believes the presentation is clear and 
informative providing the voters with the information they need to vote in the Special 
Elections.  He stated that it is important to explain the long-range negative affects a 
failed vote would have throughout the Town including the services to individual 
residents but also to the schools, businesses and the overall community lifestyle. 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that the election is not a budget override where taxes 
would be increased but a Special Election allowing the Town to spend the money it is 
already in taxes and revenues.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Town provides a level of services that many of our 
surrounding communities are not able to and would hate to see that level of service 
reduced. He inquired if there are any capital improvements planned for the 2015-2016 
fiscal year. 
 
Mr. Farina stated that if the election passes then yes there are projects planned and if 
the election fails, all capital improvement projects that are not funded by HURF or a 
grant would be put on hold or not completed at all. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that it is the job of the Town Council to attend the meetings that 
staff has planned to communicate with the voters and inform them on the Special 
Election. 
 
Mr. Farina stated the process of developing the budget is a public process and it is 
important to inform the public that there are several opportunities during the process for 
the public to provide input on the budget that is being considered. 
 
Mayor Rankin opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence Residence, stated that she believes residents will 
experience a fee increase for services if the proposition to exceed the state-imposed 
expenditure limitation is not approved by the voters.  She stated taxes will not go up but 
fees associated with services provided by the Town could and most likely would go up. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 5 of 12 
 

Mayor Rankin called for a 10 minute recess. 
 
Mayor Rankin reconvened the meeting 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Councilmember Guilin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Deborah Croft, Florence Residence, stated that she is concerned about the lack of 
communication regarding the items that are being voted on for the Town.  She stated 
that previous information regarding Home Rule was not clear and was misinterpreted.  
She stated that Town Council needs to reach out to all communities; planned 
communities, apartment complexes, rural members and those who are not connected to 
the internet or may not have cable television.  She asked that the Town not rely solely 
on electronic media for communication of important Town business. 

 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.   

 
a. Authorization to purchase a 2015 Vermeer Vacuum Excavator from 

Vermeer Sales Southwest, in an amount not to exceed $65,403.88. 
 
b. Recommendation of approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor 

Licenses and Control on the Pinal County Mounted Posse’s application for 
a Special Event Liquor License for Road to Country Thunder Event on April 
4, 2015.   

 
c. Recommendation of approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor License 

and Control on Kokopelli Moon Saloon’s application for a Temporary 
Extension of Premises Patio Permit. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 6 of 12 
 

d. Approval to suspend the Town of Florence Special Event Vendor Permit 
rules and Farmer’s Market rules for the Road to Country Thunder event and 
allow the 100 Club to coordinate the vendors for a fundraiser on April 4, 
2015. 
 

e. Approval of accepting the register of demands ending January 31, 2015, in 
the amount of $3,042,019.433  
 

On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and carried to 
approve the Consent Agenda as written with the exception of items 7a and the removal 
of 7e.  Item 7e. will be placed on the March 16th Council agenda. 
 

a. Authorization to purchase a 2015 Vermeer Vacuum Excavator from 
Vermeer Sales Southwest, in an amount not to exceed $65,403.88. 

 
Councilmember Anderson inquired as to what a Vermeer Vacuum Excavator was and 
what it was used for. 
 
Mr. John Mitchell, Utilities Directors, stated the vacuum is a piece of equipment that 
assists in excavation when repairing a water leak.  He stated in past years the Town 
has rented this piece of equipment and it would be more prudent to purchase the 
vacuum instead of renting. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that the vacuum allows for excavation in a precise 
manner that a backhoe does not and it reduces the opportunity to hit utility lines in the 
location that needs repair. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter and carried to 
approve item 7a. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of a Change Order with Apache Underground 
and Excavation, for waterline improvements in the Turner Subdivision, in an 
amount not to exceed $137,147.25. 
 
Mr. Mitchell stated that the project is located north of the high school where gutters and 
sidewalks are being installed.  He stated during the course of this work it was noted that 
the existing road grades were too high to facilitate a smooth transition between the 
roadway and the new concrete. In order to facilitate a smooth transition, the existing 
road grades would have to be lowered.  He stated that DBA Construction provided the 
Town with a deduct change order to eliminate the speed humps and miscellaneous 
asphalt, and to lower the grade to design elevations.  He stated once the grade is 
lowered, the Town will install a new pavement surface and construct the speed humps. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 7 of 12 
 

Mr. Mitchell stated that in discussion with the Finance Department it was determined 
that the money was available this fiscal year to perform the work therefore staff 
approached Apache Underground and Excavation who is currently completing the 
waterline project on Bailey Street who provided an estimate of $137,147.25. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to approve a Change Order with Apache Underground and Excavation, for 
waterline improvements in the Turner Subdivision, in an amount not to exceed 
$137,147.25.  

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval affirming the February 5, 2015 recommendation 
of the Planning and Zoning Commission for the Town of Florence Territory 
Square Signage Design Review application by approving attached Option #1. 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the Planning and 
Zoning Commission has received concern regarding the signage design for the Territory 
Square project.  He stated that the approved master plan and initial development plans 
for phase one will help to set the standard of design for the District.  The innovative 
Territory Square Zoning District allows for creativity and flexibility in signage to ensure 
signage for the project is unique and of the highest quality.  He stated that signage is 
also another tool that can help to brand and market the Territory Square District. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that there are seven signs proposed for the first phase of 
development including a plaza gateway sign, two wall signs for the Library and 
Community Center, one wall sign for the Aquatic Center, restroom signs and one 
directional sign to be located along Main Street.  The signage that has received concern 
is the building signs for the Library and the Aquatic Center along with the directional 
sign.  He stated that the walls signage on the buildings will flow seamlessly with the 
architectural designs, colors and materials on the buildings being designed in a 
consistent manner, repeating the weathered steel plates found within the building 
design as a backdrop to aluminum letters that will match the roof material color.  He 
stated that all wall and directional signs will have lighting to ensure visibility at night. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the orientation of the signage was originally selected to aid in the 
overall design of the complex and to add a modern element recognizable in many 
libraries and aquatic centers across the country. On February 5, 2015, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission approved Option #1 which is consistent with the preliminary sign 
concepts shown to the Council and the public. Since this approval, subsequent 
concerns have been presented about the orientation of the signage on the subject 
facilities.  He stated that the sign options are being presented to Council to either affirm 
or modify the Commission’s recommendation.  He stated that all three options are in 
compliance with applicable Town Codes and all three signs will be aesthetically 
pleasing and help to enhance the character and branding possibilities for the Territory 
Square District. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 8 of 12 
 

Councilmember Montaño inquired if the sign options contain a combination of 
Traditional and new. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that all three options have the same lettering and are made of the 
same material.  He stated that option 3 is a more traditional sign orientation whereas 
option 1 is a bit more unique. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated he was in favor of option #1 recommended by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission.  He stated that this area is a new part of Town, not located in the 
historical portion of the Town, and needs to reflect as such. 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated he was in favor of option #3 as it was more in line with 
the traditional theme of the Town. 
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that he would be in favor of an option that combined 
traditional and new. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter stated that she had received comments from residents stating that 
they liked the look of option #3 because it is traditional.  She stated that as an educator, 
with English learning members of our Town, the traditional orientation of the signage is 
preferred as we all read left to right. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Mayor Rankin, to approve the 
recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission for the Town of Florence 
Territory Square Signage Design Review application by approving Option #1. 
 
Roll Call: 
 
Mayor Rankin – Yes 
Vice-Mayor Walter – No 
Councilmember Woolridge – Yes 
Councilmember Hawkins – Yes 
Councilmember Montaño – No 
Councilmember Guilin – Yes 
Councilmember Anderson – No 
 
Motion Passed: Yes: 4, No: 3 
 
Ms. Garcia read Resolution No. 1498-15 by title only. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE, 
EFFECTIVE MAY 1, 2015. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 9 of 12 
 

Ms. Garcia stated that Council at the January 26, 2015 Council meeting reviewed the 
2012 amendments and directed staff on how to proceed with modifications. The 
following changes were made to the Rules of Procedure in 2012: 
 

• 4.1 Regular Meetings: Deleted the section that excludes the last meeting in 
December as a regular meeting.  Now regular meetings are the first and third 
Monday of each month. 
 

• 4.3 Special Meetings: 
o Option 1: Items remains the same: Manager, Mayor or three members of 

Council may call for a special meeting. 
o Option 2: Manager can set a special meeting.  The Mayor or any member 

of council can request an item be placed on the agenda to discuss with 
the Council the need for a special meeting and vote on the date and time 
of the meeting. 

 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he has a concern with the possibility of 
inadvertently violating the Open Meeting Law if he had to contact more than two other 
council members to call a special meeting.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he was in favor of Option #1 as Option #2 would cause a 
delay in meeting on the topic for the special meeting. 
 
Mr. Clifford Mattice, Attorney with Dickinson Wright, PLLC, stated that the more 
councilmembers required to call a special meeting, the more opportunity to inadvertently 
violate the Open Meeting Law.  
 
Councilmember Montaño stated that he would like to see Option #1 changed to state 
that the Mayor or two members of Council may call a special meeting. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he would be in favor of Option #2 which would 
allow Council to vote on the topic and if it will be placed on an agenda.  
 
Mayor Rankin stated that he believes Option #2 would delay the discussion of the 
pertinent topic of the council member. 
 
Council agreed to change Option #1 to read that the Mayor or two members of Council 
may call for a special meeting. 
 

• 4.4 Work Sessions: Work sessions will now be called on Mondays of the month 
when necessary.  This section no longer calls out the second Monday of the 
month. 

• 5.1: Ms. Garcia stated that she will update 5.3 and 7.2 to be consistent with 4.3. 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 10 of 12 
 

• 6.2 Regular Meeting: The Prayer and Invocation were removed and a Moment of 
Silence will be added before the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

• 6.6 Roll Call Attendance: Removed the Mayor; may ask for a motion to excuse 
those council members absent. 
 

• 6.7 Action Items: Scheduled Public Appearances: Changes the time frame for 
providing written notice from seven to ten days. 
 

• 7.3 Council Packets: Every effort will be made to distribute packets by Thursday 
afternoon prior to the meeting. A change from 72 hours to 24 hours for special 
meeting notices and agendas will be done to be consistent with the Open 
Meeting Law. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1498-15 with modifications. 
 
Ms. Garcia read Resolution No. 1499-15 by title only. 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ESTABLISHING REGULAR MEETING DATES AND TIMES FOR TOWN OF 
FLORENCE BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that this is a resolution that sets the dates and times for all Boards 
and Commissions for the Town.  The resolution is posted in the meeting notice kiosks 
throughout Town allowing citizens to identify meeting dates and times that they may 
want to attend. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the Boards and Commissions had an opportunity to review the 
meeting dates and times to ensure they were consistent with their availability. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Board and Commission Liaisons were provided the schedule 
to review with their committees.  There was one Board that wanted to change their start 
time to 5:30 p.m. but traditionally it has been Council’s theory to have all meetings start 
at a set time so people wanting to attend a meeting only have to remember what day it 
is held. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
adopt Resolution No. 1499-15. 

 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the May 19, 2015 Special Election 
informational presentation as presented (or modified, if applicable). 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff is looking for approval from Council on the presentation that 
was presented.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 11 of 12 
 

 
Councilmember Hawkins inquired if the dates of the meetings will be on the Town 
website. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated many of the meetings planned are with specific clubs and 
membership groups that are closed to their members.  There will be two public 
meetings held that anyone can attend that will be advertised through press releases. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins stated that he would like to see all meetings publicized in the 
newspaper to ensure the members of the clubs and organizations know about the 
meetings. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried 
to approve the May 19, 2015 Special Election information presentation with modification 
as presented in the March 2, 2015 Council Worksession. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORT 

a. Manager’s Report 
b. Department Reports 

i. Community Development 
ii. Courts 
iii. Finance 
iv. Fire 
v. Library 
vi. Parks and Recreation 

vii. Police 
viii. Public Works – Utilities 

 
The Department Reports were received and filed. 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
Ms. Deborah Croft, Florence Resident, stated that she would like to see the transit 
system within Town increased with more locations to allow residents more opportunity 
to be patrons of the businesses in Town and participate more in local events and 
services. 
 
Ms. Denise Kollert, Florence Resident, stated that she attended the Concert in the Park 
event and it was excellent and encouraged everyone to support the events. 
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Anderson stated that he attended a meeting at Florence Gardens 
recently and appreciated their hospitality.  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 2015 
Page 12 of 12 
 

 
Councilmember Montaño stated that he has seen positive comments in social media 
regarding the repairs that have been completed on the Hunt Highway curve.  He stated 
that the work being done south of the High School is also progressing well and is being 
noticed by Town citizens. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter thanked Ms. Deborah Croft for speaking on the need for a better 
transportation service within the Town.  She stated that this is a topic that she is 
passionate about and looks forward to seeing the service improved. 
 
Mayor Rankin stated that the Historical Society is holding a yard sale and the L and B 
will be holding a Winter Visitor day this month.  He stated the Town’s Fishing Derby will 
be on Saturday and encouraged everyone to attend.   He stated that Senator McGuire 
has proposed a change to the State Statute regarding the Incorporation rules and if the 
legislation should pass it will cost the Town roughly $1 million per year.  He encouraged 
citizens to contact Senator McGuire and encourage her to kill her bill as it will be fiscally 
detrimental to all the towns and cities within Pinal County. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Hawkins, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:23 pm.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on March 2, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
MARCH 16, 2015, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, LOCATED 
AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 

 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Hawkins, Guilin, Anderson 
Absent: Montaño 
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  
An Executive Session will be held during the Council Meeting for legal matters 
pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(3) and (4) as follows: 
 

1. For the purpose of discussion and consultation with the Town’s attorneys 
Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2015 
Page 1 of 9 

for legal advice and to consider the Town’s position and instruct its 
attorneys in regard to pending consolidated litigation: Hollins v. Town of 
Florence, et al; Pinal County Superior Court Case No. CV2014-02265/02266; 
Dantico v. Town of Florence, et al; Pinal County Superior Court Case No. 
CV2014-02327. 
 

2. For the purpose of discussion and consultation with the Town’s attorneys 
for legal advice and to consider the Town’s position and instruct its 
attorneys’ in regard to a claim involving Johnson Utilities. 
 

3. For the purpose of discussion and consultation with the Town’s attorneys 
for legal advice and to consider the Town’s position and instruct its 
attorneys in regard to pending litigation in Pinal County Superior Court: 
Association of Florence Fire Fighters, International Association of Fire 
Fighters Local 4512 v. Town of Florence, et al; Pinal County Superior Court 
Case No. CV2015-00235. 

 
The Executive Session was moved to the end of the meeting. 
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Rankin called for a moment of silence. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Rankin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2015 
Page 2 of 9 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual 
Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  
However, members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter 
during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for 
discussion and legal action. 
 
Dr. Amy Fuller, Superintendent of the Florence Unified School District, stated that 
children will benefit from having the signs at the Library and Aquatic Centers 
horizontally as that is how they read.   She stated that she hopes that Council will revisit 
the signage plans and review the benefits of horizontal lettering. 
 
Ms. Ruth Harrison, Florence resident, stated that she was presenting to Council a 
petition of 70 signatures from residents and Town visitors in favor of signage that reads 
in a horizontal manner.  She requested that Council revisit the signage plans for the 
Library and Aquatic Centers and take into consideration the positive impact horizontal 
lettering would have to all ages. 
 
Ms. Betty Rieffer, Florence resident, stated that it is easier to read horizontal signs and 
would like to see Council revisit the signage plans for the Library and Aquatic Centers. 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
Presentation by the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing Holiday 
Inn Express and Suites as the Business of the Month for February 2015, and Pinal 
County Historical Museum as the Business of the Month for March 2015. 
 
Mr. Peter Koulouris, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Vice-Chairman, 
recognized the Holiday Inn Express and Suites as the business of the month for 
February, 2015.  He stated that the Holiday Inn Express has been an active contributor 
to the community providing the use of their ballroom for events and fundraisers. 
 
Ms. Carmen, Holiday Inn Express and Suites Representative, accepted the award on 
behalf of Mr. Damon Anderson. 
 
Mr. Jim Gilloon, Office Manager, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce, recognized 
the Pinal County Historical Museum as the business of the month for March 2015.  He 
stated that the Pinal County Historical Museum, through the efforts of volunteers, has 
been preserving the history of Florence since 1959. 
 
Ms. Betty Rieffer, Florence resident and Museum volunteer, accepted the award on 
behalf of the Pinal County Historical Museum.   
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2015 
Page 3 of 9 

CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as 
part of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called.   

 
Appoint K. Natasha Schmidt to the Historic District Advisory Commission with a 
term to expire December 31, 2015. 

 
Appoint Kenneth Wallace to the Florence Industrial Development Authority 
Board, with a term to expire December 31, 2020.  

 
Favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and 
Control on the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s Special Event License 
to host their First Thursday event on April 2, 2015 at Padilla Park.   

 
Approval of a contact with Overton Builder, LLC, for the construction to expand 
the Finance Department cashier window in an amount not to exceed $28,065. 

 
Approval of the February 2, February 17, and February 23, 2015 Town Council 
minutes. 
 
Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. December 17, 2014 Joint-Use Library Advisory Board minutes.  
 

Approval of accepting the register of demands ending January 31, 2015, in the 
amount of $3,042,019.43. 
 
Mayor Rankin requested the removal of item 9c from the consent agenda. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the exception of item 9c.  
 
Favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and 
Control on the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s Special Event License 
to host their First Thursday event on April 2, 2015 at Padilla Park.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the Chamber of Commerce had been contacted to participate 
in this event. 
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Parks and Recreation Director, stated that the Chamber of 
Commerce has been contacted and will be participating in the event. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and 
Control on the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s Special Event License to host 
their First Thursday event on April 2, 2015 at Padilla Park. 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2015 
Page 4 of 9 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to authorize the Town Manager to execute the 
Salt River Project Municipal Aesthetics Program Funding Agreement(s) that will 
allocate The Town’s current $500,000 funding allotment and up to $100,000 of the 
Fiscal Year 2016 funding allocation for masonry wall improvements at the Salt 
River Project Abel Substation in Florence, Arizona. 
 
Mr. Mark Eckhoff, Community Development Director, stated that the Municipal 
Aesthetics Program provides municipalities with the opportunity to conduct aesthetic 
improvements to existing and new SRP water and power distribution, transmission and 
substation facilities.  Annual allotments of funds are based upon several criteria 
including the jurisdiction’s percentage share of total electric facilities revenue and the 
total cost of electric system work accomplished during SRP’s prior fiscal year period.  
He stated that SRP Municipal Aesthetics Program funding can only be utilized on SRP 
infrastructure and under the direction of the municipal aesthetics program administrator. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the Town of Florence and Pinal County have SRP Aesthetic 
funds that need to be assigned to an aesthetic project in order to meet the SRP 
schedule for allocation of those funds.  He stated that Town staff, SRP and Pinal County 
have worked together to identify the SRP Abel Substation as the ideal candidate for the 
Town’s very first SRP Aesthetic Funds project.  The improvements to the substation will 
consist of attractive masonry screen walls along the southwest, south and southeast 
sides of Able Substation site and will include one rolling gate on the southwest side of 
the station. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the project will improve the appearance of the SRP Abel 
Substation for residents of Florence and in unincorporated Pinal County.  He stated that 
SRP will prepare plans, collect bids, and hire the contractors to complete the project. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter requested clarification on the funding request of $100,000 in the 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the $500,000 funding allotment this year is what the Town has 
incurred to date. The $100,000 will be drawn from the SRP funding the Town is allotted 
in 2016 from the SRP Municipal Aesthetics Program. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter inquired if the funds will be affected by the special election in May 
2015. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the SRP funds will not be impacted either way by the special 
election as they are SRP funds and the Town is only assisting SRP in identifying and 
utilizing their funds to improve SRP facilities within the Town limits. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
authorize the Town Manager to execute the Salt River Project Municipal Aesthetics 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2015 
Page 5 of 9 

Program Funding Agreement(s) that will allocate the Town’s current $500,000 funding 
allotment and up to $100,000 of the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 funding allocation for 
masonry wall improvements at the Salt River Project Abel Substation in Florence, 
Arizona. 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, read Resolution No. 1504-15 by 
title only. 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
APPROVING A MODIFICATION TO THE BUILDING PERMIT FEES SECTION OF 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE SCHEDULE OF FEES. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the building plan review and permit fees are based on the value 
of the proposed project as defined by the International Code Council (ICC) Valuation 
Tables.  These tables are regularly updated based on fluctuations in costs for labor and 
construction materials.  He stated when you combine the standardized value tables with 
the adopted plan review and permit fee table used by the Town, which is also from the 
ICC, which provides consistency in how fees are charged in comparison with other 
communities.  He stated the fees that are paid cover the local government’s costs for 
reviewing the plans, processing permits, and performing inspections. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated fee structures generally work.  There are occasional concerns that 
the fees for smaller residential projects such as remodels, garages, and patios are too 
high and are hindering homeowners from pursuing certain home improvement projects.  
He stated in response to these concerns, two options for how valuations could be 
determined for remodels, garages, patios and similar projects are being proposed.  He 
stated the first option applies to projects that are being completed by a licensed 
contractor.  With this option, the Building Safety staff can refer to the written estimate of 
the project materials and labor for the valuation figure.  He stated option two is for when 
a permit is pulled under an owner-builder scenario, where the homeowner is completing 
the work themselves.  Staff would use the homeowner’s material estimates for that 
option and add a labor factor of 30%.  Staff would still have the option of using the ICC 
Valuation Tables if the fees would be the lesser of the two options. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the new options would be limited to residential projects only and 
would not apply to new home construction.  
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired who makes the determination which ICC fees will be 
charged. 
 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that the ICC Valuation Tables take into consideration the type of 
project being permitted, the occupancy of the project and the square footage.  It is staff 
that will identify this information and pull from the tables the fee amounts that need to be 
charged. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired as to what the anticipated loss of revenue will be. 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2015 
Page 6 of 9 

 
Mr. Eckhoff stated that staff anticipates that the revenue loss per project will be off-set 
by an increase in the number of projects being submitted for permitting that may not 
have been pursued before with the higher fees.  He stated that based on the economy 
today, the revenue loss could be up to $30,000. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Guilin, seconded by Councilmember Woolridge, and 
carried to adopt Resolution No. 1504-15.  
 
Ms. Garcia read Ordinance No. 626-15 by title only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING TITLE III OF THE TOWN CODE ENTITLED ADMINISTRATION: 
SECTION 30.23 SPECIAL MEETINGS, AND SECTION 30.25 ORDER OF BUSINESS 
EFFECTIVE MAY 1, 2015.  (First Reading of Ordinance No. 625-15) 
 
Ms. Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the ordinance is tied to the 
Rules of Procedure as well as the Invocation Policy.  She stated that this ordinance will 
codify the Rules with the Code, with all changes effective May 1, 2015. 
 
Councilmember Anderson inquired if the Rules of Procedure should speak to the order 
in which an Executive Session is called. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Rules of Procedure speak to regular meetings of the Council 
and that executive sessions are called when needed and are scheduled either before 
the regular meeting or at the end of a regular meeting based on who needs to attend 
the meeting.  
 
Ms. Garcia read Ordinance No. 627-15 by title only. 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
AMENDING TITLE III OF THE TOWN CODE ENTITLED ADMINISTRATION: 
SECTION 30.73 DATE OF ELECTIONS. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that based on the recent passing of the consolidation election law, the 
Town’s election law needs to be modified to be consistent with the State law.  She 
stated that primary elections will be held in the month of August and general elections 
will be held in the month of November when required.  She stated that the ordinance 
does not require a first reading as it is a regulatory ordinance. 
 
Mayor Rankin inquired if the Town has the ability to not follow the guidelines in the 
consolidation election law. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that charter cities are being allowed to set their own election dates; 
however, charter cities are required to have their voters vote on every charter 
amendment which is not required for a general law city, such as Florence.  She stated 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2015 
Page 7 of 9 

that general law cities are being required to be in compliance with the consolidation 
election law. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Woolridge, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adopt Ordinance No. 627-15.  
 
Ms. Garcia read Ordinance No. 628-15 by title only. 

 
First reading of AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA AMENDING SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 32: TOWN ORGANIZATIONS. 
(First Reading of Ordinance No. 628-15) 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that based on the work session that was held to discuss the 
Administrative Chapter of the Town Code; the following requested changes are being 
made: 
 

• Add the Arts and Culture Commission to the list of Council appointments. 
• Provides that no member of any board, commission or committee may 

concurrently serve on any other board, commission or committee of the 
municipality. 

• Allows officers to serve more than two consecutive years.  Removes the 
Florence Unified School District language for the Library Advisory Board. 

• Appoints the Town Council as the Redevelopment Commission. 
• The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board shall hold monthly meetings. 
  

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Town Council Argument to be placed in 
the 2015 Special Election Publicity Pamphlet. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that on May 19, 2015, the Town will hold a Special Election and per 
State Statute, the Town is required to prepare and publish a publicity pamphlet.  She 
stated that the Town is required to submit a 200 word argument in favor of the 
proposition.   
 
Mayor Rankin inquired how the pamphlet will be distributed. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the pamphlet will be mailed to all registered voters on 
approximately April 23, 2015.  She stated that an invitation to the public to submit an 
argument for or against the proposition was published in the paper. 

 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and 
carried to approve the Town Council Argument to be placed in the 2015 Special 
Election Publicity Pamphlet. 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2015 
Page 8 of 9 

Mr. Charles Montoya, Town Manager, stated that the legislative update of March 12, 
2015 has been provided to Council. 
 
Councilmember Anderson requested that Mr. Montoya highlight the report on the 
specific items that pertain to the Town as the report is lengthy. 

 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
 
There were no public comments. 
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Guilin stated that Ms. Clara Jimenez passed away. 
 
Vice-Mayor Walter thanked those in attendance who spoke on behalf of the concerns 
regarding the signs for the Library and Aquatic Centers. 
 
Councilmember Hawkins requested that the topic of signs for the Library and Aquatic 
Centers be placed on the next Council agenda. 
 
Mr. Montoya stated that he needed to contact Mr. Eckhoff to determine the current 
status of the signs to ensure the vendor has not moved forward with the previously 
approved layout.  He stated he would contact Council directly to see if the topic can be 
redirected. 
 
Mayor Rankin thanked Parks and Recreation for a very successful soccer season.  He 
stated that he supports the recent decision of Council regarding the signs for the Library 
and Aquatic Centers.  He stated that there are many meetings coming up to speak with 
the members of the community regarding the Special Election that is coming up in May.  
He encouraged all members of Council to attend as many meetings as possible. 

 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  
An Executive Session will be held during the Regular Council Meeting for legal 
matters pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(1) to review applications received 
for the position of Town Attorney and possible discussion of extending or 
modifying outside counsel contract.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Walter, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and carried to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
Vice-Mayor Walter recused herself from item 3 of the Executive Session, as she has a 
family member who is a firefighter. 

 
ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2015 
Page 9 of 9 

On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Guilin, and 
carried to adjourn from Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Hawkins, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting at 8:50 pm.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on March 16, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 



MINUTES OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING HELD ON 
THURSDAY, MARCH 26, 2015, AT 5:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Rankin called the meeting to order at 5:15 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:  Rankin, Walter, Woolridge, Montaño, Anderson 
Absent: Hawkins, Guilin 
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION: For the purpose of discussion of the public 
body, pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(1), to interview candidates for Town 
Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 26, 2105 
Page 1 of 1 

Attorney.  
 
On Motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Councilmember Anderson, and 
carried to adjourn to Executive Session.  
  

5:15 pm Alison Ferrante 
6:15 pm  W. Kent Foree 
7:15 pm Biagio Gingo 

 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On Motion of Councilmember Montaño, seconded by Vice-Mayor Walter, and carried to 
adjourn from Executive Session. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Montaño, and 
carried to adjourn from the meeting at 8:27 p.m.  
 
________________________________ 
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town 
Council meeting held on March 26, 2015, and that the meeting was duly called to order 
and that a quorum was present. 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 





























































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10a. 

MEETING DATE: April 20, 2015  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:   Adoption of Resolution No. 1514-15: Approving  
                     the Issuance by the Industrial Development  
                     Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. of not to    
                     exceed $6,700,000 of Education Revenue Bonds 
                     (Academy of Math & Science – Camelback  
                     Project), Series 2015B, for the benefit of the  
                     Academy of Mathematics and Science, Inc. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Resolution No. 1514-15 to Approve the IDA Revenue Bond        Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
for the Academy of Math and Science 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1514-15: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE 
ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE 
EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS (ACADEMY OF MATH & SCIENCE – CAMELBACK 
CAMPUS PROJECT), SERIES 2015B, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
NOT TO EXCEED $6,700,000 TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, 
RENOVATION, IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES 
FOR ACADEMY OF MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE, INC. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Resolution No. 1514-15 will allow the Academy of Mathematics and Science to issue, 
through the Florence Industrial Development Authority, up to $6,700,000 of bonds for 
the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement and equipment of the land and 
buildings at 6633 West Camelback Road, Phoenix, Arizona, for use as a charter school.  
 
The Academy of Mathematics and Science Affiliated Network operates two charter 
schools in Tucson, one charter school in Phoenix, and plans to open a second charter 
school, the Camelback Campus in Phoenix, in the fall of 2015. The combined 
enrollment of all schools is 1,064. Enrollment shows a steady rate of growth with a 56% 
increase in enrollment over the last two years. 
 
There is no liability incurred by the Town of Florence in granting its approval for the 
issuance of the bonds. By issuing the bonds, the Town or the IDA is not precluded from 



Subject: Resolution No. 1514-15 to Approve the IDA Revenue Bond        Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
for the Academy of Math and Science 
Page 2 of 2 

making other issues now or in the future. The issuance of IDA bonds is contingent upon 
the borrower’s strength and the comfort that the underwriter has with the applicant.  
 
By passing this resolution, the Florence IDA will receive a $3,000 application fee and a 
yearly administrative fee of seven basis points of the outstanding balance of the issue 
for the life of the bonds. If $21 million in bonds are issued, the IDA will receive between 
$14,000 and $15,000 at closing.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Under the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 35-742, the Town of 
Florence shall not in any event be liable for the payment of the principal or interest of 
the bonds of the Authority or for the performance by the Authority of any of its 
obligations with respect to its bonds nor shall any agreements or obligations of the 
Authority constitute an indebtedness of the Town of Florence within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory provisions whatsoever.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1514-15 for approval of the Industrial 
Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. bonds for the Academy of 
Mathematics and Science, Inc. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1514-15 
Ryley, Carlock, & Applewhite letter dated April 6, 2015 



RESOLUTION NO. 1514-15 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE 
OR MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT 
AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS (ACADEMY OF 
MATH & SCIENCE – CAMELBACK CAMPUS PROJECT), SERIES 
2015B, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO 
EXCEED $6,700,000 TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION, 
CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING 
OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR ACADEMY OF MATHEMATICS 
AND SCIENCE, INC. 

 

WHEREAS, The Industrial Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. (the 

“Authority”), is an Arizona nonprofit corporation designated as a political subdivision of the 

State of Arizona empowered under the Industrial Development Financing Act, A.R.S. §§35-701 

through 761 inclusive (the “Act”), to issue revenue bonds for the purposes set forth in the Act, 

including the making of secured and unsecured loans for the purpose of financing the 

acquisition, construction, improvement or equipping of a “project” (as defined in the Act) 

whenever the Board of Directors of the Authority finds such loans to be in the public interest; 

and 

WHEREAS, the term “project” includes within its meaning any land, any building or 

other improvements, and all real and personal properties which are suitable for an educational 

institution or organization established under the provisions of Title 15, Chapter 1, Article 8, 

Arizona Revised Statutes, and owned by a nonprofit organization; and 

WHEREAS, Academy of Mathematics and Science, Inc. (the “Borrower”), an Arizona 

nonprofit corporation designated as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, has requested that the Authority issue its revenue bonds for 

the purpose of assisting the Borrower in financing the costs of acquiring, constructing, 



 

2 

renovating improving and equipping land and buildings located at 6633 West Camelback Road 

in Phoenix, Arizona (the “Facilities”), for use by the Borrower in connection with its charter 

school operations; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes of the Act, the Authority proposes to issue 

one or more series of its tax-exempt and/or taxable Education Revenue Bonds (Academy of 

Math & Science – Camelback Campus Project), Series 2015B (the “Bonds”), in an aggregate 

principal amount of not to exceed $6,700,000, the proceeds of which will be loaned to the 

Borrower to (i) finance the costs of the Facilities, (ii) pay capitalized interest on the Bonds, if 

any, (iii) fund any required reserve funds for the Bonds, and (iv) pay certain expenses relating to 

issuance of the Bonds (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority, by a resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the 

Authority at a lawful meeting called and held on April 20, 2015 (the “Authority Resolution”), 

granted final approval to the issuance and sale of the Bonds in aggregate principal amount not to 

exceed $6,700,000; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 35-721.B of the Act, the proceedings of the Authority 

under which the Bonds are to be issued require the approval of this Council; and 

WHEREAS, approval of the Bonds is not made in consideration of any bribe, gift, 

gratuity, or direct or indirect contribution to any political campaign; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has had presented to it information regarding the Project and 

the Bonds and is informed and advised regarding the Project and the Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN OF FLORENCE as follows: 

SECTION I. APPROVAL OF PROCEEDINGS.  The proceedings of the Authority 

under which the Bonds are to be issued in aggregate principal amount not to exceed $6,700,000 



 

3 

are hereby approved, subject, however, to all the terms and conditions contained in the Authority 

Resolution. 

SECTION II. CERTIFICATION.  It is hereby CERTIFIED under penalty of perjury that 

the approval of the proceedings is not made in consideration of any bribe, gift, gratuity, or direct 

or indirect contribution to any political campaign. 

PASSED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 

Arizona, this 20th day of April, 2015. 

 

_____________________________________ 
Tom Rankin - Mayor 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________  ______________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHX 331428374v3 



RYLEYCARLOCK A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
One North Central Avenue, Suite 1200

Phoen ix, Arizona 85004-4417
P 602.440.4800 t 602.257.9582

erA P P L E W H I T E
AttorneJ/s

Offices in Arizona & colorado
www,rcalaw.com

William F. Wilder
Direct Line: 602.440/802
Direct Fax: 602,257,6902
wwilder@rcalaw.corn

April ó, 2015

To Mayor and Council
Town of Florence, Arizona

Board of Directors
The Industrial Development
Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc,

Re Not to Exceed $6,700,000 The Industrial Development Authority of the
Town of Florence, Inc. Education Revenue Bonds
(Academy of Math & Science - Camelback Campus Project)
Series 20158

Ladies and Gentlemen:

At a meeting of the Board of Directors of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc., (the "Authority") on April 20,2015, the Authority will be asked to
grant approval to the hnancing for the Academy of Math & Science - Camelback Campus

Project (as discussed below) and to adopt a resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of the
bonds as described above (the "Bonds"),

Thereafter, at a meeting of the Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, on
Apn|20,2075, the Town Council will be asked to approve the proceedings of the Authority, as

prescribed by A.R.S. $35-821.8, for the issuance of the Bonds.
The purpose of this letter is to provide a summary review of the planned

f,rnancing.

THE AUTHORITY AND ITS POWERS

The Authority is 'òn Arizona nonprofit corporation incorporated under the
provisions of the Industrial Development Financing Act, Title 35, Chapter 5, and Title 10,

Arizona Nonprofit Corporation Act, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended (the "Act"). The
Authority is designated by law as a political subdivision of the State of Arizona. Under the
provisions of the Act, the Town Council of the Town of Florence is the governing body of the
Authority, is responsible for electing the Directors of the Authority, and must approve the
proceedings of the Authority for the issuance of the Bonds.

3167ll1.t
04/06/15



Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence,
Arizona

Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

April 6,2015
Page2

RYTEYCARTOCK
6¡-A P P L E W H I T E

Attornqls

The Authority is empowered to issue the Bonds and loan the proceeds from the
sale of the Bonds to finance "projects" as such term is defined in A,R,S. $ 35-701, Facilities
fora nonprofit 501(cX3) charter school organization formed under the provisions of Title 15,

Article 1, Chapter 8, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended, constitute a "project" within the
meaning of the Act.

Under the provisions of the Act, the Authority is empowered to issue its bonds to
finance a "project" located anywhere in Arizona (except when the "project" is housing, in which
case the "project" must be located in the Town of Florence). Also, under the provisions of the
Act the Authority is empowered to issue its bonds to finance a project outside of Arizona if
certain criteria set forth in the Act are met,

THE ACADEMY OF MATH & SCIENCE AFFILIATED NET\ryORK

The Academy of Math & Science Afhliated Network includes the Academy of
Mathematics and Science, Inc., the Academy of Mathematics and Science South, Inc. and the
Math and Science Success Academy, Inc. The Academy of Math & Science Affiliated Network
operates two charter schools in Pima County, one charter school in Maricopa County and intends
to open a second charter school in Marioopa County in the fall of 2015.

The combined enrollment of the Network Schools is 1,064, Enrollment shows a

strong, steady rate of growth, with a 560/o increase in enrollment over the last two years, The
Network Schools also maintain substantial wait lists,

THE APPLICANT/BORROWER

The Applicant/Borrower for financing is Academy of Mathematics and Science,
Inc. ("AMS"),airr Arizona nonprofit corporation designated under the Internal Revenue Code as

a 501(c)(3) organization and formed and operated exclusively for charitable and educational
purposes as a charter school under the provisions of Title 15, Article 1, Chapter 8, Arizona
Revised Statutes, as amended,

THE PROJECT
The Project to be financed with the proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds

consist of financing the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating, improving and equipping, as

applicable, land and buildings located at 6633 West Camelback Road, Phoenix, Arizona, for use
in the Applicant's/Borrower's Charter School operations (the "Project").



Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence,
Arizona

Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

April6, 2015
Page 3

RYTEYCARTOCK
ô{-A P P L E W H I T E

Attornqls

APPROVAL BY AUTHORITY

At an Authority Board meeting on April 20,2075, it is anticipated the Authority
Board will grant approval to the application for financing submitted by AMS and will adopt a

resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of the Bonds'

NOTIFICATION TO ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL

As required by the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 35-721.F, the

Authority will notify the Arizona Attorney General of the Authority's intention to issue the

Bonds.

PUBLIC HEARING

No public hearing pursuant to the provisions of Section 141(Ð of the Intemal

Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, is required for the proposed financing.

ALLOCATION FOR TAX EXEMPT FINANCING

Since the Applicant is a nonprofit 501(cX3) organtzatton, it is not necessary for

the Applicant to obtain an allocation of the State of Arizona 2010 volume cap or "state ceiling"

for the proposed f,rnancing and the Bonds to be issued,

FINANCING PARTICIPANTS

The major participants in the financing are as follows:

Issuer: The Industrial Development Authority of the Town of
Florence, Inc.

Issuer Counsel: Ryley, Carlock & Applewhite

Applicant/Bofrower: Academy of Mathematics and Science, Inc,

Applicant/Boffower Counsel \Marren Charter Law, PLC

Bond Counsel: Greenberg Traurig LLP

Bond Underwriter Piper Jaffray & Co.

Bond Underwriter Counsel Barnes & Thornburg, LLP

Trustee Bank of Atizona



Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence,
Anzona

Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

April 6,2015
Page 4

Document

Indenture of Trust

Loan Agreement

Bond Purchase Agreement

Limited Offering Memorandum

Tax Compliance Certificate

Deed of Trust, Security Agreement,
Assignment of Rents and Leases and Fixture
Filing

PRINCIPAL FINANCING DOCUMENTS

RYLEYCARLOCK
6{-A P P L E W H I T E

AttorneJls

Parties

Issuer and Trustee

Issuer and Borrower

Issuer, Borrower and Bond Purchaser

Borrower

Issuer and Borrower

Borrower

PLAN OF FINANCING

There will be a single series of Bonds as more specifically described below

The Authority's Education Revenue Bonds (Academy of Math & Science -
Camelback Campus Project) Series 20158, will be used to finance and refinance new charter
school facilities to be located at 6633 West Camelback Road, Phoenix, Anzona,

The Bonds will be issued in a not to exceed amount of $6,700,000, will bear

interest at a fixed rate to be determined at the time the Bonds are sold and will have a final
maturity date, not exceeding 40 years from the date the Bonds are issued.

The Bonds will be issued under the Indenture of Trust, will be sold to one or more
institutional or accredited investors in accordance with the provisions of the Bond Purchase

Agreement and the proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds will be loaned by the Authority
to the Borrower under the provisions of the Loan Agreement.

Restrictions are in place to assure that the Bonds cannot be transferred other than

to an appropriate institutional buyer or accredited investor.

Under the provisions of the Loan Agreement, the Borrower will be

unconditionally obligated to make periodic loan repayments in amounts sufficient to provide for
the timely payment of interest and principal on the Bonds.

The obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement will be secured by the

Deed of Trust, Security Agreement, Assignment of Rents and Leases and Fixture Filing.



Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence,
Aizona

Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc,

April6,2015
Page 5

RYTEYCARTOCK
6LA P P L E W H I T E

AttorneJls

The proceeds of the loan from the Authority to the Borrower will be held by the
Trustee and disbursed on a periodic basis to pay the costs associated with acquiring,
constructing, renovating, improving and equipping the respective Project.

AUTHORITY APPROVAL

The Authority is requested, at its meeting on April20,2075, to act as required by
law to adopt a resolution authorizing and approving the issuance of the Bonds.

TO\ryN COUNCIL APPROVAL

The Town Council of the Town of Florence is requested, at its meeting on
April20, 2075, to act as required by law to adopt a resolution approving the proceedings of the
Authority for the issuance of the Bonds.

NO LIABILITY ON THE TOWN OF FLORENCE

Under the provisions of A,R.S, ç 35-742, the Town of Florence shall not in any
event be liable for the payment of the principal or interest on the Bonds of the Authority or for
the performance by the Authority of any of its obligations with respect to its Bonds nor shall any
agreements or obligations of the Authority constitute an indebtedness of the Town of Florence
within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision whatsoever.

TRANSACTION CLOSING

If the required approvals of the Authority and the Town Council of the Town of
Florence are received, it is currently anticipated that the Bonds will be issued by the end of May,
2015.

LEGAL COUNSEL RECOMMENDATION
As counsel to the Authority, we have reviewed drafts of the principal financing

documents, we have been advised that these documents are now in substantially final form, and

based upon our review of such and our review of the proceedings of the Authority to date

relating to the proposed issuance of the Bonds, we believe the financing documents and
proceedings are in substantial conformance with the polioies and guidelines of the Authority and
are in both form and substance acceptable for the Authority Board and Florence Town Council to
act upon and that the Resolution presented to the Authority Board relating to authorizing the
issuance and sale of the Bonds, and the Resolution presented to the Florence Town Council



Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence,
Anzona

Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc,

April 6, 2015
Page 6

RYLEYCARTOCK
&A P P L E W H I T E

AttoneJs

approving the proceedings of the Authority for the issuance of the Bonds and related matters, are

in form and substance acceptable for the Authority Board to adopt.

Yours very truly,

fú/'Ut4
William F, Wilder
Legal Counsel, The Industrial Development
Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc.

WFW:akr
cc: Ms. Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk

Ms. Jennifer Evans, Economic Development Director



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10b. 

MEETING DATE: April 20, 2015  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst 
 
SUBJECT:   Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No.  
                     1515-15 Approving the Issuance by the Industrial 
                     Development Authority of the Town of Florence,  
                     Inc. of Not to Exceed $6,700,000 of Education      
                     Revenue Bonds (Academy of Math & Science –  
                     Flower Project), Series 2015A, for the Benefit of  
                     the Academy of Mathematics and Science  
                     South, Inc. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Resolution No. 1515-15 IDA Revenue Bond for the Academy of Math and Science 
Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1515-15: A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO 
THE ISSUANCE OF ONE OR MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT AND/OR TAXABLE 
EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS (ACADEMY OF MATH & SCIENCE – FLOWER 
CAMPUS PROJECT), SERIES 2015A, IN AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 
NOT TO EXCEED $6,700,000 TO FINANCE AND REFINANCE THE ACQUISITION, 
CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING OF 
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR ACADEMY OF MATHEMATICS AND SCIENCE 
SOUTH, INC. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Resolution No. 1515-15 will allow the Academy of Mathematics and Science to issue, 
through the Florence Industrial Development Authority, up to $6,700,000 of bonds for 
the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement and equipment of the land and 
buildings at 3335 West Flower Street and 3325 West Flower Street, Phoenix, Arizona, 
for use as a charter school.  
 
The Academy of Mathematics and Science Affiliated Network operates two charter 
schools in Tucson, one charter school in Phoenix, and plans to open a second charter 
school, the Camelback Campus, in Phoenix in the fall of 2015.  The combined 
enrollment of all schools is 1,064.  Enrollment shows a steady rate of growth with a 56% 
increase in enrollment over the last two years. 
 



Subject: Resolution No. 1515-15 IDA Revenue Bond for the Academy of Math and Science 
Meeting Date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

There is no liability incurred by the Town of Florence in granting its approval for the 
issuance of the bonds.  By issuing the bonds, the Town or the IDA is not precluded from 
making other issues now or in the future.  The issuance of IDA bonds is contingent upon 
the borrower’s strength and the comfort that the underwriter has with the applicant.  
 
By passing this resolution, the Florence IDA will receive a $3,000 application fee and a 
yearly administrative fee of seven basis points of the outstanding balance of the issue 
for the life of the bonds.  If $21 million in bonds are issued, the IDA will receive between 
$14,000 and $15,000 at closing.  
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Under the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 35-742, the Town of 
Florence shall not in any event be liable for the payment of the principal or interest of 
the bonds of the Authority or for the performance by the Authority of any of its 
obligations with respect to its bonds nor shall any agreements or obligations of the 
Authority constitute an indebtedness of the Town of Florence within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory provisions whatsoever.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1515-15 for approval of the Industrial 
Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. bonds for the Academy of 
Mathematics and Science, Inc. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1515-15 
Ryley, Carlock, & Applewhite letter dated April 6, 2015 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 1515-15 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL TO THE ISSUANCE OF ONE 
OR MORE SERIES OF THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, INC. TAX-EXEMPT 
AND/OR TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS (ACADEMY OF 
MATH & SCIENCE – FLOWER CAMPUS PROJECT), SERIES 2015A, IN 
AN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED 
$6,700,000 TO FINANCE AND REFINANCE THE ACQUISITION, 
CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION, IMPROVEMENT AND EQUIPPING 
OF EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES FOR ACADEMY OF MATHEMATICS 
AND SCIENCE SOUTH, INC. 

 

WHEREAS, The Industrial Development Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc. (the 

“Authority”), is an Arizona nonprofit corporation designated as a political subdivision of the 

State of Arizona empowered under the Industrial Development Financing Act, A.R.S. §§35-701 

through 761 inclusive (the “Act”), to issue revenue bonds for the purposes set forth in the Act, 

including the making of secured and unsecured loans for the purpose of financing the 

acquisition, construction, improvement or equipping of a “project” (as defined in the Act) 

whenever the Board of Directors of the Authority finds such loans to be in the public interest; 

and 

WHEREAS, the term “project” includes within its meaning any land, any building or 

other improvements, and all real and personal properties which are suitable for an educational 

institution or organization established under the provisions of Title 15, Chapter 1, Article 8, 

Arizona Revised Statutes, and owned by a nonprofit organization; and 

WHEREAS, Academy of Mathematics and Science South, Inc. (the “Borrower”), an 

Arizona nonprofit corporation designated as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of 

the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, has requested that the Authority issue its 

revenue bonds for the purpose of assisting the Borrower in financing and refinancing the costs of 



 

2 

acquiring, constructing, renovating, improving and equipping land and buildings located at 3335 

West Flower Street and 3325 West Flower Street in Phoenix, Arizona (the “Facilities”), for use 

by the Borrower in connection with its charter school operations; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes of the Act, the Authority proposes to issue 

one or more series of its tax-exempt and/or taxable Education Revenue Bonds (Academy of 

Math & Science – Flower Campus Project), Series 2015A (the “Bonds”), in an aggregate 

principal amount of not to exceed $6,700,000, the proceeds of which will be loaned to the 

Borrower to (i) finance and refinance the costs of the Facilities, (ii) fund a debt service reserve 

fund for the Bonds, and (iii) pay certain expenses relating to issuance of the Bonds (the 

“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority, by a resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the 

Authority at a lawful meeting called and held on April 20, 2015 (the “Authority Resolution”), 

granted final approval to the issuance and sale of the Bonds in aggregate principal amount not to 

exceed $6,700,000; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 35-721.B of the Act, the proceedings of the Authority 

under which the Bonds are to be issued require the approval of this Council; and 

WHEREAS, approval of the Bonds is not made in consideration of any bribe, gift, 

gratuity, or direct or indirect contribution to any political campaign; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has had presented to it information regarding the Project and 

the Bonds and is informed and advised regarding the Project and the Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN OF FLORENCE as follows: 

SECTION I. APPROVAL OF PROCEEDINGS.  The proceedings of the Authority 

under which the Bonds are to be issued in aggregate principal amount not to exceed $6,700,000 



 

3 

are hereby approved, subject, however, to all the terms and conditions contained in the Authority 

Resolution. 

SECTION II. CERTIFICATION.  It is hereby CERTIFIED under penalty of perjury that 

the approval of the proceedings is not made in consideration of any bribe, gift, gratuity, or direct 

or indirect contribution to any political campaign. 

PASSED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, 

Arizona, this 20th day of April, 2015. 

 

 

   
 Tom J. Rankin - Mayor 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

________________________________ _________________________________________  
Lisa Garcia - Town Clerk  Clifford L. Mattice - Town Attorney 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PHX 331428317v3 



RYLEYCARLOCK A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
One North Central Avenue, Suite f200

Phoenix. Arizona 85004-44f 7

P 602.440.4800 t 602.257.9582
&A P P L E W H I T E

AttorneJ/s

Offices in Arizona & Colorado
www.rcalaw,com

William F. Wilder
Direct Line: 602,440 4802
Direct Fax : 602.257 .6902
wwilder@rcalaw,corn

April 6,2015

To Mayor and Council
Town of Florence, Arizona

Board of Directors
The Industrial Development
Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc.

Not to Exceed $6,700,000 The Industrial Development Authority of the
Town of Florence, Inc, Education Revenue Bonds
(Academy of Math & Science - Flower Campus Project) Series 2015A

Ladies and Gentlemen

At a rneeting of the Board of Directors of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc., (the "Authority") on April 20,2075, the Authority will be asked to
grant approval to the f,rnancing for the Academy of Math & Science - Flower Campus Project
(as discussed below) and to adopt a resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of the bonds as

described above (the "Bonds").

Thereafter, at a meeting of the Council of the Town of Florence, Arizona, on
April20, 2015, the Town Council will be asked to approve the proceedings of the Authority, as

prescribed by A.R.S. $35-821.8, for the issuance of the Bonds.

financing
The purpose of this letter is to provide a summary review of the planned

THE AUTHORITY AND ITS PO\ryERS

The Authority is an Arizona nonprofit corporation incorporated under the
provisions of the Industrial Development Financing Act, Title 35, Chapter 5, and Title 10,

Arizona Nonprofit Corporation Act, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended (the "Act"). The
Authority is designated by law as a political subdivision of the State of Arizona. Under the
provisions of the Act, the Town Council of the Town of Florence is the governing body of the
Authority, is responsible for electing the Directors of the Authority, and must approve the
proceedings of the Authority for the issuance of the Bonds,

376s789.1
04/06/r5

Re



Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence,
Arizona

Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

April 6,2015
Page2

RYTEYCARLOCK
&A P P L E W H I T E

Attornqls

The Authority is empowered to issue the Bonds and loan the proceeds from the
sale of the Bonds to finance "projects" as such term is defined in A,R.S, $ 35-701. Facilities
for a nonprofrt 501(cX3) charter school organizalion formed under the provisions of Title 15,

Article 1, Chapter 8, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended, constitute a "project" within the
meaning of the Act.

Under the provisions of the Act, the Authority is empowered to issue its bonds to
finance a "project" located anywhere in Arizona (except when the "project" is housing, in which
case the "project" must be located in the Town of Florence). Also, under the provisions of the
Act the Authority is empowered to issue its bonds to finance a project outside of Arizona if
certain criteria set forth in the Act are met.

THE ACADEMY OF MATH & SCIENCE AFFILIATED NETWORK

The Academy of Math & Science Affiliated Network includes the Academy of
Mathematics and Science, Inc,, the Academy of Mathematics and Science South, Inc. and the
Math and Science Success Academy, Inc. The Academy of Math & Science Affiliated Network
operates two charter schools in Pima County, one charter school in Maricopa County and intends
to open a second charter school in Maricopa County in the fall of 2015.

The combined enrollment of the Network Schools is 1,0ó4. Enrollment shows a

strong, steady rate of growth, with a 56%o increase in enrollment over the last two years. The
Network Schools also maintain substantial wait lists.

THE APPLICANT/BORROWER

The Applicant/Borrower for financing is Academy of Mathematics and Science
South, Inc. ("AMS South"), an Arizona nonprofit corporation designated under the Internal
Revenue Code as a 501(cX3) organization and formed and operated exclusively for charitable
and educational purposes as a charter school under the provisions of Title 15, Article 1, Chapter
8, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended.

THE PROJECT

The Project to be financed with the proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds
consist of financing the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating, improving and equipping, as

applicable, land and buildings located at 3335 West Flower Street and3325 'West Flower Street
in Phoenix, Arizona, for use of new Charter school facilities to be located in Phoenix, Arizona
(the "Project").



Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence,
Arizona

Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

April 6,2015
Page 3

RYTHYCARTOCK
&A P P L E W H IT E

Atton eJs

APPROVAL BY AUTHORITY

At an Authority Board meeting on April 20,2075, it is anticipated the Authority
Board will grant approval to the application for hnancing submitted by AMS South and will
adopt a resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of the Bonds,

NOTIFICATION TO ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL

As required by the provisions of Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 35-721,F, the
Authority will notify the Arizona Attorney General of the Authority's intention to issue the
Bonds.

PUBLIC HEARING

No public hearing pursuant to the provisions of Section 147(Ð of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, is required for the proposed financing.

ALLOCATION FOR TAX EXEMPT FINANCING

Since the Applicant is a nonprofit 501(cX3) organization, it is not necessary for
the Applicant to obtain an allocation of the State of Anzona 2010 volume cap or "state ceiling"
for the proposed financing and the Bonds to be issued.

FINANCING PARTICIPANTS

The major participants in tl're frnancing are as follows:

Issuer: The Industrial Development Authority of the Town of
Florence, Inc.

Issuer Counsel: Ryley, Carlock & Applewhite

Applicant/Borrower: Academy of Mathematics and Science South, Inc,

Applicant/Borrower Counsel lMarren Charter Law, PLC

Bond Counsel: Greenberg Traurig LLP

Bond Underwriter Piper Jaffray & Co.

Bond Underwriter Counsel Barnes & Thornburg,LLP

Trustee Bank of Arizona



Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence,
Anzona

Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

April 6,2015
Page 4

Document

Indenture of Trust

Loan Agreement

Bond Purchase Agreement

Limited Offering Memorandum

Tax Compliance Certifi cate

Deed of Trust, Security Agreement,
Assignment of Rents and Leases and Fixture
Filing

RYTEYCARTOCK

PRINCIPAL FINANCING DOCUMENTS

&A P P L E W H I T E
AttorneJs

Parties

Issuer and Trustee

Issuer and Borrower

Issuer, Borrower and Bond Purchaser

Borrower

Issuer and Borrower

Borrower

PLAN OF FINANCING

There will be a single series of Bonds as more specif,rcally described below:

The Authority's Education Revenue Bonds (Academy of Math & Science -
Flower Campus Project) Series 2075A, will be used to finance and refinance new charter school
facilities to be located at 3335 West Flower Street and 3325 West Flower Street, Phoenix,
Arizona.

The Bonds will be issued in a not to exceed amount of $6,700,000, will bear
interest at a hxed rate to be determined at the time the Bonds are sold and will have a final
maturity date, not exceeding 40 years from the date the Bonds are issued,

The Bonds will be issued under the Indenture of Trust, will be sold to one or more
institutional or accredited investors in accordance with the provisions of the Bond Purchase
Agreement and the proceeds received from the sale of the Bonds will be loaned by the Authority
to the Borrower under the provisions of the Loan Agreement.

Restrictions are in place to assure that the Bonds cannot be transferred other than
to an appropriate institutional buyer or accredited investor.

Under the provisions of the Loan Agreement, the Borrower will be
unconditionally obligated to make periodic loan repayments in amounts sufficient to provide for
the timely payment of interest and principal on the Bonds.



Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence,
Arizona

Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

April 6, 2015
Page 5

RYTEYCARLOCK
&A P P L E W H IT E

Attornqls

The obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement will be secured by the
Deed of Trust, Security Agreement, Assignment of Rents and Leases and Fixture Filing.

The proceeds of the loan from the Authority to the Borrower will be held by the
Trustee and disbursed on a periodic basis to pay the costs associated with acquiring,
constructing, renovating, improving and equipping the respective Project.

AUTHORITY APPROVAL

The Authority is requested, at its meeting on April 20, 2015, to act as required by
law to adopt a resolution authorizing and approving the issuance of the Bonds.

TOWN COUNCIL APPROVAL

The Town Council of the Town of Florence is requested, at its meeting on
Aplil20,20l5, to act as required by law to adopt a resolution approving the proceedings of the
Authority for the issuance of the Bonds,

NO LIABILITY ON THE TOWN OF FLORENCE

Under the provisions of A,R.S, ç 35-742, the Town of Florence shall not in any
event be liable for the payment of the principal or interest on the Bonds of the Authority or for
the performance by the Authority of any of its obligations with respect to its Bonds nor shall any
agreements or obligations of the Authority constitute an indebtedness of the Town of Florence
within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision whatsoever,

TRANSACTION CLOSING

If the required approvals of the Authority and the Town Council of the Town of
Florence are received, it is currently anticipated that the Bonds will be issued by the end of May,
2015.

LEGAL COUNSEL RECOMMENDATION

As counsel to the Authority, we have reviewed drafts of the principal financing
documents, we have been advised that these documents are now in substantially final form, and

based upon our review of such and our review of the proceedings of the Authority to date
relating to the proposed issuance of the Bonds, we believe the financing documents and
proceedings are in substantial conformance with the policies and guidelines of the Authority and

are in both form and substance acceptable for the Authority Board and Florence Town Council to
act upon and that the Resolution presented to the Authority Board relating to authorizing the
issuance and sale of the Bonds, and the Resolution presented to the Florence Town Council



Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence,
Arizona

Board of Directors
of The Industrial Development Authority
of the Town of Florence, Inc.

April 6,2015
Page 6

RYTEY(ARIOCK
&A P P L E W H IT E

Attornqls

approving the proceedings of the Authority for the issuance of the Bonds and related matters, are

in form and substance acceptable for the Authority Board to adopt.

Yours very truly,

/íD"44/
William F. Wilder
Legal Counsel, The Industrial Development
Authority of the Town of Florence, Inc.

WFW:akr
cc: Ms. Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk

Ms. Jennifer Evans, Economic Development Director



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10c. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Ratification of emergency repair of Well #2  
                    ratifying  execution of Arizona Beeman Drilling  
                    contract documents for the work. 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 

Subject: Award contract to Arizona Beeman Drilling for Well #2   Meeting date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2  
 

Motion to ratify emergency repair of Well #2 and execution of contract documents with 
with Arizona Beeman Drilling in the amount of $434,745. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
  
The project to construct Well #2 was advertised and bids were opened on April 1, 2015. 
On the morning of March 28, 2015, prior to the bid opening, Well #1 ceased to operate. 
Because Well #1 is the only well to provide service to north Florence, staff had to 
implement emergency procedures to restore service.  That action was to install a 
bypass pump and activate the new Well #3, while Well #1 was dismantled and 
inspected. 
 
Although this action did provide for temporary restoration of service, the status of Well 
#1 was unknown, and staff had to consider the scenario that Well #1 could not be 
repaired.  With the new Well #2 having been sited adjacent to Well #1, it was decided to 
direct Arizona Beeman Drilling to obtain the necessary insurance and security to begin 
the work prior to the official Council award of the contract.  Arizona Beeman Drilling is in 
the process of obtaining those documents. 
 
Staff has obtained approval from the Arizona Department of Water Resources for the 
construction of this well. 
 
The drilling of new water well in north Florence was programed in the current Capital 
Improvement Plan to increase production to support existing demands and to meet 
future growth requirements.  The new well will still need to have a motor and pump 
installed and connected to existing infrastructure before it is usable.  This work should 
be completed in the next fiscal year, depending on availability of funds. 
 
One bid was received to drill the new Well #2.  The one bidder was Arizona Beeman 
Drilling and they were determined to be a responsive and responsible bidder.  The 
amount of the bid submitted Arizona Beeman Drilling was $434,745. 
  
 



Subject: Award contract to Arizona Beeman Drilling  Meeting date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The current budget provides funding in CIP WU-23.  There is currently $750,000 in this 
account. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends Council approve ratification emergency repair of Well #2 and 
execution of contract documents with with Arizona Beeman Drilling, in the amount of 
$434,745. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Bid tabulation sheet 
Notice of Award 
Contract Documents 
 





NOTICE OF AWARD 

Date of Issuance: April 7, 2015   

Owner:  Town of Florence, Arizona Owner's Contract No.: WU-23 

Engineer: Stephen D. Noel Engineer's Project No.: NA 

Project: Town of Florence Well #2 Contract Name: Town of Florence Well #2 

Bidder: Morex Investments LLC, dba Arizona Beeman Drilling 

Bidder’s Address: 15563 E. US Hwy 60, Gold Canyon, AZ 85118 

TO BIDDER: 

 You are notified that Owner has accepted your Bid dated  April 1, 2015  for the above Contract, and that you 
are the Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for: 

Town of Florence Well #2 

 
The Contract Price of the awarded Contract is:  $ 434,745.00 

        [  1  ] unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement accompany this Notice of Award, and one copy of the 
Contract Documents accompanies this Notice of Award, or has been transmitted or made available to 
Bidder electronically.  

  You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 15 days of the date of receipt of this 
Notice of Award: 

1. Deliver to Owner 3 counterparts of the Agreement, fully executed by Bidder. 

2. Deliver with the executed Agreement(s) the Contract security and insurance documentation as 
specified in the Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions. 

3. Other conditions precedent (if any):  
 

 Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in default, 
annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.   

 Within ten days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully executed 
counterpart of the Agreement, together with any additional copies of the Contract Documents as indicated in 
Paragraph 2.02 of the General Conditions. 

Owner: Town of Florence 

  
                Authorized Signature 

By: Charles A. Montoya 

Title: Town Manager 
 
Copy: Engineer 
  































































































































































































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10d. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Award of Contract to Visus Inc. for construction  
                    of the Main Street Extension Project 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to award a contract to Visus Inc. for the construction of the Main Street 
Extension Project in an amount not to exceed $239,000. 
 

Subject: Award contract to Visus Inc.,   Meeting date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 1  
 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
  
The Main Street Extension Project has been designed to provide for emergency and 
temporary access to downtown Florence. 
 
The project was advertised and bids were opened on April 6, 2015. Six companies bid 
the project and prices ranged from a low of $239,000 to a high of $289,000. Visus Inc. 
was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder with the bid of $239,000. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The current budget provides funding of $700,000 (CIP T-13). 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends an award to Visus, Inc. for the construction of the Main Street 
Extension Project in an amount not to exceed $239,000. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Bid Tabulation Sheet 
Contract Documents 
 

























































































































 

7580 N DOBSON RD. SUITE 200  3515 STONE WALL CIRCLE 
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85256   HEBER CITY, UT 84032   SCOTTSDALE • HEBER CITY 
480-818-6001    435-709-8234 
 
 

DESIGNING WORLD DESTINATIONS 

 
ADDENDUM #1 

 
 
 
 TO: All Registered Bidders  
 
 FROM: Jared F. Baxter, P.E. 
 
 DATE: April 1, 2015 
 
 RE: TOF-Main Street Extension- Bid Questions 
 
 
1. Are we performing the earthwork for this project? 
 
 The TOF has prepared the subgrade for this project.  No additional earthwork 

is anticipated. 
 
2.       If we are performing the earthwork can a bid item be added for earthwork or subgrade  

prep? 
 
 The TOF has prepared the subgrade for this project.  No additional earthwork 

is anticipated. 
  
3.       Does the pipe require ABC backfill since it Is a temporary road way? 
  
 The pipe will need to be installed per the MAG specs.  
 
4.       Who performs quality control testing and Quality Assurance? 
  
 QA / QC will be the winning contractor’s responsibility for the project.  The 

TOF will have field inspectors onsite to verify correct placement of all bid 
items per specs and requirements.   

 
5.       Who performs the Survey? 
  
 The TOF is responsible for the construction survey.  The TOF will coordinate 

with the winning contractor for the construction survey.  It is anticipated that 
the base material will be staked (blue topped) to verify the proper base 
material is placed. 

 
6.       If earthwork is to be done by contractor can we generate enough material to cover the 

site short fall from the parkway area to reduce cost? 
  
 The TOF has prepared the subgrade for this project.  No additional earthwork 

is anticipated. 



 

7580 N DOBSON RD. SUITE 200  3515 STONE WALL CIRCLE 
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85256   HEBER CITY, UT 84032   SCOTTSDALE • HEBER CITY 
480-818-6001    435-709-8234 
 

 
7.       Who is handling traffic control since there is no bid item? 
  
 Traffic control will be the responsibility of the winning contractor.  This item 

has been added to the bid schedule. 
 
8.       Is there a specific specification as to the type of Geo Grid to utilize as the spec is vague. 
 
  A specific Geogrid spec is “Macgrid EG11 Biaxial Geogrid” as noted on the 

 bid schedule.  The specific spec has been added to this addendum.  
 
9.    Also who does the clearing and grubbing? 
 
 The TOF has prepared the subgrade for this project.  Additional clearing and 

grubbing is not anticipated. 
 
10. Looks like all the earthwork for the project is complete.  Will the contractor be required 

to rip and compact the subgrade prior to the grid/abc  placement? 
 
The subgrade has been prepped and verified for both compaction and grade 
the last week of March.  It is not anticipated that additional subgrade 
preparation will be necessary prior to placement of the ABC/Geogrid.  The 
contractor should field verify prior to bid submittal. 

 
11. Are there thicken edges to be installed?  The plans do not denote any. 

 
Thickened asphalt edges are not a requirement of this project. 

 
12.       Once the paving is complete are we required to dress the edges up or will this be done 

by the earthwork contractor? 
  
 The unpaved shoulders of the roadway shall be dress/graded and brought to 

the same level of the asphalt  
 
13.       Is all the pipe installed or will it be installed before we mobilize? 
  
 The winning bidder is required to place the pipe as part of the project. 
 
14.      Who will do the testing on the ABC/AC? 
   
 The winning bidder is responsible for submitting of material specs for 

approval prior of placement.  The winning bidder is also responsible for the 
testing of the placed material.  Testing results will be submitted  to the TOF 
for approval. 

 
 



 

7580 N DOBSON RD. SUITE 200  3515 STONE WALL CIRCLE 
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85256   HEBER CITY, UT 84032   SCOTTSDALE • HEBER CITY 
480-818-6001    435-709-8234 
 

15. Will striping need to be included for the Florence Main Street Extension? If so, could you 
please revised the bid tab? 
 
Striping will be included as part of this project.  It has been added to the 
revised bid schedule. 
 

16. If excess material is generated during grading operation, is there a place to stockpile 
 material or will the contractor need to figuring hauling off. 

 
Excess material not use as part of this project will need to be removed at 
project completion.  A temporary stock pile area during the construction of 
the project can be coordinated with the TOF and winning bidder. 

 
17. If the project requires material is there a material stockpile that can be taken from or 

 will the contractor need to figure importing from a source? 
 

The subgrade has been prepped and verified for both compaction and the last 
week of March.  It is not anticipated that additional subgrade preparation will 
be necessary prior to placement of the ABC/Geogrid.  The contractor should 
field verify prior to bid submittal. 

 
 



TECHNICAL DATA SHEET
Rev: 02, Issue Date 1.23.2012

MACGRID® EG11 
BIAXIAL GEOGRID

Product Description
MacGrid® EG11 geogrid is composed of one layer of high strength extruded biaxial oriented polypropylene. MacGrid® EG11 distributes 
applied loads and prevents localized shear failure. Typical applications: soft soil stabilization; base reinforcement; embankments over 
weak soils; working platforms; haul roads.

www.maccaferri-usa.com

Headquarters:
10303 Governor Lane Boulevard
Williamsport, MD 21795-3116
Tel: 800-638-7744
Fax: 301-223-4590
email: info@maccaferri-usa.com

Area Offices:
AZ, Phoenix NJ, Iselin  TN, Chattanooga
CA, Sacramento NM, Albuquerque TX, Lewisville
FL, Coral Gables OH, Westerville WA, Seattle 
MD, Williamsport PR, Caguas
 

®2012  Maccaferri, Inc.  Printed in USA

Notes
1. Unless indicated otherwise, values shown are minimum average roll values determined in accordance with ASTM D4759-02. Brief descriptions of test procedures are given 
in the following notes.
2. Nominal dimensions.
3. True resistance to elongation when initially subjected to a load determined in accordance with ASTM D6637-01 without deforming test materials under load before 
measuring such resistance or employing “secant” or “offset” tangent methods of measurement so as to overstate tensile properties.
4. Load transfer capability determined in accordance with GRI-GG2-05 and expressed as a percentage of ultimate tensile strength.
5. Resistance to bending force determined in accordance with ASTM D5732-01, using specimens of width two ribs wide, with transverse ribs cut flush with exterior edges of 
longitudinal ribs (as a “ladder”), and of length sufficiently long to enable measurement of the overhang dimension. The overall Flexural Stiffness is calculated as the square 
root of the product of MD and XMD Flexural Stiffness values.
6. Resistance to in-plane rotational movement measured by applying a 20 kg-cm (2 m-N) moment to the central junction of a 9 inch x 9 inch specimen restrained at its 
perimeter in accordance with U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Methodology for measurement of Torsional Rigidity.
7. Resistance to loss of load capacity or structural integrity when subjected to mechanical installation stress in clayey sand (SC), well graded sand (SW), and crushed stone 
classified as poorly graded gravel (GP). The geogrid shall be sampled in accordance with ASTM D5818-06 and load capacity shall be determined in accordance with ASTM 
D6637-01.

Maccaferri reserves the right to amend product specifications without notice and specifiers are requested to check as to the validity of the specifications 

MATERIALS                                           
CHARACTERISTICS UNITS

Polymer Type 

TECHNICAL CHARACTERISTICS NOTES

Index Properties: MD XMD 1

Aperture Size mm (in) 25 (1.0)  33 (1.3) 2

Percent of Open Area % 3

Minimum Rib Thickness  mm (in)  0.76 (0.03) 0.76 (0.03) 2

Ultimate Tensile Strength lb/ft (kN/m)  850 (12.4) 1,300 (19.0) 4

Tensile Strength @ 2% Strain  lb/ft (kN/m) 280 (4.1) 450 (6.6) 4

Tensile Strength @ 5% Strain  lb/ft (kN/m) 580 (8.5)  920 (13.4) 4

Structural Integrity:

Junction Efficiency  % 5

Aperture Stability m-N/de 7

Flexural Stiffness  mg-cm 6

Durability:

Resistance to Installation Damage %SC/%SW/%GP 8

Resistance to Long Term Degradation % 9

Resistance to UV Degradation % 10

DIMENSIONAL CHARACTERISTICS UNIT NOTES

Roll Dimensions  (Width x Length)  ft x ft (m x m) 

Roll Area yd2 (m2) 

Typical Truckload Quantity  Rolls 

0.32

70

DATA

Polypropylene

MACGRID® EG11 

93

9.8 x246 (3.0x75) or 13.1x246 (4.0x75)

267.9 (225) or 358 (300)

185-250

250,000

95 / 93 / 90 

100

100

 MACGRID® EG11 



Main Steet Temporary Extension 
Bid Schedule (Revised)

1 Mobilization 1 L.S.

2 Asphalt Pavement Section 13,483 S.Y. 2" A.C.

3 Aggregate Base Course 3,011 C.Y. 8" A.B.C.

4 Geogrid Base Reinforcement 13,482 S.Y. Macgrid EG11 Biaxial Geogrid

5 Remove Conc. Irrigation ditch 54 L.F.

6 24" RGRCP (Class IV) Storm Drain 90 L.F.

7 RGRCP End Section 2 EA.

8 Striping 1 L.S.

9 Traffic Control 1 L.S.

TOTAL COSTS

CommentsUnit Cost ($) Total Cost ($)No. Description
Engineer 
Quantity

Unit



 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM

AGENDA ITEM 
10e. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Utilities Department  
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  John V. Mitchell, Utilities Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Award of Contract to McCain Construction for  
                    Construction of the Well #4 to Well #5  
                    Transmission Main Project                    

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to award a contract to McCain Construction, in an amount not to exceed 
$683,594. 
Subject: Award contract to McCain Construction   Meeting date: April 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2  
 

 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
  
The Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main Project has been designed to enhance water 
supply and availability to downtown Florence by providing a direct line between the new 
Well #3 to the Well #5 reservoir. This project is a precursor to future improvements to 
the Well #5 booster pump station and reservoir. 
 
The project was slated for construction for the May/June timeframe to minimize 
disruptions to winter visitors. 
 
The project was advertised and bids were opened on April 7, 2015; 13 companies bid 
the project and prices ranged from a low of $539,296.66 to a high of $940,614.15. The 
apparent lowest bidder, Tee Pee Construction, requested that their bid be pulled due to 
costs omitted from their bid. The next lowest bidder was McCain Construction with a bid 
of $683, 549.00. McCain Construction has been determined to be the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The current budget provides funding for this project (CIP WU-69). 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends an award to McCain Construction for the construction of the Well #4 
to Well #5 Transmission Main Project and authorize the Mayor to execute the contract 
documents on behalf of the Town. 
 
 
 
 



 

Subject: Award contract to McCain Construction  Meeting date: April 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Bid tabulation sheet 
McCain Bid 
Contract Documents 
 



































 

  
 

 
 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA 

INVITATION TO BID, PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS,  

AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

DATED: March, 2015 

FOR: 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
 

WELL #4 TO WELL #5 TRANSMISSION MAIN 
 

PROJECT # WU-69 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69 
 
 



                                                                                                          

   
 
 

 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, AZ 

 
INVITATION TO BID 

TOWN OF FLORENCE WELL #4 to WELL #5 TRANSMISSION MAIN  

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
 
 

SUBMITTAL DUE DATE AND TIME: 

SUBMITTAL LOCATION: 
 

 
 

PRE-BID MEETING DATE:  

ISSUING OFFICE : 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BIDDING DOCUMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANTICIPATED AWARD DATE: 
ANTICIPATED NOTICE TO PROCEED DATE: 

COMPLETION OF WORK: 
 

GENERAL OR BID PROCESS QUESTIONS: 
 
 

TECHNICAL QUESTIONS: 
 
  

 This project consists of the installation of mostly 16-inch and 12-inch 
water lines and other appurtances along with the removal and 
replacement of concrete curb and gutter, sidewalk, asphalt pavement 
and the application of microsurfacing. 

April 7, 2015 at 3:00 P.M. LOCAL AZ TIME 

Town of Florence 
Town Clerk 
775 N Main St.  
Florence, AZ  85132 

There is no Pre-Bid Meeting for this project. 

Town of Florence 
C/o Town Clerk 
775 N. Main Street 
Florence, AZ 85132 
Telephone:  (520) 868-7551 
Website: http://www.florenceaz.gov/rfp 
 
Bidding Documents, including plans and specifications along with any 
addenda or supplemental information, may be viewed and ordered online 
by registering with the Issuing Office via phone or email.  Following 
registration, complete sets of Bidding Documents may be downloaded 
from the Issuing Office’s website as “zipped” portable document format 
(PDF) files. The date that the Bidding Documents are transmitted by the 
Issuing Office will be considered the Bidder’s date of receipt of the Bidding 
Documents.  Partial sets of the Bidding Documents will not be available 
from the Issuing Office. 
 
April 20, 2015 
April 27, 2015 
60 Calendar Days from the Notice to Proceed. 
 
John Mitchell, Utility Director, (520) 868-8325, 
john.mitchell@florenceaz.gov 
 
Jonathan Lassuy, Project Manager, EPS Group Inc., (480) 503-2250 
jon.lassuy@epsgroupinc.com 
All questions must to be submitted via email only by 5:00 PM, 3/31/2015 
If necessary, answers to questions and other clarifications will be in an 
Addenda issued through the Issuing Office on or about 4/02/2015. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69 
 
 



                                                                                                          

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS 
 

DOCUMENT PAGE NO. 
 

Invitation to Bid 
 
Table of Contents of Bidding Documents 
 

 

Bid Submittal Checklist 1 

Instructions To Bidders 2 

Contract 10 

General Conditions of Contract 16 

Town Revisions to MAG Specifications 34 

Insurance Requirements 36 

Special Provisions List 38 

Bid Form 39 

Bid Schedule 40 

Acknowledgement of Agenda  42 

List of Subcontractors 43 

Statutory Bid Bond 44 

Resolution of Board of Directors 45 

Non-Collusive Bidding Certification 46 

W-9 Form 47 

Attachment 1:  Special Provisions  49 

  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69 
 
 



BID SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST 
  

It is the Bidder’s responsibility to be thoroughly familiar with all requirements and specifications.  The following 
checklist is provided as a courtesy only, and is not binding upon the Town nor does it modify, in any way, the terms or 
requirements of this ITB, any applicable statutes, rules, regulations , or the Town’s purchasing policies. 
 
□ 1. The Bid Schedule has been signed by an authorized representative of the firm.  Unsigned bids will not 

be considered. 
   

□ 2. The Bid Schedule has been fully completed, including prices offered (including any alternatives) 
have been fully filled in and reviewed for accuracy. 
 

□ 3. Any addenda have been reviewed and acknowledged on the form included in the ITB.  It is the 
Bidder’s responsibility to obtain all addenda relevant to this solicitation via the Issuing Office or other 
means. 
 

□ 4. The List of Subcontractors has been fully completed and executed by Bidder and reviewed for 
accuracy. 
 

□ 5. Bidder has reviewed all instructions, terms and conditions, and specifications to ensure your 
response fully complies. 
 

□ 6. Any required samples, descriptive literature, or enclosures have been included, if applicable.  
(Identify samples with Bidder’s name and solicitation number.) 
 

□ 7. The bid package and/or envelope have been identified with Bidder’s name, ITB number and ITB 
title. 
 

□ 8. The specified number of copies of Bidder’s response has been included if more than one (1) copy is 
required.  
 

□ 9. Insurance requirements have been reviewed and can be fully complied with. 
 

□ 10. Bid Bond has been fully executed by Bidder and appropriate Surety and is included. 
 

□ 11. The Resolution of Board of Directors for corporate Bidder has been fully executed and included, or 
other proof of authorization required under this ITB has been included. 
 

□ 12. The Non-Collusive Bidding Certification has been executed and included. 
 

□ 13. The W-9 Form is complete and included. 
 
  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 1  
 
 



                                                                                                          

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 

  DEFINED TERMS INSTRUCTION 1:

 Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders have the meanings indicated in the Contract, General 1.01
Conditions and Supplementary Conditions. Additional terms used in these Instructions to Bidders have the 
meanings indicated below: 

A. Engineer - The Engineer set forth in the Invitation to Bid or as otherwise designated in writing by the 
Town.  If no other Engineer is designated, the Engineer shall be the Issuing Office.   

B. ITB – The Invitation to Bid, all supporting documents included herewith, all Bidding Documents, and 
all properly issued Addenda. 

C. Issuing Office – The office from which the Bidding Documents are to be issued.  The Issuing Office is 
set forth in the Invitation to Bid above. 

D. Owner or Town – The Town of Florence, Arizona. 

E. Project - The Project set forth in the Project Description above. 

  COPIES OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS INSTRUCTION 2:

 Complete sets of the Bidding Documents may be obtained from the Issuing Office in the number and 2.01
format stated in the Invitation to Bid above. 

 Complete sets of Bidding Documents shall be used in preparing Bids.  Neither the Owner, the Engineer nor 2.02
the Issuing Office assumes any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of 
incomplete, modified or unofficial sets of Bidding Documents. 

 Owner, the Issuing Office and Engineer, in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the above 2.03
terms, do so only for the purpose of obtaining Bids for the Work and do not authorize or confer a license 
for any other use. 

  QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS INSTRUCTION 3:

 To demonstrate Bidder’s qualifications to perform the Work, after submitting its Bid and within 7 days of 3.01
Owner’s request, Bidder shall submit: (a) written evidence establishing its qualifications such as financial 
data, previous experience, and present commitments; and (b) the following additional information: 

A. Evidence of Bidder’s authority to do business in the state where the Project is located. 

B. Bidder’s state or other contractor license number and good standing. 

C. Evidence that each natural person submitting a Bid, including the officers, partners, members, 
and/or principals of the Bidder, to submit documentation of their lawful presence in the United 
States, pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 1-502. 

 A Bidder’s failure to submit required qualification information within the times indicated may disqualify 3.02
Bidder from receiving an award of the Contract. 

 No requirement in this Instruction 3 to submit information will prejudice the right of Owner to seek 3.03
additional information, as requested in the Town’s sole discretion, regarding Bidder’s qualifications. 

 Bidder is advised to carefully review those portions of the Bid Form requiring Bidder’s representations and 3.04
certifications. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 2  
 
 



                                                                                                          

  BIDDER’S PRE-BID OBLIGATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS INSTRUCTION 4:

 It is the responsibility of each Bidder before submitting a Bid to: 4.01

A. Examine and carefully study the Bidding Documents, and any data and reference items identified in 
the Bidding Documents; 

B. Visit the Site, conduct a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and 
become familiar with and satisfy itself as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect 
cost, progress, and performance of the Work; 

C. Become familiar with and satisfy itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, 
and performance of the Work; 

D. Carefully study all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the 
Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the 
Site that have been identified in the Special Provisions, especially with respect to Technical Data in 
such reports and drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental 
Conditions, if any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Special Provisions, 
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings; 

E. Consider the information known to Bidder itself; information commonly known to contractors doing 
business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the 
Bidding Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, 
with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, 
progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and 
procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder; and (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and 
programs; 

F. Become aware of the general nature of the work to be performed by the Town and others at the Site 
that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents; 

G. Promptly give Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that 
Bidder discovers in the Bidding Documents and confirm that the written resolution thereof by 
Engineer is acceptable to Bidder; and 

H. Determine that the Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding 
of all terms and conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work. 

 Bidder represents and agrees that: 4.02

A.  The submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that Bidder has 
complied with every requirement of this Instruction, that without exception the Bid and all prices in 
the Bid are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Bidding Documents; 
and 

B. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding ¶ 4.01, that at the time of 
submitting its Bid no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are 
necessary for the determination of its Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid and within 
the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding 
Documents. 

  PRE-BID MEETING INSTRUCTION 5:

 There is no Pre-Bid Meeting for this project. 5.01

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 3  
 
 



                                                                                                          

  INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA INSTRUCTION 6:

 All questions about the meaning or intent of the Bidding Documents are to be submitted to in writing as 6.01
set forth in the Invitation to Bid above.  Any interpretations, clarifications, or other/additional information 
considered necessary by Engineer and/or the Town in response to such questions, or otherwise, will be 
issued by Addenda.  

 Questions received after the Questions Due Date and Time set forth on the Invitation to Bid above may be 6.02
answered at the sole discretion of the Town.  Inquiries regarding this ITB directed to persons other than 
the Town’s designated representative may not be answered, and any answers received other than as set 
forth in this ITB will not be binding upon the Town for any purpose.   

 Only answers provided by written Addenda may be binding upon the Town.  Oral and other 6.03
interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. The Town shall not be held responsible if a 
Bidder fails to receive any addenda issued.  The Town shall not be responsible for any oral representations 
or statements relating to the solicitation specifications made by any employee, agent or officer of the 
Town.   

 Addenda may be issued to clarify, correct, supplement, or change the Bidding Documents. 6.04

 Receipt of Addenda shall be acknowledged by signing and returning the form included herein with the ITB 6.05
with the Bid by the specified Bid due date and time.  Potential Bidders are responsible for obtaining all 
addenda relevant to this ITB via the Issuing Office or other means. 

  BID SECURITY INSTRUCTION 7:

 A Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to Owner in an amount of ten percent of 7.01
Bidder’s maximum Bid price (determined by adding the base bid and all alternates) and in the form of a 
certified check, bank money order, or a Bid Bond in statutory form (on the form included in the Bidding 
Documents) issued by a surety meeting the requirements of the General Conditions and applicable law. 

 The Bid security of the apparent Successful Bidder will be retained until Owner awards the contract to 7.02
such Bidder, and such Bidder has executed the Contract Documents, furnished the required contract 
security, and met the other conditions of the Notice of Award, whereupon the Bid security will be 
released. If the Successful Bidder fails to execute and deliver the Contract Documents and furnish the 
required contract security within seven (7) days after the Notice of Award, Owner may consider Bidder to 
be in default, annul the Notice of Award, and the Bid security of that Bidder will be forfeited. Forfeiture 
will not preclude the Town from seeking any or all other remedies provided by law to recover losses 
sustained as a result of the Bidder’s failure to enter into the Agreement or to furnish the contract 
securities or insurance certificates and endorsements. 

 The Bid security of other Bidders that Owner believes to have a reasonable chance of receiving the award 7.03
may be retained by Owner until the earlier of seven (7) days after the Effective Date of the Contract or 61 
days after the Bid opening, whereupon Bid security furnished by such Bidders will be released. 

 Bid security of other Bidders that Owner believes do not have a reasonable chance of receiving the award 7.04
will be released within seven (7) days after the Bid Opening. 

  SUBSTITUTE AND “OR-EQUAL” ITEMS INSTRUCTION 8:

 The Contract for the Work, as awarded, will be on the basis of materials and equipment specified or 8.01
described in the Bidding Documents without consideration during the bidding and Contract award process 
of possible substitute or “or-equal” items.  In cases in which the Contract allows the Contractor to request 
that Engineer authorize the use of a substitute or “or-equal” item of material or equipment, application 
for such acceptance may not be made to and will not be considered by Engineer until after the Effective 
Date of the Contract. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 4  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 All prices that Bidder sets forth in its Bid shall be based on the presumption that the Contractor will 8.02
furnish the materials and equipment specified or described in the Bidding Documents, as supplemented 
by Addenda.  Any assumptions regarding the possibility of post-Bid approvals of “or-equal” or substitution 
requests are made at Bidder’s sole risk. 

   SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS, AND OTHERS INSTRUCTION 9:

 A Bidder shall be prepared to retain specific Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other individuals or entities for 9.01
the performance of the Work if required by the Bidding Documents to do so. If a prospective Bidder 
objects to retaining any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, and the concern is not 
relieved by an Addendum, then the prospective Bidder should refrain from submitting a Bid. 

 The Bidders shall submit to the Town with its response to this ITB a complete listing of all Subcontractors 9.02
the Bidder intends to use in the performance of the work specified in the ITB providing the information 
required in the Subcontractor List included in the ITB.  No bid for work involving these classifications will 
be valid without the complete listing of both subcontractors and major material suppliers as listed in the 
ITB and the included form List of Subcontractors. 

 PREPARATION OF BID INSTRUCTION 10:

 The Bid Schedule is included with the Bidding Documents. 10.01

A. All blanks on the Bid Schedule shall be completed in ink and the Bid Form signed in ink. Erasures or 
alterations shall be initialed in ink by the person signing the Bid Form. A Bid price shall be indicated 
for each section, Bid item, alternate, adjustment unit price item, and unit price item listed therein. 

B. If the Bid Schedule expressly indicates that submitting pricing on a specific alternate item is optional, 
and Bidder elects to not furnish pricing for such optional alternate item, then Bidder may enter the 
words “No Bid” or “Not Applicable.” 

 A Bid by a corporation shall be executed in the corporate name by a corporate officer (whose title must 10.02
appear under the signature), accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The corporate address and 
state of incorporation shall be shown. 

 A Bid by a partnership shall be executed in the partnership name and signed by a partner (whose title 10.03
must appear under the signature), accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The partnership’s 
address for receiving notices shall be shown. 

 A Bid by a limited liability company shall be executed in the name of the firm by a member or other 10.04
authorized person and accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The state of formation of the firm 
and the firm’s address for receiving notices shall be shown. 

 A Bid by an individual shall show the Bidder’s name and address for receiving notices. 10.05

 A Bid by a joint venture shall be executed by an authorized representative of each joint venturer in the 10.06
manner indicated on the Bid Form. The joint venture’s address for receiving notices shall be shown. 

 All names shall be typed or printed in ink below the signatures. 10.07

 The Bid shall contain an acknowledgment of receipt of all Addenda, the numbers of which shall be filled in 10.08
on the Bid Form. 

 Postal and e-mail addresses and telephone number for communications regarding the Bid shall be shown. 10.09

 The Bid shall contain evidence of Bidder’s authority and qualification to do business in Arizona and the 10.10
Town Bidder’s Arizona contractor license number and classification, and any other required business 
and/or tax licenses required by the Town shall also be shown on the Bid Form. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 5  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 If price is a consideration and in case of error of prices in the Bid, the unit price shall govern.  If there is a 10.11
conflict between values or prices written-out in text and values or prices expressed in numbers, the text 
values or prices shall control.   

 No Bid shall be altered, amended, or withdrawn after the specified due date and time.  10.12

 Periods of time, stated as a number of days, shall be calendar days.  10.13

 It is the responsibility of all Bidders to examine the entire ITB package and seek clarification of any item or 10.14
requirement and to check all responses for accuracy before submitting a Bid.  Negligence in preparing a 
Bid confers no right of withdrawal after Bid due date and time. 

 The Town shall not reimburse the cost of developing or providing any response to this ITB and 10.15
development and provision of any offer shall be at the respective Bidder’s sole cost.  Offers submitted for 
consideration should be prepared simply and economically, providing adequate information in a 
straightforward and concise manner.  

 BASIS OF BID INSTRUCTION 11:

 The Basis upon which Bids shall be calculated and submitted (Lump Sum/Fixed Price, Unit Price, and/or 11.01
Allowances for specific items) are set forth in the ITB, including the Bid Schedule. 

 Lump Sum/Fixed Price 11.02

A. Bidders shall submit a Bid on a lump sum basis as set forth in the Bid Form. 

 Unit Price 11.03

A. Bidders shall submit a Bid on a unit price basis for each item of Work listed in the unit price section 
of the Bid Form. 

B. The “Bid Price” (sometimes referred to as the extended price) for each unit price Bid item will be the 
product of the “Estimated Quantity” provided in the ITB (usually the Bid Schedule) for the item and 
the corresponding “Bid Unit Price” offered by the Bidder.  The total of all unit price Bid items will be 
the sum of these “Bid Prices”; such total will be used by Owner for Bid comparison purposes.  The 
final quantities and Contract Price will be determined in accordance with the General Conditions. 

C. Discrepancies between the multiplication of units of Work and unit prices will be resolved in favor of 
the unit prices. Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures and the correct 
sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum. 

 Allowances 11.04

A. For cash allowances the Bid price shall include such amounts as the Bidder deems proper for 
Contractor's overhead, costs, profit, and other expenses on account of cash allowances, if any, 
named in the Contract Documents, in accordance with the General Conditions. 

 SUBMITTAL OF BID INSTRUCTION 12:

 With each copy of the Bidding Documents, a Bidder is furnished one separate unbound copy of the Bid 12.01
Form, and, if required, the Bid Bond Form. Three (3) unbound copies of the Bid Form are to be completed 
and submitted with the Bid security and the other documents required to be submitted under the terms 
of Instruction 7. 

 A Bid shall be received no later than the date and time prescribed and at the place indicated in the 12.02
advertisement or invitation to bid and shall be enclosed in a plainly marked package with the Project title 
(and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the Bid is submitted), the name and 
address of Bidder, and shall be accompanied by the Bid security and other required documents. If a Bid is 
sent by mail or other delivery system, the sealed envelope containing the Bid shall be enclosed in a 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 6  
 
 



                                                                                                          

separate package plainly marked on the outside with the notation “BID ENCLOSED.” A mailed Bid shall be 
addressed to Town of Florence, AZ, Town Clerk, 775 N. Main St., Florence, AZ 85132. 

 Bids received after the date and time prescribed for the opening of bids, or not submitted at the correct 12.03
location or in the designated manner, will not be accepted, opened, or considered. 

 By signature on the Bid Form, the Bidder certifies that: 12.04

A. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices.  

B. The Bidder shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment in violation of 
the Federal Executive Order 11246.  

C. The Bidder has not given or offered to give, and does not intend to give at any time hereafter any 
economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip favor, or service 
to a public servant in connection with the submitted offer.   

D. Failure to sign the offer, or the falsity of a statement in a signed offer, shall void the submitted offer 
or any resulting contracts, and the Bidder may be debarred.    

 MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BID INSTRUCTION 13:

 A Bid may be withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed in the same manner that a Bid must 13.01
be executed and delivered to the place where Bids are to be submitted prior to the date and time for the 
opening of Bids. Upon receipt of such notice, the unopened Bid will be returned to the Bidder. 

 If a Bidder wishes to modify its Bid prior to Bid opening, Bidder must withdraw its initial Bid in the manner 13.02
specified in Paragraph 13.01 and submit a new Bid prior to the date and time for the opening of Bids. 

 If within 24 hours after Bids are opened any Bidder files a duly signed written notice with Owner and 13.03
promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of Owner that there was a material and 
substantial mistake in the preparation of its Bid, that Bidder may withdraw its Bid, and the Bid security 
will be returned. Thereafter, if the Work is rebid, that Bidder may, in the Town’s sole discretion, be 
disqualified from further bidding on the Work. 

 OPENING OF BIDS INSTRUCTION 14:

 Bids will be opened at the time and place indicated in the Invitation to Bid above and, unless obviously 14.01
non-responsive, read aloud publicly. An abstract of the amounts of the base Bids and major alternates, if 
any, will be made available to Bidders after the opening of Bids 

 All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for the period of time stated in the Bid Form and each Bidder 14.02
agrees that it will hold open its offer for such period, but Owner may, in its sole discretion, release any Bid 
and return the Bid security prior to the end of this period.  Unless otherwise specified in the ITB, all 
Bidders and their Subcontractors shall hold their bids valid for a period of 60 days from the proposal due 
date stated on the Advertisement for Bids. 

 EVALUATION OF BIDS  INSTRUCTION 15:

 Owner reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, including without limitation, nonconforming, 15.01
nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids. Owner will reject the Bid of any Bidder that Owner finds, 
after reasonable inquiry and evaluation, to not be responsible. If Bidder purports to add terms or 
conditions to its Bid, takes exception to any provision of the Bidding Documents, or attempts to alter the 
contents of the Contract Documents for purposes of the Bid, then the Owner may reject the Bid as 
nonresponsive. 

 If Owner awards the contract for the Work, such award shall be to the responsible Bidder submitting the 15.02
lowest responsive Bid. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 7  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 Evaluation of Bids: 15.03

A. In evaluating Bids, Owner will consider whether or not the Bids comply with the prescribed 
requirements, and such alternates, unit prices, and other data, as may be requested in the Bid Form 
or prior to the Notice of Award. 

 In evaluating whether a Bidder is responsible, Owner will consider the qualifications of the Bidder and 15.04
may consider the qualifications and experience of Subcontractors and Suppliers proposed for those 
portions of the Work for which the identity of Subcontractors and Suppliers must be submitted as 
provided in the Bidding Documents. 

 Owner may conduct such investigations as Owner deems necessary to establish the responsibility, 15.05
qualifications, and financial ability of Bidders and any proposed Subcontractors or Suppliers. 

 Any terms of the Bidder’s submittal that conflict with the language and requirements of the Town’s 15.06
solicitation or that take exception to the terms, conditions, specifications and/or other requirements 
stated within this ITB, may cause the Bidder’s submittal to be considered nonresponsive and rejected.  
Exceptions may be evaluated by the Town on an individual basis to determine compliance with the 
purpose and intent of the terms and conditions stated within this solicitation. 

 AWARD AND SIGNING OF CONTRACT INSTRUCTION 16:

 Notwithstanding any other provision of this ITB, the Town expressly reserves the right, when determining 16.01
whether to award a contract to the lowest responsive and responsible Bidder who has neither been 
disqualified nor rejected pursuant to the terms and conditions of the ITB, to: 

A. Waive any immaterial defect or informality; and/or  
B. Reject any or all Bids, or portions thereof; and/or  
C. Reissue an Invitation to Bid; and/or 
D. Exercise any other rights available to the Town under the terms of the ITB, the Town Code, law, or 

equity. 

 When Owner issues a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it shall be accompanied by the 16.02
unexecuted counterparts of the Contract along with the other Contract Documents as identified in the 
Contract. Within 10 days thereafter, Successful Bidder shall execute and deliver the required number of 
counterparts of the Contract (and any bonds and insurance documentation required to be delivered by 
the Contract Documents) to Owner. Within ten days thereafter, Owner shall deliver one fully executed 
counterpart of the Contract to Successful Bidder. 

 ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS INSTRUCTION 17:

 Contract Applicability:  The Bidder shall substantially conform to the terms, conditions, specifications, and 17.01
other requirements found within the text of this specific ITB.  All previous agreements, contracts, or other 
documents, which have been executed between the Bidder and the Town, are not applicable to this ITB or 
any resultant contract.   

 Gratuities:  The Town may, by written notice to the Bidder, cancel the resultant contract if it is found by 17.02
the Town that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 
Bidder or any agent or representative of the Bidder, to any officer or employee of the Town with a view 
toward securing an order, securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding, amending, or the 
making of any determinations with respect to the performing of such order.  In the event the Town 
pursuant to this provision cancels the resultant contract, the Town shall be entitled, in addition to any 
other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold from Contractor the amount of gratuity.  Paying the 
expense of normal business meals, which are generally made available to all eligible Town government 
customers, shall not be prohibited by this paragraph.  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 8  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 Public Record:  All offers submitted in response to this ITB, whether or not accepted by the town, shall 17.03
become a matter of public record available for public inspection, subsequent to the award notification, in 
accordance with the Town’s Procurement Policy and Arizona’s Public Records laws. 

 Confidential Information:  If a person believes that a bid, ITB, offer, specification, or protest contains 17.04
information that should be withheld, a statement advising the Town of this fact shall accompany the 
submission and the information shall be identified.  The information identified by the person as 
confidential shall not be disclosed until the Town makes a written determination. 

 Lobbying Prohibition:  Any communication regarding this solicitation for the purpose of influencing the 17.05
process or the award, between any person or affiliates seeking an award from this solicitation and the 
Town, including but not limited to the Town Council, employees, and contractors engaged to assist in the 
solicitation, is prohibited. 

A. This prohibition is imposed from the time of the first public notice of the solicitation until the Town 
cancels the solicitation, rejects all responses, awards a Contractor, and otherwise takes action which 
ends the solicitation process.  This section shall not prohibit public comment at any Town Council 
meeting, study session or Town committee meeting. 

B. This prohibition shall not apply to communication with the official contact(s) specifically identified in 
the solicitation or Town-initiated communications for the purposes of conducting the procurement, 
and in the manner prescribed in the solicitation, including but not limited to pre-bid conferences, 
clarification of responses, presentations if provided for in the solicitation, requests for Best and Final 
Proposals, contract negotiations, interviews, protest/appeal resolution, or surveying non-responsive 
vendors. 

C. Violations of this provision shall be reported to Purchasing and may be a basis for rejecting a 
response or disbarment of the violator by the Town.  Persons and/or entities violating this 
prohibition may be subject to a warning letter, rejection of their response, or disbarment by the 
Town, in the Town’s discretion, depending on the nature of the violation.  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 9  
 
 



                                                                                                          

CONTRACT  
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 

CONTRACT FOR  
Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 

PROJECT #: WU-69 
 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into on the ______day of ______________, 20___, by and between 
Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation, hereinafter called “Town” and the “Contractor” designated 
below: 
 

Town and Contractor agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1 – PARTICIPANTS AND PROJECT 
 

TOWN: Town of Florence, Arizona 
Project Manager: John V. Mitchell 
Telephone: (520) 868-8325  
E-mail: John.Mitchell@florenceaz.gov  

 
CONTRACTOR: {Name} 

{Address} 
Arizona ROC No.:   
Federal Tax ID No:  
Representative: 
Telephone: 
E-mail: 
 

 
ENGINEER/: EPS Group, Inc. 
DESIGNER 2045 S. Vineyard Avenue, Suite 101 
 Mesa, AZ  85210 
 Representative:  Jonathan Lassuy 

Telephone:  (480) 503-2250 
E-mail:  jon.lassuy@epsgroupinc.com 

 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The project consists of the installation of mostly 16-inch and 12-inch water lines and other 
appurtances along with the removal and replacement of concrete curb and gutter, sidewalk, asphalt pavement and 
the application of microsurfacing. 
   
PROJECT LOCATION:           Town of Florence 
  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 10  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 
 
 
 

 
ARTICLE 2 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 
2.1 Contract Documents.   The Contract between Town and Contractor shall consist of the 

following Contract Documents: 
 

Invitation to Bid MAG Specifications 
Instructions to Bidders List of Subcontractors 
General Contract Conditions Contract Change Order Form 
Special Provisions Non-Collusive Bidding Certification 
Statutory Bid Bond Affidavit Regarding Settlement of Claims 
Statutory Payment Bond Bid Terms 
Statutory Performance Bond Bidding Form 
Insurance Requirements  Acknowledgement of Addenda Received 
Bidder’s Qualification Statement Specification Book 
MAG Details Town Modifications to MAG Specifications 
 

In the event of a conflict of language between the documents, the provisions of the ITB shall govern.  The ITB shall 
govern in all other matters not otherwise specified by the Contract between the parties.  All previous contracts 
between the Bidder and Town are not applicable to this Contract or other resultant contracts 

2.2 Definitions.  The definitions in Section 1 of the General Conditions apply to all the Contract 
Documents, including this Agreement.  Additional definitions or defined terms applicable to all the Contract 
Documents for this Project, if any, include the following: 

NA 

2.3 Project Specific Conditions.  If there are any additional conditions that apply to this Project, they 
are set forth in the Special Provisions included in the ITB. 

2.4 Project Plans And Specifications.  A detailed list of the plans and specifications for this Project are 
included in the ITB. 

ARTICLE 3 – DESIGN PHASE SERVICES 

Contractor is not providing any Design Phase Services to the Town in relation to this Project.  

ARTICLE 4 – CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

4.1 General. 

4.1.1 Contractor agrees at its own cost and expense, to do all work necessary and required to 
fully, timely and properly complete the construction of the Project in strict accordance with the Contract 
Documents in a good and workmanlike manner, free and clear of all claims, liens, and charges whatsoever, in the 
manner and under the conditions specified, within the Project Schedule. 

4.1.2 Contractor shall provide all of the labor and materials, and perform the Work in 
accordance with Section 4 of the General Conditions.  Some but not all of the major components of the 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 11  
 
 



                                                                                                          

Construction Services and the corresponding subsections of Section 4 of the General Conditions are set forth 
below. 

4.1.3 At all times relevant to this Contract and performance of the Work, the shall fully 
comply with all Laws, Regulations, or Legal Requirements applicable to Town, the Project and the Contract, 
including, without limitation, those set forth in the General Conditions. 

4.1.4 Contractor shall perform the Work under this Contract using only those firms, team 
members and individuals designated by Contractor consistent with Contractor’s accepted Bid, or otherwise, 
approved by Town pursuant to the General Conditions. No other entities or individuals may be used without the 
prior written approval of the Project Manager. 

4.1.5 Contractor will comply with all terms and conditions of the General Conditions. 

4.1.6 In the event of a conflict between this Contract and the General Conditions or any 
exhibit hereto or appendix thereto, the terms of this Contract shall control. 

4.1.7 Ownership of Work Product.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Contract, 
all Work Product prepared or otherwise created in connection with the performance of this Contract, including the 
Work, are to be and remain the property of Town.  For purposes of this provision, “Work Product” shall include all 
designs, drawings, plans, specifications, ideas, renderings and other information or matter, in whatever form 
created (e.g., electronic or printed) and in all media now known or hereinafter created.  All Work Product shall be 
considered Work Made for Hire as defined in the United States Copyright Act 17 U.S.C. § 101 (Copyright Act).  If for 
any reason any such Work is found not to be a work for hire, Contractor hereby transfers and assigns ownership of 
the copyright in such Work to Town. The rights in this Section are exclusive to Town in perpetuity. 

4.2 Contractor’s Pre-Contract and Pre-Work Deliverables. 

4.2.1 The Contractor will provide the Deliverables in accordance with Section 4.2 of the 
General Conditions. 

4.2.2 Any additional items which Contractor must deliver to Town prior to commencing the 
Work on this Project, if any, include the following:  NA 

4.3 Pre-Construction Conference.   Contractor shall attend the Pre-Construction Conference in 
accordance with Section 4.3 of the General Conditions. 

4.4 Performance of the Work (Including Field Measurements, Subcontractors, and Suppliers).  
Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with Section 4.4 of the General Conditions. 

4.5 Control Of The Project Site.  Contractor shall control and maintain the Project Site in accordance 
with Section 4.5 of the General Conditions. 

4.6 Project Safety.  Contractor shall implement and enforce Project safety in accordance with Section 
4.6 of the General Conditions. 

4.7 Materials Quality, Substitutions and Shop Drawings.  Contractor shall provide materials testing and 
submit substitute materials and shop drawings in accordance with Section 4.7 of the General Conditions. 

4.8 Project Record Documents.  Contractor shall maintain and make available the Project Record 
Documents in accordance with Section 4.8 of the General Conditions. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 12  
 
 



                                                                                                          

4.9 Warranty and Correction of Defective Work.  Contractor shall provide warranties and correct 
defective Work in accordance with Section 4.9 of the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 5 – TOWN RESPONSIBILITIES 

5.1 Town shall have the responsibilities, and provide the information specified in, and subject to the 
conditions set forth in, Section 5 of the General Conditions. 

5.2 Additional services to be provided or responsibilities assumed, by Town, if any, are listed below:
 NA 

5.3 Additional Information to be provided by Town, if any, is listed below:  NA 

ARTICLE 6 - CONTRACT TIME 

6.1 Contract Time. 

6.1.1 The Contract Time shall start with the Notice to Proceed (NTP) and end with Final 
Acceptance, as set forth Section 6.4 below.  The Notice to Proceed cannot be issued until prior to the approval and 
acceptance by Town of the Bid. 

6.1.2 The Contract Time shall be as set forth in the Project Schedule.  Contractor agrees that it 
will commence performance of the Work and complete the Project within the Contract Time.   

6.1.3 Time is of the essence of this Contract, for the Project, and for each phase and/or 
designated Milestone thereof. 

6.1.4 Failure on the part of Contractor to adhere to the approved Project Schedule will be 
deemed a material breach and sufficient grounds for termination of this Contract by Town. 

6.2 Project Schedule.  The Project Schedule as set forth in the ITB and/or an Exhibit to this Contract 
shall be updated and maintained throughout Contractor’s performance under this Contract in accordance with 
Section 6.2 of the General Conditions. 

6.3 Section Not Used 

6.4 Final Completion and Final Acceptance.  

6.4.1 Final Completion will be obtained within the time period set forth in the Project Schedule, 
which is:  _60 days. 

6.4.2 Final Completion will be determined and Final Acceptance will be issued pursuant to 
Section 6.4 of the General Conditions. 

6.5 Liquidated Damages.  

6.5.1 Liquidated Damages.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees that if Contractor fails to 
obtain Completion of the Work within the Contract Time, Town will sustain extensive damages and serious loss as 
a result of such failure.  The exact amount of such damages will be extremely difficult to ascertain.  Therefore, 
Town and Contractor agree that if Contractor fails to achieve Completion of the Work within the Contract Time, 
Town shall be entitled to retain or recover from Contractor, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the 
following per diem amounts commencing from the Completion Date required under the Contract until the actual 
date of the Completion of the work. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 13  
 
 



                                                                                                          

6.5.2 Section Not Used 

6.5.3 MAG Liquidated Damages.  If no liquidated damages are specified in Sections 6.5.1 
and/or 6.5.2 above, then the liquidated damages provisions in MAG § 108.9 shall apply. 

6.5.4 Town may deduct liquidated damages described in this Section 6.5 above from any 
unpaid amounts then or thereafter due Contractor under this Agreement.  Any liquidated damages not so 
deducted from any unpaid amounts due Contractor shall be payable to Town at the demand of Town, together 
with interest from the date of the demand at the highest lawful rate of interest payable by Contractor. 

6.6.3 Nothing herein shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of any other remedy available to 
Town in the event of Contractor’s default under this Contract prior to full performance of the Work including, as 
applicable, specific performance or completion of the Work on behalf of Contractor, the cost and expense of which 
shall be offset against any monies then or thereafter due to Contractor (if any) and otherwise immediately 
reimbursed to Town by Contractor. 

ARTICLE 7 - CONTRACT PRICE 

7.1 Contact Price.  

7.1.1 In exchange for Contractor’s full, timely, and acceptable performance and construction 
of the Work under this Contract, and subject to all of the terms of this Contract, Town will pay Contractor the 
“Contract Price”, which is  $_________________________. 

7.1.2 The Contract Price is all inclusive and specifically includes all fees, costs, insurance and 
bond premiums, and taxes of any type necessary to fully, properly and timely perform and construct the Work.  

7.2 Costs.  For any portion of the Work which, either through this Contract, Change Order or otherwise, 
is performed and paid for on a cost, or time and materials, basis, the costs which may be reimbursed to Contractor 
and/or chargeable against the Contract Price shall be determined as set forth in Section 7.3 of the General 
Conditions.  

ARTICLE 8 – PAYMENT 

Payments shall be made to Contractor in accordance with Section 8 of the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 9 – CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT 

Changes to the Contract may be made in strict accordance with Section 9 of the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 10 – SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 

This Contract may be suspended and/or terminated in accordance with Section 10 of the General 
Conditions. 

ARTICLE 11 – INSURANCE AND BONDS 

11.1 Contractor shall provide Insurance as provided in the Insurance Requirement included in the ITB, 
and in accordance with Section 11.1 of the General Conditions. Contractor shall provide proof of such insurance 
and all required endorsements in forms acceptable to Town prior to commencing any Work under this Contract.   

11.2 Contractor shall provide performance and payment bonds to Town in accordance with Section 
11.2 of the General Conditions and A.R.S. § 34-610(A).     

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 14  
 
 



                                                                                                          

11.3 Failure to provide proof of insurance and the required endorsements, or the required bonds, in 
forms acceptable to Town, will be a material breach and grounds for termination for cause of this Contract. 

ARTICLE 12 – INDEMNIFICATION 

Contractor shall have and assume the indemnity obligations set forth in Section 12 of the General 
Conditions. 

ARTICLE 13 - DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Any claims or disputes relating to this Contract shall be resolved according to the dispute resolution 
process set forth in Section 13 of the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 14 – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

The miscellaneous provisions set forth in Section 14 of the General Conditions shall apply to this Contract. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract through their duly authorized 
representatives and bind their respective entities as of the effective date. 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE: 
 

By:        
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Town Clerk 
  
 
REVIEWED AS TO FORM: 
 
  
Town Attorney 

CONTRACTOR: 
 

By:                
Its:_________________________________ 

  
 
   
  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 15  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT 
 

These terms will be the General Conditions for any Contract entered into as a result of the ITB and are 
incorporated therein and shall be fully binding upon the Bidder/Contractor 

 
SECTION 1 — SCOPE OF THESE GENERAL CONDITIONS 

These General Conditions encompass provisions that apply, and are incorporated into all construction 
contracts entered into by the Town of Florence, unless otherwise specifically excluded in the executed Contract. 
Sections 2 through 14 of these General Conditions apply to all construction contracts, in whatever form, including 
without limitation, Fixed Price, Construction Manager at Risk (CM@Risk), Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Cost-
Based, and Job Order Contracts (JOC).  

SECTION 2 — GENERAL DEFINITIONS 

2.1. The Definitions in the Invitation to Bid (ITB), the Request for Proposals (RFP), the Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) and/or the JOC Solicitation (JOC) giving rise to the Contract shall apply to these General 
Conditions and the Contract for the Project.  

2.2. Change Order – A written instrument issued after execution of the Contract Documents signed 
by Town and Contractor, stating their agreement upon all of the following: the addition, deletion or revision in the 
scope of services or deliverables; the amount of the adjustment to the Contract Price, the extent of the adjustment 
to the Contract Time, or modifications of other contract terms. The Contract Price and the Contract Time may be 
changed only by Change Order. 

2.3. Town (Owner or OWNER) – Town of Florence, Arizona a municipal corporation, with whom 
Contractor has entered into the Contract and for whom the Services and/or Work are to be provided pursuant to 
the Contract(s). 

2.4. Contract – The written agreement executed between Town and Contractor, including all of the 
Contract Documents. 

2.5. Contract Documents – The documents which together form the Contract between Town and 
Contractor, as identified in Article 2 of the Contract, or are otherwise incorporated into the Contract, including the 
Contract, the exhibits thereto, these General Conditions, any Notice to Proceed, and any Job Order (if applicable), 
the Plans and Specifications, Project Schedule, written and properly executed Change Orders, MAG Specifications 
and Town’s amendments thereto, and any other documents so designated in the Contact. 

2.6. Contract Price – The agreed-upon price to be paid to Contractor for full, timely, and acceptable 
completion of the Services or Work under the terms of the Contract. 

2.7. Contract Time(s) – The number of days or the dates related to the Final Completion as stated in 
Contract Documents. The Contract Time is set forth in the Contract, and is based upon the Project Schedule agreed 
to by Town in writing. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 16  
 
 



                                                                                                          

2.8. Contractor – The person or corporation with whom Town has entered into an agreement for 
construction related work or services in relation to the Project at issue. As used in these General Conditions, the 
term Contractor includes CM@Risk and JOC under contract with Town to provide pre-construction and/or 
construction services. 

2.9. Contractor Payment Request – The form that is accepted by Town and used by Contractor in 
requesting progress payments or final payment and which shall include such supporting documentation as is 
required by the Contract Documents and/or Town. 

2.10. Construction Documents – The plans, specifications, and drawings prepared and issued by the 
Design Professional and approved by Town for construction, meaning the documents are sealed by the Contractor 
(as required), acceptable for permitting and incorporated into the Contract by reference. All amendments and 
modifications to the Construction Documents must be approved in writing by Town prior to incorporation into the 
Contract. 

2.11. Critical Path – Critical path is the sequence of project network activities which add up to the 
longest overall duration. Once established in the Project Schedule, the Critical Path for the Project shall not be 
changed without prior written approval of Town. 

2.12. Day Calendar day(s) unless otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents. 

2.13. Float – The number of Days by which an activity can be delayed without lengthening the Critical 
Path and extending the Contract Time. Unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing, all Float belongs to Town. 

2.14. MAG Specifications – The latest revision of the latest edition (or the latest edition adopted by 
the Town) of the Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction published by MAG. 

2.15. MAG Standard Details – The latest revision of the latest edition (or the latest edition adopted by 
the Town) of Uniform Standard Details as published by MAG. 

2.16. Notice to Proceed (NTP) – A written notice given by Town to Contractor fixing the date on which 
Contractor will start to perform Contractor’s obligations under the Contract. The Notice to Proceed shall not be 
issued until the Contract Price is approved and accepted by Town. 

2.17. Project – The Project specified in the Contract (including a Job Order). 

2.18. Project Manager – The Project Manager designated in Article 1 of the Contract, or any successor 
thereto designated by Town. The Project Manager has the authority to act on behalf of Town, as delineated and 
limited by the Contract Documents and applicable law.  Town shall communicate with Contractor through the 
Project Manager. However, the Project Manager has no authority to bind Town or Town Council in contravention 
of any Town code, State or Federal statute or regulation, or these General Conditions. 

2.19. Project Schedule – The schedule for the completion of the Project agreed to and/or required by 
Town and incorporated into the Contract. 

2.20. Project Specific Provisions – Additional conditions which apply to the specific Project and/or 
Scope of Work which are set forth in the ITB. 

2.21. Proposal – A Proposal submitted to the Town by a Contractor in response to an Invitation to Bid 
(ITB), Request for Qualifications (RFQ), an Request for Proposals (RFP) or other solicitation or request by the Town. 
Proposals may be Fixed Price, Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP), Unit Price, or other form as required or 
requested by the Town. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 17  
 
 



                                                                                                          

2.22. Requests for Information (RFIs) – Formal written request from Contractor to Town and/or 
Contractor for the Project seeking clarification or additional information needed for Contractor to properly 
complete the Work and/or Services under the Contract. Town may require RFI’s to be submitted on a specific form 
or in a specified format. 

2.23. Schedule of Values (SOV) – The specified document prepared by Contractor, and approved and 
accepted by Town, which divides the Contract Price into pay items, such that the sum of all pay items equals the 
Contract Price for the construction phase Work, or for any portion of the Work having a separate specified 
Contract Price. 

2.24. Scope of Work – The scope of work agreed to and/or required by Town and incorporated into 
the Contract as set forth in the ITB and/or an Exhibit to the Contract. 

2.25. Subconsultant – A person, firm or corporation having a Contract with Consultant/Contractor to 
furnish services required as its independent professional associate or consultant with respect to the Project. 

2.26. Subcontractor – An individual or firm having a direct Contract with Contractor or any other 
individual or firm having a Contract with the aforesaid contractors at any tier, who undertakes to perform a part of 
the pre-construction services or construction phase Work at the site for which Contractor is responsible. 
Subcontractors shall be selected through the Subcontractor selection process described in the Contract 
Documents, if any. 

2.27. Total Float – Number of Days by which the pre-construction services or construction phase Work 
or any part of the same may be delayed without necessarily extending a pertinent Contract Time or schedule 
milestone in the Project Schedule. 

2.28. Work – The entire completion of construction or the various separately identifiable parts 
thereof, required to be furnished during the construction phase. Work includes and is the result of performing or 
furnishing labor and furnishing and incorporating materials, resources and equipment into the construction, and 
performing or furnishing services and documents as required by the Contract Documents for the construction 
phase. 

SECTION 3 — STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS 

3.1. Town operates under the latest revision of the MAG Specifications as amended by Town.  

3.2. Town also operates under the MAG Standard Details, as amended by Town.  

3.3. Copies of the MAG Specifications and MAG Standard Details are available at the Maricopa 
Association of Governments office, 302 N. 1st Avenue, Suite 300, Phoenix, Arizona. They may also 
be downloaded at their Web site: http://www.mag.maricopa.gov/under “Publications.” 

3.4. The MAG Specifications and Standard Details and Town’s amendments thereto are incorporated 
into the Contract. 

SECTION 4 — CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 

4.1 General 

4.1.1 Contractor shall construct the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and as 
outlined in the Contract Documents to the satisfaction of Town, exercising the degree of professional care, skill, 
diligence, quality and judgment that a professional Contractor engaged, experienced and specializing in the 
construction of construction and/or facilities of similar scope, function, size, quality, complexity and detail in urban 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 18  
 
 



                                                                                                          

areas throughout the United States comparable to the Town would exercise at such time, under similar conditions. 
Contractor shall, at all times, perform the Work in conformance with sound and generally accepted engineering 
principles and construction management and construction contracting practices. 

4.1.2 Contractor shall comply with, and require all Subcontractors to comply with, the Arizona 
Contractors’ license laws, including all requirements with respect to being duly registered and licensed. 

4.1.3 Immigration Laws:  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-4401, Contractor warrants to Town that 
Contractor and all its subcontractors are in compliance and will comply with all Federal Immigration laws and 
regulations that relate to their employees and with the E-Verify Program under A.R.S. § 23-214(A).  Contractor 
acknowledges that a breach of this warranty by Contractor or any of its subcontractors is a material breach of this 
Agreement subject to penalties up to and including termination of the Contract or any subcontract.  The Town 
retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any employee of or any subcontractor who works on this Contract to 
ensure compliance with this warranty, and may conduct random verification of the employment records of 
Contractor and any of its subcontractors to ensure compliance with this warranty.  Town will not consider 
Contractor or any of its subcontractors in material breach of the foregoing warranty if Contractor and its 
subcontractors establish that they have complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by 8 
USCA § 1324(a) and (b) of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the e-verify requirements prescribed by 
Arizona Revised Statutes § 23-214(A). The provisions of this Section must be included in any agreement Contractor 
enters into with its subcontractors who provide services under this Agreement or any subcontract.  "Services" are 
defined as furnishing labor, time or effort in the State of Arizona by a contractor or subcontractor.  Services include 
construction or maintenance of any structure, building or transportation facility or improvement to real property. 
Breach of this warranty shall constitute a material breach of the contract and shall subject the Contractor to 
penalties including termination of the Agreement at the sole discretion of the Town. 

4.5.4   Contractor further understands and acknowledges the applicability to it of the American 
with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989.  
The Contractor understands and Acknowledges that it must also comply with A.R.S. § 34-301, "Employment of 
Aliens on Public Works Prohibited", and A.R.S. § 34-302, as amended, "Residence Requirements for Employees,”  
and A.R.S. §§ 1-501 and 502. 

4.2 Contractor’s Pre-Contract and Pre-Work Deliverables 

4.2.1 Before beginning any Work under the Contract, Contractor shall execute the Contract 
and deliver to Town the items listed in Sections 4.2.2 below within seven (7) days after the award of the Contract 
and the Contract must be executed by Town.  Failure to do so will be a material breach of the Contract entitling 
Town to terminate the Contract for Cause. 

4.2.2 When Contractor delivers the executed Contract to Town, Contractor shall also deliver 
to Town such bonds and certificates of insurance with endorsements in such amounts (and other evidence of 
insurance requested by Town) required under Section 11 of these General Conditions, and as the Contract 
requires. 

4.2.3 Government Approvals and Permits.  Contractor shall obtain all necessary permits for 
the Work and pay all applicable fees, unless otherwise noted on the plans and in the specifications.  Contractor is 
specifically notified of the need to obtain the necessary environmental permits or file the necessary environmental 
and regulatory permit notices.  Copies of all permits and the associated notices must be provided to Town prior to 
starting the permitted activity. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 19  
 
 



                                                                                                          

4.3 Pre-Construction Conference  

4.3.1 Prior to the commencement of any Work, Town may schedule a Pre-Construction 
Conference. 

4.3.2   Prior to the Pre-construction Conference, Contractor shall provide the Project Team with a 
Schedule of Values in a form specified by Town reflecting the subcontracts and other categories that will be used 
to submit Pay Applications for the Work. The total amount of the Schedule of Values shall not be greater than the 
Contract Price and shall identify Contractor’s Contingency, if applicable. The Schedule of Values shall be reviewed 
at the Pre-Construction Conference and revised in response to comments and questions from Town. Once 
accepted by Town in writing, the Schedule of Values for the Project will not be changed without the prior written 
approval of Town. 

4.4 Performance of the Work (Including Field Measurements, Subcontractors and Suppliers) 

4.4.1  Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of Town 
or a separate Contractor, Contractor shall provide through itself or Subcontractors the necessary supervision, 
labor, inspection, testing, start-up, material, equipment, machinery, temporary utilities and other temporary 
facilities to permit Contractor to complete the Work consistent with the Contract Documents. 

4.4.2 Contractor’s Superintendent shall be present at the Site at all times that material Work 
under this Contract is taking place. Contractor’s Superintendent or designee shall be present at the Site at all times 
any other Work under this Contract is taking place.  All elements of the Work shall be under the direct supervision 
of a foreman or his designated representative on the Site who shall have the authority to take actions required to 
properly carry out that particular element of the work. 

4.4.3 Before ordering materials or doing work, Contractor and each Subcontractor shall verify 
measurements at the Site and shall be responsible for the correctness of such measurements. No extra charge or 
compensation will be allowed because of differences between actual dimensions and the dimensions indicated on 
the Contract Documents, including the drawings. 

4.4.4 If Contractor observes error, discrepancies or omissions in the Contract Documents, it 
shall promptly notify the Contractor and Town and request clarification. Contractor shall be liable to Town for 
damages resulting from error, inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents or for differences between 
field measurements or conditions in the Contract Documents. If Contractor, with the exercise of reasonable care, 
should have recognized such error, inconsistency, omission or difference and fails to report it to Town, and if 
Contractor proceeds with the Work affected by such observed errors, discrepancies or omissions, without 
receiving such clarifications, it does so at its own risk. 

4.4.5 In all cases of interconnection of its Work with existing or other work, Contractor shall 
verify at the Site all dimensions relating to such existing or other work. Any errors due to Contractor’s failure to so 
verify all such grades, elevations, locations or dimensions shall be promptly rectified by Contractor without any 
increase in the Contract Price. Any design errors or omissions noted by Contractor during this review shall be 
reported promptly to Town. 

4.4.6 Contractor shall be responsible for the proper performance of the work of 
Subcontractors and any acts and omissions in connection with such performance. Nothing in the Contract 
Documents is intended or deemed to create any legal or contractual relationship between Town and any 
Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor, including but not limited to any third-party beneficiary rights. 

4.4.7 Contractor will not substitute or change any Subcontractor or Supplier without the prior 
written approval of Town.  Any substitute or replacement Subcontractor or Supplier shall be required to meet the 
same qualifications and selection criteria and process as the original Subcontractor or Supplier. If a 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 20  
 
 



                                                                                                          

Subcontract/Supplier selection plan has been approved by Town, Contractor will follow that plan unless otherwise 
approved by Town in writing. 

4.4.8 Contractor shall not change or replace any members of its Project team, including 
Contractor’s Representative, Project Manager, or Superintendent, without an explanation for the change being 
given to Town, and receiving prior written approval of the change from Town, which approval will not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

4.4.9 Subcontractors whose scope of work has a value greater than 15% of the total Contract 
Price may be required to furnish performance and payment bonds to Contractor if directed in writing by Town. 

 4.5 Control of the Project Site 

4.5.1 Throughout all phases of construction, including suspension of Work, Contractor shall 
keep the Site reasonably free from debris, trash and construction wastes to permit Contractor to perform its 
construction services efficiently, safely and without interfering with the use of adjacent land areas. Prior to Final 
Acceptance of the Work, or a portion of the Work, Contractor shall remove all debris, trash, construction wastes, 
materials, equipment, machinery and tools arising from the Work or applicable portions thereof to permit Town to 
occupy the Project or a portion of the Project for its intended use 

4.5.2 Contractor shall take whatever steps, procedures or means necessary to prevent dust 
nuisance due to construction operations. The dust control measures shall be maintained at all times to the 
satisfaction of Town and in accordance with the requirements of the Pinal County Bureau of Air Pollution Control 
Rules and Regulations. 

4.5.3 Contractor shall be responsible to Town for the acts and omissions of Contractor’s 
employees, Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and any other person performing any of the Work 
under a Contract with Contractor, or claiming by, through or under Contractor, for all damages, losses, costs and 
expenses resulting from such acts or omissions. 

4.6 Project Safety 

4.6.1 Contractor is responsible for safety of the job site for employees of Contractor as well as 
for members of the general public and others who may drive or walk through or be at the site. 

4.6.2 Contractor assumes responsibility for implementing and monitoring all safety 
precautions and programs related to the performance of the Work. 

4.6.3 Contractor shall provide a “competent person’ as required by O.S.H.A regulations. The 
“competent person” shall be identified at the Pre-Construction Conference with Town advised in writing of any 
changes. 

4.6.4  Contractor and Subcontractors shall comply with all legal and regulatory requirements 
relating to safety, as well as any Town specific safety requirements set forth in the Contract Documents, provided 
that such Town-specific requirements do not violate any applicable legal and regulatory requirements. 

4.6.5 As between Town and Contractor, Contractor is responsible to Town for any and all the 
safety issues relating to the Work on the Project. Contractor shall administer and manage the safety program. This 
will include, but not necessarily be limited to review of the safety programs of each Subcontractor. Contractor shall 
monitor the establishment and execution of compliance with all applicable regulatory and advisory agency 
construction safety standards.  

4.6.6 Contractor shall maintain and have sole responsibility for safety on the job site. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 21  
 
 



                                                                                                          

4.7 Materials Quality, Substitutions and Shop Drawings 

4.7.1 Quality Control and Quality Assurance Testing.  All construction materials to be used or 
incorporated in the Project are subject to inspection, Quality Control & Quality Assurance Testing, and approval or 
rejection by Town. Any material rejected by Town shall be removed immediately and replaced in an acceptable 
manner to Town at no additional cost to Town. When QC/QA tests indicate noncompliance with the Contract 
Documents, retesting shall be performed by the same testing laboratory that performed the tests that indicated 
noncompliance. 

4.7.2 Shop Drawings 

4.7.2.1 Contractor shall prepare and submit Shop Drawings which show details of all 
work to insure proper installation of the Work using those materials and equipment specified under the Approved 
Plans and Specifications. 

4.7.2.2 A schedule of Shop Drawing submissions shall be submitted with the Project 
Schedule for Town approval that avoids bulk submissions to the extent reasonably possible. Unless otherwise 
noted, Shop Drawings will not be required for items specified or detailed in the Uniform Standard Specifications 
and Details or the Technical Specifications. The schedule of Shop Drawing submissions shall include all of the items 
for which Shop Drawings are required by the Contract Documents, including the Specifications. 

4.7.2.3 Shop Drawings shall be numbered consecutively for each specification 
section and shall accurately and distinctly present the following: 

(a) All working and erection dimensions. 
(b) Arrangements and sectional views. 
(c) Necessary details, including complete information for making connections 

between work under this Contract and work under other Contracts. 
(d) Kinds of materials and finishes. 
(e) Parts list and description thereof. 

 
4.7.2.4 Contractor shall schedule, prepare and submit all shop drawings in 

accordance with a time-table that will allow its suppliers and manufacturers sufficient time to fabricate, 
manufacture, inspect, test and deliver their respective products to the project site in a timely manner so as to not 
delay the complete performance of the work. 

4.7.2.5 The review of Shop Drawings will be general and shall not relieve 
Contractor of responsibility for the accuracy of such drawings, nor for the proper fitting and construction of the 
Work, nor for the furnishing of materials or Work required by the Contract. No construction called for by Shop 
Drawings shall be initiated until such drawings have been reviewed and approved by Town. 

4.7.3 Long Lead Time Items.  Contractor shall submit Shop Drawings, as required by the 
Engineer, on all long lead items to be furnished and installed as part of the project within ten (10) days after 
execution of the Contract. In addition, Contractor shall order all long lead items to be furnished and installed as 
part of this Project within (3) days after receiving approved Shop Drawings. For all long lead times for which shop 
drawings are not required, Contractor shall order said long lead items within fifteen (15) days after execution of 
the Contract. Within two (2) days after ordering long lead items, Contractor shall supply copies of all purchase 
orders, along with an accurate delivery schedule from the supplier. 

4.8 Section Not Used 

 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 22  
 
 



                                                                                                          

4.9 Warranty and Correction of Defective Work 

4.9.1 Contractor warrants to Town that the construction of the Work shall be of good and 
workmanlike quality and completed in strict conformance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and the 
plans and specifications and all other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents, including all materials and 
equipment furnished as part of the construction, shall be new unless otherwise specified in the Contract 
Documents, of good quality, in conformance with the Contract Documents and free of defects in materials and 
workmanship. 

4.9.2 The date of Final Completion shall be the beginning of the Warranty period, irrespective 
of early completion by some Subcontractors of their work.  

4.9.3 Contractor’s warranty obligation shall be in accordance with MAG Specifications. 

4.9.4 In addition, unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, Contractor and 
Subcontractors shall provide to Town all of the following written warranties that apply to the Work, in a form 
acceptable to Town. 

(a) General Warranty — Two (2) years. 
(b) Mechanical Contractor — Two (2) years. 
(c) Plumbing Contractor — Two (2) years. 
(d) Electrical Contractor — Two (2) years. 
(e) Roofing Contractor — Two (2) years. 
(f) Roofing Manufacturer — Ten (10) years. 
(g) Caulking — One (1) year. 
(h) Steel Joists, Certificate of Manufacture. 
(i) Exterior Metal Wall System — Five (5) years. 
(j) Painting — One (1) year. 
(k) Termite — Five (5) years. 
(l) Sheet Metal: Zinc coating thickness on hot-dipped galvanized. 
(m) Metals- One (1) year. 
(n) Acoustical Tile — Five (5) years. 
(o) Resilient Floor Covering — One (1) year. 

 
4.9.5 Nothing in the warranties contained in the Contract Documents are intended to limit 

any manufacturer’s warranty which provides Town with greater warranty rights than set forth in this Section or the 
Contract Documents. Contractor will provide Town with all manufacturers’ warranties prior to Final Acceptance. 

4.9.6. A progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by Town, shall 
not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

4.9.9 Without limiting the foregoing or anything in these General Conditions or the Contract 
to the contrary, Contractor shall obtain and provide to Town all warranties for any portion of the Project offered 
by the manufacturer, installer or provider thereof. Town and the user of the facility shall have the right to the full 
value and benefit of all such warranties. Contractor will ensure all such warranties are fully transferrable to 
facilitate the full value of this Section 4.9.9. 

  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 23  
 
 



                                                                                                          

SECTION 5 — TOWN’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

5.1 Town Project Manager.  Project Manager is responsible for providing Town-supplied information 
and approvals in a timely manner to assist Contractor to fulfill its obligations under the Contract Documents. 

5.2 Contractor Services.  Town may contract separately with one or more Contractors to provide 
construction administration of the Project. The Contractor’s Contract, as well as other firms hired by Town shall be 
furnished to Contractor. Contractor shall not have the right to limit or restrict or reject any Contract modifications 
that are mutually acceptable to Town and Contractor. 

SECTION 6 — CONTRACT TIME 

6.1 Contract Time. 

6.1.1 The Contract Time shall start with the Notice to Proceed (“NTP”) and end with Final 
Acceptance, as set forth in Section 6.4 below. 

6.1.2  The Notice to proceed shall be issued in accordance with MAG Specifications § 108. 

6.1.3  The Contract Time shall be as set forth in the Project Schedule. Contractor agrees that it 
will commence performance of the Work and complete the Project within the Contract Time. 

6.1.4  Time is of the essence of this Contract, for the Project, for the Work, and for each phase 
and/or designated Milestone thereof. 

6.2 Project Schedule. 

6.2.1 The Project Schedule shall be updated and maintained throughout the Contract Time. 

6.2.2 The Project Schedule shall be revised as required by conditions and progress of the 
Work, but such revisions shall not relieve Contractor of its obligations to complete the Work within the Contract 
Time, as adjusted in accordance with the Contract Documents. No modification to the Contract Documents or the 
Contract Time shall be effective unless approved in advance by Town. 

6.2.3 An updated Project Schedule shall be submitted monthly to Town as part of the 
Payment Request. 

6.2.4 Contractor shall provide Town with a monthly status report with each Project Schedule 
detailing the progress of the Work, including: (i) if the Work is proceeding according to schedule, (ii) any 
discrepancies, conflicts, or ambiguities found to exist in the Contract Documents that require resolution, and (iii) 
other information detailing items that require resolution so as not to jeopardize the ability to complete the Work 
in the Contract Time. 

6.2.5 Acceptance of a submitted schedule by Town should in no way be construed as an 
affirmation or admission that the schedule is reasonable or workable by Contractor. The responsibility for 
completing the Work on the Project within the Contract Time remains the obligation of Contractor. Town’s review 
shall not relieve Contractor from compliance with the requirements of the Contract Documents or be construed as 
relieving Contractor of its complete and exclusive control over the means, methods, sequences and techniques for 
executing the work. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 24  
 
 



                                                                                                          

6.2.6 Critical Path Method (CPM) 

6.2.6.1 Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, the Project Schedule shall 
include a Critical Path Method (CPM) diagram schedule showing the sequence of activities, the interdependence of 
each activity and identifies the Critical Path. 

6.2.6.2 The CPM diagram schedule shall be in calendar Days and indicate duration, 
earliest and latest start and finish dates for all activities, and total Float Times for all activities except critical 
activities. The CPM diagram shall be presented in a time scaled graphical format for the Project as a whole. 

6.2.7 Float Time 

6.2.7.1 The total Float Time within the overall schedule is for the exclusive use of 
Town, but Town may approve Contractor’s use of Float as needed to meet contract Milestones and the Project 
completion date. 

6.2.7.2 Contractor shall not be allowed to sequence, hide, or reallocate Float Time 
through such strategies, as extending activity duration estimates to consume available Float, using preferential 
logic, or using extensive crew/resource sequencing, tec. No time extensions will be granted nor delay damages 
paid until a delay occurs which extends the Work beyond the Contract Time. 

6.2.7.3 Rain-Related Delays.  Contractor is required, in preparing the Project 
Schedule to take into account all relevant weather conditions, including normal rainfall and distribution. No 
additional Compensation shall be given for any rain-related delays or impacts on the Work or the Project Schedule.  
The burden of documenting normal rainfall, the excessive rainfall and the impact on Critical Path activities is on 
Contractor. 

6.3 Section Not Used 

6.4 Final Acceptance and Final Completion. 

6.4.1 Unless otherwise expressly agreed to in writing by Town, Final Completion must be 
obtained by no later than 60 calendar days after the date of Notice to Proceed. Failure to timely obtain Final 
Completion will be a material breach of the Contract. 

6.4.2 Upon receipt of written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and 
acceptance, Town and Contractor will jointly inspect to verify that the remaining items of Work have been 
completed. There shall be no partial acceptance. Final Acceptance shall not be issued and Final Completion shall 
not occur until all items of work, including Punch List Items, have been completed to Town’s satisfaction as 
reflected in the written Final Acceptance. 

6.4.3 Final Payment under Section 8.4 below shall not be due, owing, or paid by Town until 
Final Completion is obtained. 

SECTION 7 — CONTRACT PRICE 

7.1 Fixed Price Contracts.  The Contract Price for all Fixed Price Contracts shall be the amount set 
forth in the Contract.  

7.2 Town Sales Tax.  Contractor is required to pay Town Sales Tax on any contracting activity done 
for the Town, and this cost shall be included in all Contract Prices. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 25  
 
 



                                                                                                          

SECTION 8 — PAYMENT 

8.1 Payment For Construction Services. 

8.1.1 Subject to the terms of the Contract Documents, including this Section 8, payment for 
the Work will be made in accordance with MAG Specifications § 109 as amended below. 

8.1.2 In MAG Specifications § 109.7 (A), replace the first paragraph of the subsection with the 
following: 

Town will make monthly progress payments during the course of the 
contract. The payments (estimates of work completed) will be 
prepared by Contractor on form provided by Town, and approved by 
Project Manager. The monthly payment cycle will start with the date 
of the Notice to Proceed. Town may process payments more 
frequently if requested by Contractor and agreed to in writing by 
Town. 

8.1.3 Payments shall be made pursuant to A.R.S. § 34-221 and/or § 34-609, as applicable. 

8.1.4 When construction of the Project is fifty percent (50%) completed, Contractor may 
request payment of one-half of the retention pursuant to A.R.S. § 34-221(C)(3) and/or §34-609(B)(3), subject to all 
of Town’s rights to withhold or offset payments, and/or other rights of Town, under the Contract. 

8.1.5 Town reserves the right under A.R.S. § 34-221(C)(3) and/or § 34-609(B)(3) to reinstate 
the ten percent (10%) retention if Town determines that satisfactory progress is not being made. 

8.2 Final Payment.   Subject to all of Town’s rights to withhold or offset payment, and other rights 
under the Contract, Final Payment including remaining retainage shall be paid only after: (i) the Work has been 
fully completed (including completion of all incorrect or incomplete work items) and the written Final Acceptance 
has been issued by Town; (ii) necessary operating manuals, any excess materials and supplies necessary for 
matching materials and supplies incorporated into the Work, and complete “as-built” drawings (including the 
Building Information Model, if required by the Contact Documents), plans and specifications have been delivered 
to Town; (iii) full and unconditional lien waivers and releases by Contractor and any person performing labor or 
supplying material, machinery, fixtures, or tools for the Work have been delivered to Contractor; (iv) all conditions 
and requirements imposed by Town or any financing entity for the corresponding disbursement have been met; 
and (v) Contractor delivers to Town a Contractor Payment Request Form requesting Final Payment. 

8.3 Town’s Right to Withhold Payment. Town may withhold payment to such extent as may 
be necessary in Town’s opinion to protect Town from loss for which Contractor is responsible, including, without 
limitation: 

i. Defective Work not remedied; 
ii. Third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims 

unless security acceptable to the Town is provided by Contractor; 
iii. Failure of Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or for labor, 

materials or equipment; 
iv. Reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the 

Contract Sum; 
v. Damage to the Town or another Contractor;  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 26  
 
 



                                                                                                          

vi. Reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and 
that the unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages 
for the anticipated delay; or 

vii. Persistent failure to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

8.4 Joint/Direct Checks.  Payments to Contractor may be made by checks payable jointly to 
Contractor and its employees, agents, subcontractors and suppliers, or any of them, and when in the sole opinion 
of the Town it is advisable, payments may be made directly to Contractor's subcontractors and any amount so paid 
shall be deducted from the amounts owed to Contractor under this Contract. 

8.5 Payment Not A Waiver. No payment (nor use or occupancy of the Project by the Town) shall 
be deemed acceptance or approval of the Work or as a waiver of any claims, rights, or remedies of Town. 

8.4 Liens and Bond Claims. Contractor shall make all payments, in the time required, of all labor 
and materials furnished to Contractor in the course of the Work and shall promptly furnish evidence of such 
payments as Town may require. Contractor shall pay when due all claims arising out of performance of the Work 
covered by this Contract for which a lien may be filed either against the real estate or leasehold interest of Town, 
or against payments due from Town to Contractor, or for which a claim may be made against any payment or 
performance bond or both. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor agrees that no liens or other claims 
in the nature of a lien against the real estate, leasehold, or other interest of Town, against payment due from 
Town to Contractor, or against any payment or performance bond, shall be filed or made in connection with the 
Work by any party who has supplied professional services, labor, materials, machinery, fixtures, tools, or 
equipment used in or in connection with the performance of this Contract, and Contractor agrees to remove or to 
cause to be removed any such liens or claims in the nature of a lien or bond claim within ten (10) days upon 
receiving notice or obtaining actual knowledge of the existence of such liens or claim. In addition, Contractor 
agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Town from and against any and all such liens and claims. This 
paragraph does not apply to claims and liens of Contractor due to non-payment for work performed. 

8.5 Financial Record Keeping and Town’s Audit Right. 

8.5.1 Records for all Contracts between Town and Contractor shall, upon reasonable notice, 
be open to inspection and subject to audit, scanning, and/or reproduction during normal business working hours.  
Town or its designee may conduct such audits or inspections throughout the term of this Contract and for a period 
of three years after Final Payment or longer if required by law.  

8.5.2 Town, its authorized representative, and/or the appropriate agency, reserve the right to 
audit Contractor’s records in compliance with local, state or federal policies, statutes or at Town’s discretion, 
within three (3) years of Final Acceptance of the Work. 

SECTION 9 — CHANGES TO THE CONTRACT 

9.1 Extra Work/Changes in the Work. 

9.1.1 Town reserves the right to make such changes in the plans and specifications for the 
Work, as it may deem appropriate and any such change as set forth in a written Change Order or Extra Work Order 
shall be deemed a part of this Contract as if originally incorporated herein. 

9.1.2 Contractor shall not be entitled to payment for additional work unless a written Change 
Order or Extra Work Order, in form and content prescribed by Town, has been executed by Town prior to starting 
the additional work. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 27  
 
 



                                                                                                          

9.1.3 Any agreement which modifies the terms of the Contract (including Change Orders) 
shall be approved in writing by the Project Manager. Once properly executed by both parties, these modifications 
to the Contract shall have the same effect as if they had been included in the original Contract. 

9.2 Accuracy of Change Order Pricing Information.  Signature by the contracting parties shall 
constitute full accord and satisfaction between Town and Contractor for all costs, damages, and expenses of 
whatever kind of nature, including delay, impact or acceleration damages, which may be occasioned by a Change 
Order of other modification of the Contract, agreed to in writing. 

SECTION 10 — SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 

10.1 Suspension. Town may suspend the Contract and/or Contractor’s performance in 
accordance with MAG Specifications § 105.1. 

10.2 Termination by the Town for Cause. 

10.2.1 MAG Specifications § 108.11 applies to the Contract. 

10.2.2 Town may also terminate the Contract if Town determines, in its sole discretion, that 
Contractor has: 

(a) Refused or failed to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials; 

(b) Failed to make payment to Subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance 
with the respective agreements between Contractor and the Subcontractors; 

(c) Disregards laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or orders of a public authority 
having jurisdiction; or 

(d) Otherwise breached a provision of the Contract Documents or any other contract 
between Town and Contractor. 

10.2.3 When any of the above reasons exist, Town may terminate the Contract, without 
prejudice to any other rights or remedies of Town, after giving Contractor and Contractors’ surety, if any, seven (7) 
days’ prior written notice of Town’s intent to terminate the Contract and Contractor’s failure to cure any such 
reasons. Upon such termination, Town may: (1) take possession of the Site and of all materials thereon owned by 
Contractor; and/or (2) finish the Work by whatever reasonable method Town may deem expedient. When Town 
terminates the Contract for one of the reasons state above, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive further 
payment until the Work is finished. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price, excluding any remaining 
Contingency existing at the time of such termination exceeds the costs and expenses of finishing the Work and any 
other damages incurred by Town, such excess shall be paid to Contractor. If such costs, expenses and damages 
exceed such unpaid balance, Contractor shall pay the difference to Town. This obligation for payment shall survive 
termination of the Contract. 

10.3 Termination by Town for Convenience.  Town may also terminate the Contract at any time for 
its convenience upon seven (7) days written notice to Contractor specifying the termination date. In the event of 
termination which is not the fault, in whole or in part, of Contractor, Town shall pay to Contractor only such 
compensation, including reimbursable expenses, due for Work properly performed on the Project prior to the 
termination date. Upon any termination of the Contract, no further payments shall be due from Town to 
Contractor. 

10.4 A.R.S. § 38-511.  The Contract is subject to, and may be terminated by Town in accordance with, 
the provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 28  
 
 



                                                                                                          

10.5 Non-Appropriation.  Town is a government agency which relies upon the appropriation of funds 
by its governing body to satisfy its obligations. If Town determines that it does not have funds to meet its 
obligations under the Contract, Town shall have the right to terminate the Contract without penalty on the last day 
of the fiscal period for which funds were legally available for the Project.  

10.6 Under no circumstances shall Town have any liability for any costs, expenses, overhead, or 
profits in relation to any work not actually performed, or for any future or anticipated profits, recovery, damages, 
expenses, or loses. 

SECTION 11 — INSURANCE AND BONDS 

11.1 Insurance Requirements. 

11.1.1 Contractor shall obtain, maintain, and provide verification of insurance coverage set 
forth in the Town’s Insurance Requirements, as modified by any applicable Special Provisions, of the Contract. 

11.1.2 Town may, in the Contract Documents, designate additional insured(s) along with Town 
(and their respective employees, members, representatives, agents and affiliates) on all required insurance 
policies, and all coverage applicable to Town under this Section 11.1 and the Insurance Requirements in the 
Town’s Insurance Requirements shall apply to such designated additional insured(s) as well. 

11.2.3 Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide 
evidence of renewal is a material breach of this Contract. 

11.1.4 Subcontractors.  Contractor’s certificate(s) shall include all Subcontractors as additional 
insureds under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to Town separate certificates and endorsements for each 
Subcontractor. All coverages for Subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements set forth in the 
Contract Documents, including the Town Insurance Requirements. 

11.2 Bonds and Other Performance Security. 

11.2.1  Prior to execution of the Contract, Contractor shall provide a Performance Bond and a 
Payment Bond, each in an amount equal to the full amount of the Contract Price. 

11.2.2  Each such bond shall be executed by a surety company or companies holding a Certificate 
of Authority to transact surety business in the State of Arizona, issued by the Director of the Arizona Department 
of Insurance. A copy of the Certificate of Authority shall accompany the bonds. 

11.2.3  The bonds shall be made payable and be acceptable to Town. The bond forms for the 
performance and payment bonds shall be in the forms required under A.R.S. § 34-221, et seq.  

11.2.4  All bonds submitted for this project shall be provided by a company which has been rated 
AM Best rating of A- or better for the prior four quarters by the latest edition of the ‘Results Best’s Key Rating 
Guide (Property/Casualty)” published by the A.M. Best Company. 

11.2.5  Personal or individual bonds are not acceptable. 

  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 29  
 
 



                                                                                                          

SECTION 12 - INDEMNIFICATION 

12.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor, its successors and assigns shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the Town and its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees 
from all demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, damages, or losses relating to, arising out of, resulting from 
or alleged to have resulted from the performance of the Work or failure to comply with Contractor’s obligations 
under the Contract Documents or any laws, regulations, or legal requirements.  Contractors’ duty to defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless Town and its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees shall 
arise in connection with all demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, workers’ compensation claims, 
unemployment claims, damages, losses or expenses (including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court costs, and 
the cost of appellate proceedings) that are attributable to personal or bodily injury, sickness, disease, death or 
injury to, impairment or destruction of property including loss of use resulting therefrom, caused by any act or 
omission of Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts 
they may be liable. 

12.2  Contractor shall also defend, indemnify and hold harmless Town, the Contractor, any jurisdiction 
or agency issuing permits for any work involved in the project and their consultants and each of their directors, 
officers, employees and agents from and against all losses, expenses, damages (including damages to the work 
itself), attorney’s fees and other costs including costs of defense, which any of them may incur with respect to the 
failure, neglect, or refusal of Contractor to faithfully perform the Work and all of the Work and all of Contractor’s 
obligations under the Contract.  Such costs, expenses, and damages shall include all costs, including attorney’s 
fees, incurred by the indemnified parties in any lawsuit to which they are a party. 

12.3 The indemnified party shall have the right to approve the legal counsel selected by Contractor or 
the insurer of the liability, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

12.4 The defense, indemnification, hold harmless provisions and Town’s Liability Insurance set forth 
herein shall survive any termination of the Contract. 

SECTION 13 — DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

13.1 Informal Dispute Resolution.  The parties to the Contract agree that time is of the essence in 
relation to performance of the Contract and completion of the Project, therefore any and all disputes in relation to 
the Contract will initially be referred to the Project Manager, the Design Professional Representative and/or the 
Contractor Representative as applicable to the dispute, for immediate resolution. If, after good faith efforts to 
reach a resolution, none is reached, any party to the dispute may submit the dispute to the Dispute Resolution 
Representative (“DRR”) process set forth below, which is intended to be an expedited process.  

13.2 Dispute Resolution Representative (DRR) Process.  

13.2.1 The Parties under the Contract agree that all claims and disputes in relation to the 
Project which are not resolved in the ordinary course of the Project (Claim or Claims) shall, as a prerequisite to any 
mediation, or litigation of the Claim, first be submitted for resolution between the designated Dispute Resolution 
Representatives of the Parties as set forth herein (the “DRR Process”).  

13.2.2 The DRR Process shall be initiated through service of a DRR Notice as set forth below:  

(a) for claims by the Contractor or the Design Professional, the DRR Process shall be 
initiated by the party asserting the claim serving written notice on the Town setting forth in detail: (i) the basis for 
the claim; (ii) the effect of the Claim upon the construction of, and/or Project Schedule for, the Project; (ii) the 
specific relief requested, the amount thereof, and how such was calculated; (iii) the parties involved in the Claim, 
and how they are involved; (iv) the specific contract provisions in the Contract Documents (including, if applicable, 
drawings and specifications) which apply; and (v) efforts made to date to resolve the Claim.  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 30  
 
 



                                                                                                          

(b) For claims by the Town, the DRR process will be initiated by the Town providing 
written notice to the other parties of the basis and amount of its claim, the parties involved in the Claim, and how 
they are involved, the provisions in the Contract Documents that apply, and the relief requested.  

(c) The DRR Notice shall be hand-delivered and e-mailed to the other parties’ 
designated Dispute Resolution Representatives.  

13.2.3 The other parties shall respond in writing to the DRR Notice (DRR Response) within ten 
(10) calendar days of receipt of the DRR Notice, setting forth those items set forth in the DRR Notice that they 
agree with, dispute, and/or have questions concerning. The DRR Response shall be hand-delivered and e-mailed to 
the other parties’ Dispute Resolution Representatives. 

13.2.4 The designated Dispute Resolution Representatives for the Parties to the claim shall 
then meet as soon as possible and in any event within twenty (20) calendar days of submission of the DRR Notice 
(regardless of whether a DRR Response has been submitted by all parties involved in the dispute), at a mutually 
agreed upon time and place, to attempt to resolve the Claim based upon the DRR Notice and DRR Response.  

13.2.5 At any time after the first meeting required above, either party may terminate the DRR 
Process by written notice to the other party.   

13.2.6 The parties may agree, in writing, to extend or modify the time limits or other provisions 
of the DRR process in relation to a specific pending Claim.  

13.2.7 Unless otherwise designated in a written notice to the other parties, the Project 
Manager and the representatives of the Contractor and of the Design Professional shall act as the parties’ 
designated Dispute Resolution Representatives.  

13.2.8 If a resolution of the Claim is reached, that resolution shall be set forth in writing and 
shall be signed by the Parties’ designated Dispute Resolution Representative. If the resolution involves a change in 
any Contract Documents, the Contract Price, the Project Schedule, or any other change requiring a written Change 
Order or Amendment, the parties shall execute an appropriate written Change Order or Amendment pursuant to 
the terms of the Contract Documents.  

13.3 Mediation.  

13.3.1 Unless extended by written agreement of the parties involved in the dispute, any Claim 
not resolved through the DRR process set forth above within five (5) calendar days after the meeting required 
under B (4) above, or after the DRR is terminated pursuant to ¶ B (5) above, whichever is earlier, shall be 
submitted to mediation as a condition precedent to litigation by either party.  

13.3.2 The mediation shall be commenced by written demand upon the other party for 
mediation. If the parties cannot agree upon a mediator within ten (10) calendar days of the written demand, either 
party may make a request to the Civil Presiding Judge of the Pinal County Superior Court to appoint a mediator. 
The mediation shall occur within forth (40) calendar days of the written demand for mediation, unless the parties 
agree, in writing, to a longer period of time.  

13.3.3 The qualifications for the mediator shall be that they be: (a) an experienced mediator, 
arbitrator or litigator of construction disputes; and (b) having engaged a significant portion of their time involving 
and/or resolving construction disputes for at least the past five (5) years.  

13.3.4 Each party shall provide to the other party and the mediator all of the information and 
documentation required under B(1) and (2) above, together with any additional information and documentation 
which the party believes relevant. In addition, the parties shall exchange, and provide to the mediator such 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 31  
 
 



                                                                                                          

additional memoranda, information and/or documentation, as the mediator may request, and in the form and at 
such times, as the mediator may direct.  

13.3.5 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall 
be held in Mesa, Arizona, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be specifically enforceable in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  

13.4 Arbitration. 

   13.4.1 If the mediation is unsuccessful, the parties shall submit the dispute and/or claim to be 
resolved through binding arbitration conducted according to the then current Construction Industry Arbitration 
Rules of the AAA, but not administrated or conducted by the AAA, which arbitration shall be held in Pinal County, 
Arizona, utilizing a single arbitrator selected by the parties, unless the parties agree, in writing, to an alternative 
arbitration procedure. 

 13.4.2 If: (a) the parties cannot agree on a single arbitrator within two (2) weeks of the demand 
for arbitration; or (b) the parties at any time prior to the arbitrator being appointed and the arbitrator has 
accepted the appointment, cannot agree upon any significant aspect of the arbitration, not already addressed 
herein, either party may submit the Claim directly to the AAA to select the Arbitrator, and thereafter the 
arbitration shall be administered by the AAA. 

 13.4.3 The arbitrator shall be an attorney with at least fifteen (15) years of experience in 
construction related practice, and whose practice, for at least the last five (5) years, consists of at least 50% 
construction law. 

 13.4.4 At the request of either party, the arbitration may include as parties, through joinder, 
consolidation or otherwise, additional persons or entities involved in the Project, involving claims and/or disputes 
with common issues and/or facts.  The arbitrator shall promptly rule upon any request for joinder or consolidation.   

 13.4.5 In relation to claims in which the amount in controversy is less than $250,000, no 
discovery other than exchange of documents, designation of witnesses and detailed disclosure of claims and 
defenses (including specifically a detailed basis for calculating all claims), and no more than 3 depositions and 1 
expert per side, shall be allowed, subject to disclosure of such other information as approved by the arbitrator.  
Otherwise, discovery shall be allowed and/or limited as decided by the arbitrator. 

 13.4.6 The prevailing party in any arbitration or court proceeding under this Agreement shall 
be entitled to an award of its attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses (including expert witness fees) incurred. 

 13.4.7 A demand for arbitration shall be made within the time limits specified in the Contract 
Documents as applicable, and in other cases within a reasonable time after the Claim has arisen, and in no event 
shall it be made after the date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on such Claim would be 
barred by the applicable statute of limitations. 

 13.4.8 The Parties agree to participate as a party, by joinder and/or consolidation, in any 
arbitration, litigation, or other dispute resolution involving as an issue, claim, or defense, any action, inaction, or 
service provided under this Contract or in relation to the Project or the Work, or any defect or deficiency in the 
Work.   

 13.4.9 The party filing a notice of demand for arbitration, or a counterclaim, must assert in the 
demand or counterclaim all Claims then known to that party on which arbitration is permitted to be demanded. 

 13.4.10  Any award by the arbitrator shall not include any consequential or punitive damages. 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 32  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 13.4.11 The award entered by the arbitrator shall be a reasoned award.   

 13.4.12 The award entered by the arbitrator shall be final and judgment may be entered 
thereon in the Arizona Superior Court.   

SECTION 14 — MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

14.1 Assignment.  Neither Contractor nor Town shall, without the written consent of the other assign, 
transfer or sublet any portion of this Agreement or part of the Work or the obligations required by the Contract 
Documents, any such assignment will be void, will transfer no rights to the purported assignee, and would be a 
material breach of the Contract. 

14.2 Governing Law and Venue.  In the performance of the Contract, Contractor shall abide by and 
conform to any and all laws of the United States, State of Arizona, Pinal County, and the Town, including but not 
limited to federal and state executive orders providing for equal opportunities, the Federal Occupational Safety 
and Health Act and any other federal, state, county or local laws applicable to the Contract.  This Contract shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of Arizona, without reference to 
conflict of laws and principles.  Exclusive jurisdiction and venue for any action brought to enforce or construe any 
provision of this Contract shall be proper in the Superior Court of Pinal County, Arizona and both parties consent to 
jurisdiction and venue in such court for such purposes. 

14.3 Survival.  All warranties, representations and indemnifications by Contractor shall survive the 
completion or termination of this Agreement. 

14.4 No Waiver.  The failure of either party to enforce any of the provisions of the Contract 
Documents or to require performance of the other party of any of the provisions hereof shall not be construed to 
be a waiver of such provisions, nor shall it affect the validity of the Contract Documents or any part thereof, or the 
right of either party to thereafter enforce each and every provision. 

14.5 Project Communications. 

14.5.1 All communications concerning the performance of the Work or the Project shall be 
provided to the designated Project Manager and Contractor’s Representative set forth in Article 1 of the Contract. 

14.5.2 Project communications may be exchanged by e-mail upon the written agreement of 
the Project Manager and Contractor Representative, but e-mail communications are not binding upon Town and 
cannot change the terms of the Contract or the scope of work, or effectuate any change that requires a written 
change order. The use of e-mails is for information only, and e-mails will have no legal or binding effect. 

  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 33  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 

TOWN REVISIONS TO MAG SPECIFICATIONS 
 

1. Adoption of the MAG Specifications:  The Uniform Specifications for Public Works Construction issued by the 
Maricopa Association of Governments (“MAG Specifications”) have been adopted by the Town and shall apply 
to the Work, to the extent applicable.  In addition, to the extent the Town has adopted its own Town 
Specifications, and/or Supplements and/or Modifications to the MAG Specifications (collectively the “Town 
Specifications”), those Town Specifications shall apply to the Work when and where appropriate and 
Contractor shall fully comply therewith.  Any questions or concerns the applicability of any specific MAG or 
Town Specification to the Work shall be directed in writing to the Project Manager. 

 
2. ITB, Contract, General Provisions, Special Provisions, and/or Specifications for the Project:   To the extent 

there is any conflict between: (i) the ITB, the Contract, the General Provisions to the Contract, the Special 
Provisions, and/or the Specifications for the Project; and (ii) the MAG Specifications as amended by the Town, 
the specific provision applicable to the Project set forth in the Contract Documents enumerated in (i) prevail.   
 

3. Specific Revisions to MAG Specifications: The following special provisions modify the sections of the MAG 
Specifications. 
 
Section 102.3 INTERPRETATION OF QUANTITIES IN PROPOSAL 
Add the following at the end of the section: 

Notwithstanding any other provision in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall not be entitled to increase 
the unit prices on any basis, including increases, decreases or reallocation of any quantities, no matter what 
the quantum of the increase, decrease or reallocation may be. 

 
Section 102.12 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS 
Add a new paragraph (C), to read as follows: 

(C) Submission of any unit prices in the bid proposal which are unbalanced, either above or below the amount 
of a reasonable bid price as determined by the Town Engineer, to the potential detriment of Town. 

 
Section 104.2 ALTERATION OF WORK 
Delete the second paragraph in Section 104.2.1 in total, and replace with the following: 

No payment will be made for any changes in the Work, whether initiated by the Town, the Engineer, or 
Contractor, unless and until a written change order has been fully executed and approved by the Town. 

Delete Section 104.2.2 in its entirety. 

In Section 104.2.3, delete the following from the first paragraph in Section 104.2.3: 

“and payment will be made in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 109.” 
 

Section 105.4 COORDINATION OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
Add the following:   

For any apparent error or omission in the plans and specifications, such corrections by the Town Engineer may 
include adjustments in units, quantities and unit prices. 
 
Section 108.1 NOTICE TO PROCEED 
Add the following subsection: 

(C)  Work shall not start until the contract has been executed by both the Contractor and the Town.  The 
Contractor shall begin work as soon as practical after the starting date specified in the Notice to Proceed.  All 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 34  
 
 



                                                                                                          

work under the contract shall be completed within the number of calendar days stated in the proposal, plus 
extensions, beginning the day following the starting date specified in the Notice to Proceed. 
 
Section 108.11 TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 
Add the following at the end of the first paragraph: 

The Town may also terminate the Contract for its convenience without cause.  Contractor shall only be 
entitled to payment for the actual costs of Work actually completed as of the date of termination, and no 
payment shall be due or made for any anticipated costs, profits, overhead or other costs not actually incurred, 
and no payment shall be paid for idle time or labor cost, legal or accounting charges, claim preparation 
charges, subcontractor costs, lost profits, general conditions or overhead, bidding and/or project investigation 
costs, acceleration or efficiency claims, or any other additional expense or claim related to the termination. 
 
Section 109.4 COMPENSATION FOR ALTERATION OF WORK 
Before Section 109.4.1, add the following: 

Any deduction or increase in the Contract Price must be supported by a signed, written change order fully 
executed by the Town, and supported by such backup as the Engineer, Project Manager, and the Town may 
require.  No adjustments in any unit prices will be allowed. 

Delete Sections 109.4.1(A) and (B) and 109.4.2(A) in their entirety. 
 
Section 109.9 DOLLAR AMOUNT OF MAJOR ITEM 
Delete in its entirety. 
 
Section 110 NOTIFICATION OF CHANGED CONDITIONS AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
Delete the entire section and replace with the following: 
 
All claims and disputes shall be resolved pursuant to § 13 of the General Conditions.  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 35  
 
 



                                                                                                          

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS  
 

1. Contractor’s Obligation:  Contractor shall secure and maintain, at his or her own expense, until 
completion of the contract, general liability and property insurance as shall protect Contractor and the 
Town from claims for bodily injury, personal injury, and property damage which may arise because of the 
nature of the work or from operations under this contract. The Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be 
primary insurance with respect to all other available sources.   

 
2. General Liability Coverage:  Contractor shall have general liability coverage on a per project basis, per 

occurrence, and in comprehensive form.  General liability coverage shall include Products/Completed 
Operations, Explosion, Underground and Collapse Hazard, Premises, Operations, Contractual, 
Independent Contractors, Broad Form Property Damage and Personal Injury. 

 
3. Coverage Amounts:  Contractor shall provide general liability and excess general liability coverage in the 

following amounts, at a minimum: 

 Employer’s Liability                   $500,000-$1,000,000 
 
 Contractors General Liability 

a.  General Aggregate       $2,000,000 
b.  Products – Completed Operations Aggregate    $2,000,000 
c.  Personal and Advertising Injury     $2,000,000 
d.  Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage)   $2,000,000 
e.  Excess or Umbrella Liability 

1.) General Aggregate per job     $3,000,000 
 per policy year      $5,000,000 
2.) Each Occurrence per job     $3,000,000 
 per policy year       $5,000,000 
 

 Automobile Liability 
  a. Bodily Injury: 
   Each Person       $1,000,000 
   Each Accident       $1,000,000 
  b. Property Damage 
   Each Accident       $1,000,000 
  c. Combined Single Limit        $1,000,000 
 
 Contractual Liability 
  a. Bodily Injury: 
   Each Accident       $2,000,000 
   Annual Aggregate      $2,000,000 
  b. Property Damage: 
   Each Accident       $2,000,000 
   Annual Aggregate      $2,000,000 
   Each Accident       $2,000,000 
   Annual Aggregate      $2,000,000 
 
 Workman’s Compensation 
  a. Bodily Injury by Accident each accident     $1,000,000 
  b. Bodily Injury by Disease each employee     $1,000,000 
  c. Bodily Injury by Disease policy limit     $1,000,000 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 36  
 
 



                                                                                                          

4. Additional Provisions:  

A. Additional Insured:  Contractor shall name the Town of Florence as an “Additional Insured” on all 
insurance policies, except Worker's Compensation, and this shall be reflected on the Certificate(s) of 
Insurance. 

B. Cancellation Notice of Material Change of Coverage:  Contractors’ required insurance shall be 
endorsed to provide that the policy(ies) will not be canceled, reduced, discontinued, or otherwise 
materially altered during the period of performance without thirty (30) days prior written notice to 
the Town of Florence. 

C. Certificate(s) of Insurance:  Prior to commencing work under each contract or subcontract, 
Certificates of Insurance shall be submitted and approved by the Town.  Contractor is responsible for 
obtaining Certificates of Insurance establishing that Contractor and all subcontractors have complied 
with insurance requirements previously stated.  Copies of Certificate(s) of Insurance shall be 
forwarded to the Risk Manager for review and filing. Failure of Town to demand such certificate or 
other evidence of full compliance with these insurance requirements or failure of Town to identify a 
deficiency from evidence that is provided shall not be construed as a waiver of Contractor’s 
obligation to maintain such insurance.  Town shall have the right, but not the obligation, to prohibit 
Contractor or any of its subcontractors from entering the Project site until such certificates or other 
evidence that insurance has been placed in complete compliance with these requirements is received 
and approved by Town. 

D. Rating of Insurance Company(ies):  Any and all insurance company(ies) supplying coverage to 
Contractor must have no less than an “A” rating in accordance with the A.M. Best rating guide.   

E. Deductible:  Contractor shall be responsible to satisfy any deductible or self-insured retention with 
respect to any of the coverages required by the Contract Documents.  

F. Rental Equipment:  In the event that rental of equipment is undertaken to complete and/or perform 
the Work, Contractor agrees that it shall be solely responsible for such rental equipment.  Such 
responsibility shall include, but not be limited to, theft, fire, vandalism and use by unauthorized 
persons. 

G. Personal Property:  In the event that materials or any other type of personal property (“personal 
property”) is acquired for the Project or delivered to the Project site, Contractor agrees that it shall be 
solely responsible for such property until it becomes a fixture on the Project, or otherwise is installed 
and incorporated as a final part of the Project.  Such responsibility shall include, but not be limited to, 
theft, fire, vandalism and use by unauthorized persons.  Contractor shall maintain “all risk” insurance, 
on a replacement cost basis, covering loss or damage to personal property (for which it has title 
and/or risk of loss) which is to become a final part of the Project, during any time such personal 
property is in transit and while stored or worked upon away from the Project site.  Town shall be 
named as additional insured under such insurance.   

H. Waiver of Subrogation:  Town and Contractor waive all rights against each other and 
Architect/Engineer, and separate contractors for damages caused by fire or other perils covered by 
Builder's Risk or any other property insurance, except such rights as they may have to the proceeds of 
such insurance.   

I. Right to Require Higher Limits:  Town reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to require higher limits 
of liability coverage if, in Town’s opinion, operations by or on behalf of Contractor create higher than 
normal hazards and, to require Contractor to name additional parties in interest to be Additional 
Insureds. 

i. Waiver of Requirements:  The Town Manager, in consultation with the Risk Manager and/or Town 
Attorney, reserves the right to waive or reduce insurance requirements should it be in the best interest 
of the Town.  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 37  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS LIST 
 

The Plans, Details, Specifications and any other Special Provisions applicable to the Project (Special 
Provisions) are listed below and attached hereto as Attachment 1. 

 
List of Special Provisions: {To be inserted by Project Manager} 
 
 Plans: 
 
 
 
 Details: 
 
 
 
 Specifications: 
 
 
  
 Other Special Provisions: See Attachment 1 attached hereto.  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 38  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 
 

BID FORM 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
PROJECT # WU-69:  

 
 
THIS BID IS SUBMITTED BY: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________, 
a(n)_______________________________________________________(Corporaiton, Limited Liability Company, 
Partnership, Joint Venture, Sole Proprietorship, Individual), holder of an Arizona Registrar of Contractor’s license: 
ROC#_____________________, classification ____________ 

 
____________________________________________________________________________________________   
   NAME    TITLE     DATE  
 
(Failure to fill in the information above, regarding the Bidder being a holder of Arizona State Contractor’s License is 
grounds for rejection of the bid.) 
 
The undersigned Bidder, having examined and determined the scope of the Contract Documents, hereby proposes 
to perform the work described herein for the following unit prices or lump sum amounts: 
  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 39  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 
 

BID SCHEDULE 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
PROJECT # WU-69:  

 
 

Item 
Number Description Unit Quantity Unit Price 

Extended 
Price 

1 Mobilization & Demobilization LSUM 1   
2 Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan LSUM 1   
3 Construction Staking & As-Builts LSUM 1   
4 Quality Control & Material Testing LSUM 1   
5 Construction Water LSUM 1   
6 Dust Control LSUM 1   
7 Traffic Control LSUM 1   
8 16" PVC C-905 Waterline LF 1963   

9 
16" Class 350 Ductile Iron Pipe 
Waterline LF 73   

10 12" PVC C-900 Waterline LF 3624   

11 
12" Class 350 Ductile Iron Pipe 
Waterline LF 180   

12 8" Class 350 Ductile Iron Pipe Waterline LF 10   
13 6" Class 350 Ductile Iron Pipe Waterline LF 166   
14 16" Valve Box and Cover EA 6   
15 12" Valve Box and Cover EA 10   
16 8" Valve Box and Cover EA 1   
17 6" Valve Box and Cover EA 6   

18 
Curb Stop and Flushing Pipe per Detail 
Sheet DT01 EA 1   

19 
Curb Stop and Flushing Pipe per MAG 
Detail 390 Type "B" EA 1   

20 Air Release Valve per Detail Sheet DT02 EA 4   
21 Pipe Plug Per Detail Sheet DT02 EA 4   
22 Abandon Valve per Detail Sheet DT01 EA 3   

23 
Remove and Salvage Existing Fire 
Hydrant EA 4   

24 Fire Hydrant per MAG Detail 360 EA 6   

25 
Concrete Encasement per MAG Detail 
404 LF 79   

  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 40  
 
 



                                                                                                          

Item 
Number Description Unit Quantity Unit Price 

Extended 
Price 

26 
Micro Seal per MAG Section 714 and 
Special Provisions SY 11861   

27 
Remove and Replace Existing Pavement 
per MAG Detail 200 "T-Top" SY 3184   

28 Remove and Replace Existing Sidewalk SF 360   

29 
Remove and Replace Existing  Curb and 
Gutter LF 65   

Total Base Bid=  $           
      

Add Alternate No.1     

1 Pavement Markings (Ruggles St. from 
Willow to SR 79) LSUM   $                $       

      

TOTAL BID PRICE (Items 1 to 29 and Add Alternative No.1 Inclusive)   $ _______________________ 
    (In Numbers) 

     Dollars 
 (In Words)    

  Cents   

 
(In Words) 

  
 

In evaluating Bids, discrepancies in the multiplication of units of work and unit prices will be resolved in favor of 
unit prices.  Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of figures and the correct sum thereof will 
be resolved in factor of the correct sum. 

Bidders are required to fill in all blank spaces with an entry.  Bids submitted with blank spaces may be 
considered “Non-Responsive”. 

Quantities shown in this bid schedule are approximate only, and are used for the purpose of bid comparison. 

In submitting this Bid, it is understood that the right to reject any and all Bids and to waive irregularities in the 
Bidding has been reserved by THE TOWN. 

The undersigned hereby certifies that the information submitted herewith, including any attachment is true to 
the best of his knowledge and belief. 

     

Seal     (if bid is by Corporation) Respectfully Submitted:  

  Bidder:       
      

Signature:    

  Title:    

License 
No.   Address:    

Date:      
      

  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 41  
 
 



                                                                                                          

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDA 

____________________________________ acknowledges that it has received the following addenda: 
  (Contractor) 

 
 (Addendum #)       (Date) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: _______________________ _____________________________________________ 
 (Signature) 

     _____________________________________________ 
  (Title) 
 
 
  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 42  
 
 



                                                                                                          

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS 
 

The following information gives the name, business address, and portion of WORK (description of WORK to be 

done) for each SUBCONTRACTOR that WILL be used in the WORK if the BIDDER is awarded the CONTRACT.  No 

SUBCONTRACTOR doing WORK in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) and who is not listed SHALL be used 

without the written approval of the OWNER which SHALL not be unreasonably withheld.  (Additional supporting 

data MAY be attached to this page.  Each page SHALL be sequentially numbered and headed "Proposed 

Subcontractors" and SHALL be signed.)  Substitutions of SUBCONTRACTORS MAY be made by the BIDDER so long as 

all SUBCONTRACTORS used meet all requirements for SUBCONTRACTORS and all subcontract agreements meet all 

requirements for sub-agreements and lower tier agreements as set forth in the CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 

 
Name    Business Address    Description of Work 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 43  
 
 



                                                                                                          

Statutory Bid Bond 
 

STATUTORY BID BOND 
PURSUANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 1 OF THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 

(Penalty of this bond must be 10% of the bid amount) 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 

That_____________________________________________________________ (hereafter “Principal”),  

as Principal, and ________________________________, a corporation organized and existing under the 

laws of the State of ___________, with its principal offices in the City of ________________________, 

(hereafter “Surety”), as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the 

___________________________________________________________ (hereafter “Obligee”), in 

the amount of ____________________________________________________________(Dollars) 

($______________________), for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, 

and their heirs, administrators, executors, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

 WHEREAS, the Principal has submitted a bid for _________________________________ 

 NOW, THEREFORE, if the Obligee shall accept the proposal of the Principal and the Principal shall enter 
into a contract with the Obligee in accordance with the terms of the proposal and give bonds and certificates of 
insurance as specified in the standard specifications with good and sufficient surety for the faithful performance of 
the contract and for prompt payment of labor and materials furnished in the prosecution of the contract, or in the 
event of the failure of the Principal to enter into the contract and give the bonds and certificates of insurance if the 
Principal pays to the Obligee the difference not to exceed the penalty of the bond between the amount specified 
in the proposal and such larger amount for which the Obligee may in good faith contract with another party to 
perform the work covered by the proposal then this obligation is void.  Otherwise, it remains in full force and 
effect provided, however, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Section 34-201, Arizona Revised 
Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the section to the 
extent as if it were copied at length herein. 
 

Witness our hands this __________day of ____________________, 20____. 
 
      ___________________________________________ 
                                   PRINCIPAL   

SEAL 
 
      BY: ________________________________________ 
       ___________________________________________ 
                      SURETY 

      BY: ________________________________________ 
       ___________________________________________ 
                                     AGENCY OF RECORD 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 44  
 
 



                                                                                                          

  

RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

CERTIFIED COPY OF RESOLUTION OF 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

 
_________________________________________ 

(Name of Corporation) 
 
 

RESOLVED that   _______________________________, ____________________________ of 
   (Person Authorized to Sign)        (Title) 
 
 ___________________________________________________ (“Corporation”) is authorized to sign and submit 
the bid or proposal of this corporation for the following project: 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE:  WELL #4 TO WELL #5 TRANSMISSION MAIN 
  
The foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Corporation at the 

meeting of its Board of Directors held on the _______day of ____________________, 20_____. 
 
 
 
     
 By_______________________________________ 

     
     
 Title______________________________________ 

 
 
 

(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED IF BIDDER IS A CORPORATION) 
  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 45  
 
 



                                                                                                          

NON-COLLUSIVE BIDDING CERTIFICATION 
 

STATE OF   ) 
                                        ) SS.  
COUNTY OF   ) 

 
 

I, ________________________ of the City/Town of __________________________, in the County of 

 ___________________ and the State of _______________________, of full age, being duly sworn according to 
the law of my oath depose and say that: 

 
I am _____________________________ a _______________________________ of the firm of 

 ______________________________________________________, the Bidder making the Bid for the Town of 
Florence Project ________________________________and that I executed the said Bid with full authority to do 
so; that said Bidder has not, directly or indirectly, entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, or 
otherwise taken any action in restraint of free, competitive bidding in connection with the above named Project; 
and that all statements contained in said Bid and in this affidavit are true and correct, and made with full 
knowledge that the Town of Florence relies upon the truth of the statements contained in said Bid and in the 
statements contained in this affidavit in awarding the Contract for the said Project. 

 
I further warrant that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure such Contract 
upon an agreement of understanding, for a commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee, except bonafide 
employees or bonafide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by: 

 
    ___________________________________ 

    (Signature of Bidder) 
 

    ___________________________________ 
    (Printed or Typed Name of Bidder) 

    (Seal of Corporation) 

 
Sworn to before me this ______ day of ____________, 20__, in the County of ______________, 

State of _______________________. 
 

 
__________________________________ 

(Notary Public)  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 46  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 
 

W-9 FORM 
 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 47  
 
 



                                                                                                          

 
PHOENIX 55462-3 203647v1 

  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 48  
 
 



                                                                                                          

ATTACHMENT #1 
 
 
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
  

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 49  
 
 



                                                                                                          

All work performed shall comply with the 2015 edition of the MAG Uniform Standard Specifications except as 
listed below.  

AMENDMENTS TO MAG UNIFORM STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS  

SECTION 105 CONTROL OF WORK  

 105.6 COOPERATION WITH UTILITIES: 

 This section is modified to add: 

  105.6.1 Southwest Gas 

Abandoned gas line facilities are present in several locations along the project. If during trenching for the proposed 
waterline, the abandoned gas lines are encountered and require removal, the Contractor shall contact Southwest 
Gas. Southwest Gas forces will remove and dispose of the abandoned pipe at no cost to the Contractor; however 
the Contractor is advised a response from Southwest Gas may take several working days.  

The contacts for Southwest Gas are: Russell Sopha (Construction Supervisor) at (520) 316-5013 or Jesse Gonzales 
(Coordinator) at (520) 316-5022.   

There will be no additional payment or contract time extension given to the Contractor for coordination with 
Southwest Gas for removal of the existing gas line or for construction delays resulting from this pipeline removal 
process.  Any additional cost to the Contractor for this work shall be considered incidental to the waterline 
contract bid items. 

 105.8 CONSTRUCTION STAKES, LINES AND GRADES: 

 This section is replaced with the following: 

The contractor will be responsible for construction staking and “As-Built” record drawing preparation on mylars 
provided by the Construction Manager. 

A full size set of project blue line drawings shall be kept on-site and updated on a weekly basis with a red pencil or 
red ink to reflect any field adjustments, changes, omissions, additions, etc. as they occur on the project.  The Town 
inspector may check site as-builts on a weekly basis to ensure all modified project elements have been properly 
recorded on the field plan set.  

The Town will provide the Contractor with the original mylar plan sheets for use in preparing final as-builts.  
Information shall be shown on these mylars in red opaque ink, depicting the constructed dimensions, elevations, 
grades and materials including locations of existing underground utilities found during construction. 

The Contractor shall exercise extreme care in handling the originals and will return them to the Town in like 
condition.  In the event the originals are damaged or determined by the Town to be unacceptable, the Contractor 
shall replace the originals by contacting the Design Engineer of record and have new drawings produced. All costs 
incurred, as the result of replacing the originals shall be borne by the Contractor.  The Town will be the sole judge 
in determining whether the as-builts are acceptable in either condition or detail. 

All work included in the contract documents as well as changes to the contract shall be noted as correct or 
modified by either checking off the information if it is correct, or by drawing a neat line through the original data 
and writing in the correct information in red opaque ink if the information is incorrect. Unless noted otherwise 
below in the minimum as-built requirement section, station/offset measurements will be from construction 
centerline/monument line both parallel and transverse to roadway; added items or location changes shall be 
physically drawn at revised or new locations on the as-builts; and all measurements and stations should be to the 
nearest tenth of a foot. 

The minimum requirements for mylar as-built acceptance is as follows: 

Project Drawing Quantity Notations:  Any project drawing or quantity summary sheet that shows a quantity on it 
that is incorrect shall be corrected by drawing a neat line through the original quantity and writing in the correct 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 50  
 
 



                                                                                                          

information.  When space on the drawing does not allow room to indicate the corrections, a separate table may be 
drawn on a separate sheet with reference on both plan sheets to the plan sheet that the table refers to or to the 
sheet where the table is located.  

Existing/New Utilities:  All underground infrastructure utilities, whether depicted on the project plans or not, shall 
be verified, corrected or added to the as-builts noting the beginning and ending station/offset location and 
elevation of utility relative to finished roadway grade or other identifiable ground or permanent roadway/project 
feature. 

Removals:  Dimensions and/or other volumetric descriptions and station/offset location of all removed items. 

Curb/Gutter/Valley Gutter:  Beginning and ending station/offset location of straight curb/gutter/valley gutter runs 
relative to construction centerline/monument line; flow line elevation; and station/offset location of PC’s and PT’s. 

Driveway/Alley Entrances:  Beginning and ending station/offset including driveway wings. 

Roadway Pavement:  Beginning/ending station and measured completed roadway width from edge of pavement 
to edge of pavement in straight roadway sections and actual sawcut removal/tie-in to existing pavement locations. 

Roadway Striping/Signage:  Any relocated sign shall be located by station and offset from construction 
centerline/monument line.  Any change in roadway marking is to be noted on as-builts. 

Linear Items:  Fences, walls, ditches, etc. should be located by station/offset and tied in with a permanent point. 

The as-built drawings shall be certified by an Arizona Registered Land Surveyor.  As-built drawings shall be 
delivered to the Town’s Contract Administrator within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of final inspection 
and acceptance by the Town of the work completed under this contract.  No separate payment will be provided for 
this work as it shall be included in Construction Surveying and As-Builts. 

SECTION 106 CONTROL OF MATERIALS 

 106.2 SAMPLES AND TESTS OF MATERIALS 

 This section is modified as follows: 

In the first sentence of the second paragraph, substitute “The Contractor” for the words “….. Contracting 
Agency….”. 

Acceptance of materials shall be based upon testing conducted in compliance with Appendix A - Materials Testing 
Frequency Guide.  Work under this Section shall be paid for as a lump sum under the Bid Item – Quality Control & 
Material Testing. 

SECTION 107 LEGAL REGULATIONS AND RESPONSIBILTY TO PUBLIC 

 107.2 PERMITS 

This section is modified as follows: 

A Right-of-Way Permit shall be acquired from the Town of Florence Public Works Department and shall require the 
submittal of a Traffic Control Plan.  The cost of the permit is $25. 

SECTION 401 TRAFFIC CONTROL  

 401.7 PAYMENT 

 This section is modified as follows: 

Payment for work under this Section will be made as a lump sum under the Bid Item – Traffic Control and shall 
include traffic control devices, barricades, flagmen, the preparation of traffic control plans and any other items as 
required.    

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 51  
 
 



                                                                                                          

Add the following Section: 

SECTION 402 PAVEMENT MARKINGS  

 402.1 DESCRIPTION 

New pavement markings along Ruggles Street from Willow St. east to State Route 79 have been included in the bid 
schedule as an add alternate.  

Proposed work will include the installation of new permanent markings based on existing conditions, lane widths, 
and layouts. Contractor shall be responsible for reviewing the site prior to construction and shall match color, 
width, and pattern of all existing pavement markings.  

 402.2 MATERIALS AND METHODS 

Contractor shall spot mark the project and shall coordinate with Town inspector before applying permanent 
markings. 

Permanent pavement markings shall be either paint or thermoplastic. If thermoplastic is used, Crosswalks, Stop 
Bars, and Holding Bars shall be installed with a thickness of ninety (90) mils, and longitudinal markings shall be 
installed with a thickness of sixty (60) mils. Contractor shall coordinate with Town staff to determine possible 
locations of thermoplastic installation. 

 402.3 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 

Pavement Markings shall be paid at the contract unit price as a Lump Sum item and shall include all necessary 
equipment, labor and materials.  

SECTION 610 WATER LINE CONSTRUCTION  

 610.4 CONSTRUCTION METHODS 

 This section is modified to add: 

All fire hydrant installations shall include on the as-built plans locations of origin, terminus, valves, angle points, 
fittings and bends. Removal of existing fire hydrants shall include in the as-built plans locations of abandoned valve 
and pipe plug.  

Contractor shall sequence his work so that the waterline is installed along Ruggles Street before all other work is 
begun.  

SECTION 714 MICROSURFACING MATERIALS  

 714.3 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL 

 This section is modified to add: 

Emulsion used shall be CQS-1HP and shall be applied at a rate of 20 pounds per square yard. 

Add the following section: 

 714.8 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 

Micro seal shall be paid at the contract unit price per square yard installed and shall include all necessary 
equipment, staking, labor and materials. 

 

 

Town of Florence Well #4 to Well #5 Transmission Main 
Project # WU-69                                                                                                             Page 52  
 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

TOWN	OF	FLORENCE,	ARIZONA	

WELL	#4	TO	WELL	#5	TRANSMISSION	MAIN	

PROJECT	NO.	WU‐69	

ADDENDUM	#1	

DATED:	April	1,	2015	

Bidder shall acknowledge the receipt of this addendum on Page 42 of the contract documents entitled 
Acknowledgement of Addenda. 

The following is a summary of all inquiries and responses regarding the proposed waterline installation. 

1) How thick is the existing asphalt?  
 

Response: Based on As‐Built information, the existing AC depth varies from 2”‐3” thick. The 
existing ABC depth varies from 4” to 8” thick. 

 
2) Will the traffic control set‐ups be allowed to stand for 24 hours or will the contractor have to 

set‐up & take down on a daily basis?  
 

Response: A 24‐hour setup is possible, however, it is up to the contractor to submit a traffic 
control plan to the Town which will be reviewed and be subject to approval by the Public Works 
Department. Plans should include any proposed set‐up, lane layouts, temporary barriers or 
fencing, roadway closures, detours, etc.  

 
3) Is there a location within the Town where the excavated spoils can be taken?  Will the Town 

charge the contractor? 
 
Response: The Town does not have a location for excavated spoils. The Contractor is 
responsible for disposal of all materials. 

 



Page 2 of 3 
 

4) The detail for the asphalt replacement is MAG 200 T‐Top. Will the trench backfill have to 
conform to the material listed in this detail or are we allowed to follow the trench detail in the 
plans (DT01)?  

 
Response: The 12” thick “shelf” under the asphalt cement needs to conform to the MAG detail. 
Beneath the shelf the trench detail in the plans may be used. 

 
5) What material type is the existing 16” water main under Main St & Ruggles St that we have to 

connect to?  
 

Response: The existing water line is PVC. 

6) Any traffic control or road closure restrictions? 

Response: See response to Question #2. 

7) Will you need temporary fencing for this project? 

Response: See response to Question #2. 

8) What is the thickness of the existing asphalt? 
 
Response: See response to Question #1. 

9) Does the Town have a yard where we can dump spoils? If so, where is the exact location? 

Response: See response to Question #3. 

10) Are 24‐hour setups allowed for traffic control? Or do they need to be taken down on a daily 
basis? 

Response: See response to Question #2. 

11) Do you have a source for construction water and, if so, how much do you charge for it? 

Response: A fire hydrant with a meter may be used to obtain construction water. The cost shall 
be a $1,000 refundable deposit with a rate of $2.50 / 1,000 gallons. There will be a one‐time 
charge of $75.00 to install the meter and a one‐time charge of $70.00 to remove the meter. 
 

12) Is native backfill approved for the project? 
 

Response: Native material may be used for backfill. See trench details and notes in the 
construction plans for compaction and gradation requirements. 

13) Will we be able to shut down roads to local traffic only? 

Response: See response to Question #2. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

14) Regarding the MAG 200 T‐Top asphalt replacement. Will you require the aggregate base section 
to be T‐Top or the asphalt section only? 

Response: Both the aggregate base and the asphalt will require the T‐Top section. 
 

15) On sheet 50 of the Bid Documents, reference is made to “mylar” drawings.  Can the as‐built 
drawings be submitted in electronic format in lieu of mylar sheets? 

Response: Electronic as‐built drawings are acceptable in lieu of mylar. 
 


	April 20, 2015 Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6

	8. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION
	8a. Jeffrey P. Erickson River Bottom Liq Lic App

	9. CONSENT
	9a. Task Order No 3 with EPS Group
	9b. Task Order No 4 with EPS Group
	9c. Acceptance of public improvements AMR Units 9, 22A, and 22B
	9d. Katherine Kaiser Resignation
	9e Florence Lions Club Sp Event Liq Lic
	9f. Chamber of Commerce  Sp Event Liq Lic
	9g. Ratification of emergency repair for Well 1
	9h. Resolution No. 1507-15 MR Unit 53 Final Plat
	9i. Resolution No. 1508-15 AMR Unit 36 Final Plat
	9j. Resolution No. 1509-15 Constitution Way Ph 2 National Way MOD
	9k. Resolution No. 1510-15 Spirt Loop Ph 4 MOD
	9l. Resolution No. 1511-15 AMR Unit 15 Re-Plat
	9m. Resolution No. 1512-12 Johnson Utiltiies LLC Oper Agmt Amend
	9n. Resolution No. 1513-15 SW Amendment RCA
	9o. Resolution No. 1517-15 Aceptance of public ROW from FUSD
	9p. Resolution No. 1518-15 Re-organization
	9q. Resolution No. 1519-15 State Forester Cooperative Fire Rate Agmt
	9r. Linda Fenstermaker Parks and Rec Board Appointment
	9s. March 2, 2015 Council Minutes
	9s. March 16, 2015 Council Minutes
	9s. March 26, 2015 Council Minutes

	9t i. March 12, 2015 Arts and Culture Commission Minutes
	9t ii. January 28, 2015 HDAC Minutes
	9t iii. February 18, 2015 Library Minutes
	9t iv. Janaury 15, 2015 PZ Minutes
	9t iv. February 5, 2015 PZ Minutes



	10. NEW BUSINESS
	10a. Resolution No. 1514 AMS IDA Bond Camelback Campus
	10b. Resolution No. 1515-15 AMS IDA Bond Flower Campus
	10c. Ratification of Contract with Arizona Beeman Drilling for Well 2
	10d. Visus Contract for Main Street Extension Project
	10e. McCain Construction Contract for Well 4 to 5 Waterline




